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Important  Notice  Regarding  Acceptance  of  Notices 
For  Publication  in  the  Weekly  “Gazette”

Attention is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance of Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of publication. 
All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times of applications in 
respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared by giving adequate time 
both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those interested in the contents of such 
notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect of corrections pertaining to notification will 
not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All Notices to be published in the weekly Gazette should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e. Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazette of 23rd December, 2022 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 09th December, 2022.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of  2006 - Section 9
“Where any Act or enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall be 

published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other 
matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.”

Gangani Liyanage,
Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing, 
Colombo 08,
01st January, 2022.

  This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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Other Appointments &c.
No. 823 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of Temporary rank approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The undermentioned Officers’ to be confirmed in the rank 
of Captain are approved with effect from the dates stated 
against their names:

1.	T emporary Captain Thilanka Tharaka Ubesinghe
Jayawardane, SLLI (O/67950) - 30th September,
2013;

2.	T emporary Captain Balasooriya Mohotti
Appuhamilage Nikila Vibhavi Gunathilake, GR
(O/66886) - 23rd March, 2014;

3.	T emporary Captain Nishantha Nanayakkara, CES
(O/68778) - 10th September, 2014;

4.	T emporary Captain Eranga Hasthika Wellangiriya,
SLAGSC (O/68246) - 28th March, 2015;

5.	T emporary Captain Don Simange Yohan Sandun
Sampath, VIR (O/68188) - 07th January, 2016;

6.	T emporary Captain Thalahitiya Gamaralalage
Naleen Chaminda Senarathne, VIR (O/68898) -
07th January, 2016;

7.	T emporary Captain Loku Gamage Nishantha, SLLI
(O/67688) - 07th January, 2016;

8.	T emporary Captain Hewa Meeallage Chanaka
Rumesh Prageeth Kumara Meeallage, CES
(O/69546) - 01st June, 2016;

9.	T emporary Captain Jayasinghe Mudiyanselage
Prasanna Jayasinghe, GR (O/67760) - 01st June,
2016;

10.	T emporary Captain Gonapinuwalage Malith
Madusanka Weerasinghe, SLLI (O/69085) - 01st
June, 2016;

Appointments &c., by the Cabinet of Ministers

No. 821 of 2022

appointment

it is hereby notified that, in terms of the provisions of 

Article 55(2) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist 

Republic of Sri Lanka, the Cabinet of Ministers has appointed 

Mrs. H. M. J. Ilankoon Menike, Special Grade Officer of 

the Sri Lanka Agriculture Service to the post of Director 

General of Agriculture, with effect from 31st October, 2022.

By Order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

W. M. D. J. Fernando,

Secretary to the Cabinet of Ministers.

25th November, 2022.

12-253/1

No. 822 of 2022

appointment

it is hereby notified that, in terms of the provisions 
of Article 55(2) of the Constitution of the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, the Cabinet of Ministers 
has appointed Mr. Y. Aniruthanan, Grade I Officer of the Sri 
Lanka Administrative Service to the post of Director of the 
Department of Hindu Religious and Cultural Affairs with 
effect from 01st November, 2022.

By Order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

W. M. D. J. Fernando,
Secretary to the Cabinet of Ministers.

25th November, 2022.

12-253/2
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11.	T emporary Captain Tharaka Dulaj Wijerathne,
SLLI (O/68259) - 02nd July, 2016;

12.	T emporary Captain Dassanayake Mudiyanselage
Nimesh Madusanka Dassanayake, GR (O/69196) -
23rd March, 2017;

13.	T emporary Captain Rubasin Siriwardhene Miyuru
Gayan Siriwardhene, SLAGSC (O/69892) - 12th
March, 2018;

14.	T emporary Captain Sidath Sampath Samaranayake,
VIR (O/69451) - 12th March, 2018;

15.	T emporary Captain Hathgampala Welideniyalage
Keshara Dhanushka Jayawardhana, CES
(O/70556) - 27th June, 2018;

16.	T emporary Captain Wahalkada Gedara Kasun
Prabodha Sri Premalal, MI (O/69664) - 10th
January, 2019;

17.	T emporary Captain Supun Malinda Samaranayake,
CES (O/70364) - 17th March, 2019;

18.	T emporary Captain Udalamaththa Gamage
Thanuja Deshappriya Amarasena, SLE (O/70292) -
17th March, 2019;

19.	T emporary Captain Moragoda Hettiarachchige
Kushan Kumara Madushanka Hettiarachchi,
SLAGSC (O/70338) - 17th March, 2019;

20.	T emporary Captain Ilangasinghe Mudiyanselage
Sadun Priyankara Sumanadasa, CES (O/70365) -
17th March, 2019;

21.	T emporary Captain Sampath Dewayalage Roshan
Madhubahashana Rajapaksha, SLAGSC (O/70361)
- 17th March, 2019;

22.	T emporary Captain Hangili Gurunnehele Gedara
Sudesh Amila Sandaruwan, MI (O/70577) - 08th
July, 2019;

23.	T emporary Captain Koonkaduwa Mudiyanselage
Thushan Kumara Gunarathne, CES (O/69962) -
08th July, 2019;

24.	T emporary Captain Dinamulla Kankanamge
Thilanka Lakshitha Premalal, SLAOC (O/70325)
- 08th July, 2019;

25.	T emporary Captain Duggath Mudiyanselage
Madhuwanthi Maheshika Thilakarathne,
SLAWC (O/69632) - 08th July, 2019;

26.	T emporary Captain Lokubadu Weerasooriya
Patabedige Yohan Madhusanka Weerasooriya,
GW (O/70104) - 16th January, 2020.

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
27th July, 2022.

12-91/1

No. 824 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of Temporary rank Approved by 
the Commander of the Army

The undermentioned Officers’ to be confirmed in the rank 
of Captain are approved with effect from the dates stated 
against their names:

1.	T emporary Captain Masa Arachchige Kanishka
Madhuranga Wickramasinghe, SF (O/70085) -
16th January, 2020;

2.	T emporary Captain Padukkage Namal Perera,
SLSR (O/70101) - 16th January, 2020;

3.	T emporary Captain Madapathage Don Lakitha
Mindula Madapatha, SLSR (O/70223) - 16th
January, 2020;

4.	T emporary Captain Kasun Jayamin Prabashwara
Ranasinghe, SLSC (O/70224) - 16th January, 2020;

5.	T emporary Captain Jayasekara Vitharanage Namal
Lakshitha Jayasekara, SLASC (O/70611) - 16th
March, 2020;

6.	T emporary Captain Gamlath Bandarage Hasitha
Prabakara Gamlath, SLSC (O/70583) - 16th March,
2020;
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7.	T emporary Captain Mabulage Madhuka Gayan
Mabulage, SLAOC (O/70616) - 16th March, 2020;

8.	T emporary Captain Pallikonda Arachchige
Don Wishwa Wimarsha Wickramasinghe, SLE
(O/70622) - 16th March, 2020;

9.	T emporary Captain Muthugal Pedige Kalpa Nilan
Rajapaksha, SLEME (O/70602) - 16th March, 2020;

10.	T emporary Captain Thaththage Chathura Udesh
Fernando, SLAC (O/70641) - 16th March, 2020;

11.	T emporary Captain Kahadugoda Manage
Vidarshana Shenuka Kahadugoda, SLAGSC
(O/70612) - 16th March, 2020;

12.	T emporary Captain Pasdun Korale Arachchige
Waruna Chinthaka Koralearachchi, SLA 
(O/70634) - 16th March, 2020;

13.	T emporary Captain Hashan Udayanga Dias
Karunarathna, MIR (O/70646) - 16th March, 2020;

14.	T emporary Captain Rajakaruna Athapaththu
Nawarathna Mudiyanselage Lahiru Udara
Janitha Bandara, CR (O/70637) - 16th March, 
2020;

15.	T emporary Captain Krishani Kushalya Vitharama,
SLAGSC (O/70609) - 16th March, 2020;

16.	T emporary Captain Vellasami Parameshwaram,
SLEME (O/70589) - 16th March, 2020;

17.	T emporary Captain Manikramige Rangana
Wijesinghe, GR (O/70627) - 16th March, 2020;

18.	T emporary Captain Basnayake Appuhamilage
Yugantha Lathish Basnayake, SLAC (O/70630) -
16th March, 2020;

19.	T emporary Captain Naida Badathurage Isuru
Tharanga Pathirage, SLSC (O/70598) - 16th
March, 2020;

20.	T emporary Captain Rajapaksha Mudiyanselage
Dimantha Nuwan Tharaka Rajapaksha, SLSC
(O/70600) - 16th March, 2020;

21.	T emporary Captain Nipun Eranda Jayasinghe,
SLAOC (O/70613) - 16th March, 2020;

22.	T emporary Captain Dabora Gamage Sandun
Uthpala Gunathilaka, SLASC (O/70619) - 16th
March, 2020;

23.	T emporary Captain Ahangama Liyanage Laksri
Rangana Liyanage, CES (O/70585) - 16th March,
2020;

24.	T emporary Captain Henegama Liyanage Tarindu
Sajith Lakkana Liyanage, SLA (O/70626) - 16th
March, 2020;

25.	T emporary Captain Sri Dewa Manthirilage Kasun
Piumal Senarath de Silva, CES (O/70586) - 16th
March, 2020;

26.	T emporary Captain Thennakoon Mudiyanselage
Sajith Lahiru Jayawardhane, VIR (O/70638) - 16th
March, 2020;

27.	T emporary Captain Dasanayake Mudalige Don
Clemant Nilshan Dihara Dassanayake, SLSR
(O/70621) - 16th March, 2020;

28.	T emporary Captain Gallage Don Varanga
Chathurangi Gallage, SLSC (O/70776) - 16th
March, 2020;

29.	T emporary Captain Giramba Hewage Ashan Kumara
Hewage, GW (O/70624) - 16th March, 2020;

30.	T emporary Captain Senasinghage Charuka Ashan
Jayamalka Silva, CES (O/70591) - 16th March, 2020;

31.	T emporary Captain Lahiru Pramod Pahalawaththe
Lekamge, CES (O/70584) - 16th March, 2020;

32.	T emporary Captain Loku Liyanage Kasun
Madhusanka Alwis, VIR (O/70632) - 16th March,
2020;

33.	T emporary Captain Isuru Ravin Sri Jayaweera,
SLEME (O/70588) - 16th March, 2020;

34.	T emporary Captain Thelwadana Mudiyanselage
Anjana Subhahu Bandara Thelwadana, VIR
(O/70608) - 16th March, 2020;

35.	T emporary Captain Arachchi Appuhamilage
Malith Lasantha Kaluarachchi, SLAOC
(O/70620) - 16th March, 2020;

36.	T emporary Captain Thibbutumunuwe Arachchilage
Narada Shakthi Bandara Thibbutumunuwa, MIR
(O/70582) - 16th March, 2020;

37.	T emporary Captain Abesinghe Mudiyanselage
Akila Sadaruwan Bandara, SLA (O/70579) - 16th
March, 2020;

38.	T emporary Captain Thisara Kawinda Ramasinghe,
SLSC (O/70601) - 16th March, 2020;

39.	T emporary Captain Aluth Sahalge Ashila
Prabuddha Dilshan Rajapaksha, SLAOC
(O/70615) - 16th March, 2020;

40.	T emporary Captain Kumarasinghalage Kusal
Chathuranga Perera, SLEME (O/70581) - 16th
March, 2020;
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41.	T emporary Captain Liyanagamage Eranga Sampath
Liyanagamage, SLE (O/70595) - 16th March, 2020;

42.	T emporary Captain Gimhana Pathum Jayathunga,
SLE (O/70642) - 16th March, 2020;

43.	T emporary Captain Amila Pethum Samarakoon, GR
(O/70605) - 16th March, 2020;

44.	T emporary Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Disnaka
Vishwa Ranga Herath, SLASC (O/70614) - 16th
March, 2020;

45.	T emporary Captain Prangige Chandima Pradeep
Peiris, GW (O/70635) - 16th March, 2020;

46.	T emporary Captain Dandeniya Baddage Ishan
Udaraka Dandeniya, SLLI (O/70644) - 16th March,
2020;

47.	T emporary Captain Mudiyanselage Kushan Vidura
Rathnayake, SLE (O/70640) - 16th March, 2020;

48.	T emporary Captain Don Manuwalage Prageeth
Madusanka Wijesinha, SLA (O/70590) - 16th
March, 2020;

49.	T emporary Captain Weerathunga Arachchige
Saraji Kaushalya Weerathunga, SLCMP
(O/70777) - 16th March, 2020;

50.	T emporary Captain Wickramasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Molagoda Gedara Prabodha 
Molagoda, MIR (O/70603) - 16th March, 2020;

51.	T emporary Captain Keeragala Arachchige
Hashan Shashindu Keeragala, SLE (O/70593) -
16th March, 2020;

52.	T emporary Captain Helessage Tony Manoj
Thilakasiri, SLE (O/70597) - 16th March, 2020;

53.	T emporary Captain Eranga Dilshan Samaraweera,
CES (O/71004) - 16th March, 2020;

54.	T emporary Captain Nipuna Viduranga Senanayake,
SLSC (O/70775) - 16th March, 2020;

55.	T emporary Captain Thennakoon Mudiyanselage
Gayan Amila Thennakoon, GR (O/70639) - 16th
March, 2020;

56.	T emporary Captain Chalinda Buddika Weerapura,
SLE (O/70596) - 16th March, 2020;

57.	T emporary Captain Pahala Gedara Anuruddha
Gayan Rathnasiri, GW (O/70631) - 16th March,
2020;

58.	T emporary Captain Marapathirage Buddhika
Lakshan Pathirage, SLLI (O/70645) - 16th March,
2020;

59.	T emporary Captain Dalugama Arachchilage
Madusha Dulanjana Dalugama, SLSC (O/70773)
- 16th March, 2020;

60.	T emporary Captain Wickramasinghe Arachchige
Ravin Kasura Wickramasinghe, SLE (O/70780) -
16th March, 2020;

61.	T emporary Captain Rathnayake Mudiyanselage
Sachintha Bandara, SLLI (O/70604) - 16th March,
2020;

62.	T emporary Captain Omesh Harshan Vidayarathne,
SLE (O/70599) - 16th March, 2020;

63.	T emporary Captain Yatamalage Gamage Nuwanga
Lakshan Gamage, SLASC (O/70643) - 16th March,
2020;

64.	T emporary Captain Ranaweera Dissanayakelage
Ishara Madusanka Ranaweera, MI (O/70647) -
16th March, 2020;

65.	T emporary Captain Balasooriya Arachchilage
Madhuranga Balasooriya, CR (O/70648) - 16th
March, 2020;

66.	T emporary Captain Shaneera Hiranya Wishmila
Gamage, SLAOC (O/70578) - 16th March, 2020;

67.	T emporary Captain Dola Mullage Dumidu
Madushan Karunarathne, SLEME (O/70587) -
16th March, 2020;

68.	T emporary Captain Anthonidura Shehan Saranga
Dharmapriya, MI (O/70625) - 16th March, 2020;

69.	T emporary Captain Kulappu Thantirige Malith
Chathuranga Gunasinhe, GW (O/70650) - 16th
March, 2020;

70.	T emporary Captain Basnayake Mudiyanselage
Dulanga Pulasthi Basnayake, VIR (O/70628) -
16th March, 2020;

71.	T emporary Captain Yakdehi Kandage Chathuranga
Kaushalya Costa, GR (O/70629) - 16th March, 2020;

72.	T emporary Captain Kalu Arachchilage Shehan
Kauminda Kaluarachchi, SLEME (O/70594) -
16th March, 2020;

73.	T emporary Captain Adikari Mudiyanselage
Chinthaka Prasad Adikaram Bandara, SLLI
(O/70636) - 16th March, 2020;

74.	T emporary Captain Bulathwelage Nisal
Nadeeshana Rodrigo, SLSC (O/70774) - 16th
March, 2020;
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No. 825 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of Temporary rank approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The undermentioned Officers’ to be confirmed in the rank 
of Captain are approved with effect from the dates stated 
against their names:

1.	T emporary Captain Bulathsinghalage Harsha
Geethan Bulathsinghala VIR (O/68925), - 01
June, 2020;

2.	T emporary Captain	 Ego Ralalage Dinushaka
Deepa Maduranga Gunathilake, SLEME
(O/69751) - 01st June, 2020 ;

75.	T emporary Captain Kodikara Achchillage Lahiru
Sandakelum Kodikara, GW (O/70633) - 16th
March, 2020;

76.	T emporary Captain Thilina Prageeth Kumara
Bopitiya, SLSR (O/70851) - 16th March, 2020;

77.	T emporary Captain Herath Mudiyanselage
Thushan Indrasiri Herath, SLAC (O/70580) - 16th
March, 2020;

78.	T emporary Captain Wijekoon Mudiyanselage
Hiran Prasad Indeewara, CES (O/70772) - 16th
March, 2020;

79.	T emporary Captain Pahanpriya Madhushan
Gunasena, SLSC (O/70592) - 16th March, 2020;

80.	T emporary Captain Vihanga Kanchana Ileperuma,
GW (O/70607) - 16th March, 2020;

81.	T emporary Captain Wanninayake Mudiyanselage
Sakunthala Priyachinthani Wanninayake,
SLAWC (O/70610) - 16th March, 2020.

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
27th July, 2022.

12-91/2

3.	T emporary Captain Manchanayake Achchilage
Thushara Sharodh Manchanayake, GR (O/69769)
- 01st June, 2020;

4.	T emporary Captain Rathgalle Mudiyanselage
Shiran Deepal Kumarasinghe, SLAGSC (O/70346)
- 01st June, 2020

5.	T emporary Captain Sembukutti Arachchilage
Roshan Milroy Gunasekara GW (O/70274) - 01st
June, 2020;

6.	T emporary Captain Nayananga Madubasha
Samaraweera, GR (O/70326) - 01 June, 2020;

7.	T emporary Captain	 Panditharathna Wasala 
Mudiyanse Ralahamilage Lochana Kesara 
Bandara Angunawela, GR (O/70022) - 01st June, 
2020;

8.	T emporary Captain Kalubovila Appuhamilage
Wasana Sandaruwan Kalubovila, SF (O/70094) -
01st June, 2020;

9.	T emporary Captain	H erath Mudiyanselage
Kushan Prasanna Herath, SLAC (O/70100) - 01st
June, 2020;

10.	T emporary Captain Kolombagamage Medawaththe
Lakitha Panduka Rathnayake, VIR (O/70107) -
01st June, 2020;

11.	T emporary Captain	 Weerakkodige Shanaka
Madusanka Weerakkodi, SLA (O/70221) - 01st
June, 2020;

12.	T emporary Captain	 Gurunnanselage Don Pasindu
Priyankara Karunanayake, GR (O/70229) - 01st
June, 2020;

13.	T emporary Captain	T harindu Sampath
Bogahawattage , SLSR (O/70231) - 01st June, 2020;

14.	T emporary Captain	 Karumpulli Arachchige
Charuka Jiwantha Arachchige, SLAOC (O/70617)
- 01st June, 2020;

15.	T emporary Captain	 Arachchiralale Gedara
Hasith Randika Sandaruwan Padeniya, SLCMP
(O/70852) - 01st June, 2020;

16.	T emporary Captain	H ettiarachchige Chanaka
Maduranga, SLSC (O/70246) - 30th June, 2020;

17.	T emporary Captain	H etti Arachchige Janani
hettiarchchi, SLAWC (O/70056) - 13th July, 2020;

18.	T emporary Captain	 Liyana Arachchilage Salika
Madhushani Liyanarachchi, SLAWC (O/70057) -
13th July, 2020;
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19.	T emporary Captain Peragasthennalage Samudrika
Priyadarshani Peragastenna, SLAWC (O/70058) -
13th July, 2020;

20.	T emporary Captain	 Kasthurisinghe Arachchige
Ayesha Nimanthika Perera, SLAWC (O/70059) -
13th July, 2020;

21.	T emporary Captain	 Weerasooriya Arachchillage
Chandima Dilrukshi Bandara, SLAWC (O/70060)
- 13th July, 2020;

22.	T emporary Captain	 Widana Herathge lashini
Ruwanthi Herath, SLAWC (O/70061) - 13th July,
2020;

23.	T emporary Captain Rathukoho Dukganna
Mudiyanselage chalanima Sandeepani Udugama,
SLAWC (O/70062) - 13th July, 2020;

24.	T emporary Captain	 Chamila Thushari Joseph,
SLAWC (O/70063) - 13th July, 2020;

25.	T emporary Captain Kalutharage Dulanjali
Madhumali Parakum, SLAWC (O/70064) - 13th
July, 2020;

26.	T emporary Captain	H alpe Liyanage Udeni 
Lakshika, SLAWC (O/70067) - 13th July, 2020;

27.	T emporary Captain	 Achini Duleeka Widana
Gamage, SLAWC (O/70069) - 13th July, 2020;

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
04th October, 2022.

12-91/3

No. 826 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

The undermentioned Medical Officer’s Promotion to the 
rank of Captain is approved with effect from 20th October, 
2021:

	Lieutenant Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Ishari 
Madhushika Dissanayake, SLAMC (O/71629).

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
31st July, 2022.

12-91/4

No. 827 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of Temporary ranks approved by 
the Commander of the Army

The undermentioned Officers’ to be confirmed in the rank 
of Captain (Quartermaster) is approved with effect from the 
dates stated against their names:

1.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Wasala
Wanasinghe Mudiyanselage Prasanna Kumara
Wanasinghe, SLSC (O/66994) - 09th September, 
2014;

2.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Koongoda
Hettiarachchige Gamini Karunarathne, USP SLE
(O/69229) - 19th May, 2018.

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
27th July, 2022.
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No. 828 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of Temporary ranks approved by 
the Commander of the Army

The undermentioned Officers to be confirmed in the rank 
of Captain (Quartermaster) is approved  effect from the 
dates stated against their names:

1.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Kasthuri
Arachchilage Sugath Ekanayaka Wijayaweera,
USP GR (O/67612)  - 01st June, 2020;

2.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Apputhantrith
Arachchige Sarath Kumara, RSP GR (O/68096) -
01st June, 2020;

3.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Thenuwara
Badalge Saman Kumara, USP SLSC (O/69798) -
04th June, 2020;

4.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Aruna Shantha
Vitharana, USP SLAMC (O/69800) - 04th June,
2020;

5.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Warnakula
Dumith Priyan Mendis Wijenayake, SLEME
(O/69801) -04 June, 2020;

6.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Weesin
Mudiyanselage Upul Senarath Bandara, USP MI
(O/69803) - 04th June, 2020;

7.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Madura
Prasanga Waravita, SLE (O/69807) - 04th June,
2020;

8.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Liyanage
Sanath Chandrasiri, SLEME (O/69813) - 04th
June, 2020;

9.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Adhikarige
Gamini , USP SLE (O/69819) -04th June, 2020;

10.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Ashoka
Ilangasingha Herath, SLAMC (O/69822) - 04th
June, 2020;

11.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Dangaha
Gamaralalage Ravindra Karunasena, SLEME
(O/69823) - 04th June, 2020;

12.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Hewavitharana
Arachchilage Piyal Vitharana, SLAC (O/69824) -
04th June, 2020;

No. 829 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

THE Promotion of the undermentioned Officers’ to the rank 
of  Temporary Captain is approved with effect from the 
dates stated against their names:

1. Lieutenant	 Wilasinghe Gamage Thilina Bhathiya,
GW (O/68150)  - 01st June, 2019;

2. Lieutenant	 Paskuwal Fonsekage Akila Lakshan
Fonseka, GR (O/71366) - 23rd June, 2022;

3. Lieutenant	 Ileperumage Tharindu Saman
Chinthaka Perera, SLLI (O/71367) - 23rd June,
2022;

4. Lieutenant  Herath Mudiyanselage Dhanushka
Bandara Herath, SLAC (O/71635) -23rd June,
2022;

5. Lieutenant	 Randeni Withanage Suresh Bandara
Ekanayake, MIR (O/71636) - 23rd June, 2022;

6. Lieutenant	 Wijesekara Widana Pathirana Nipuna
Narendra, SLEME (O/71637) - 23 June, 2022;

13.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Sri Narayana
Narasingha Wijeraja Wijendra Gamladdalage
Premarathne , SLA (O/69825) - 04th June, 2020;

14.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Dissanayaka
Arachchilage Lalith Gunarathna, SLLI
(O/69832) - 04th June, 2020.

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
27th July, 2022.
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7. Lieutenant	 Rannulu Shehan Dinushka Madawa
De Soyza, SLA (O/71060) - 23rd June, 2022;

8. Lieutenant	 Agampodi Kasun Kosala Kaushalya
De Silva, SLLI (O/71061) - 23rd June, 2022;

9. Lieutenant Ranbandage Sameera Karunarathne ,
MIR (O/71062) - 23rd June, 2022;

10. Lieutenant	 Rajapaksha Mudiyanselage
Dhananjaya Shanaka Bandara, SF (O/71064) -
23rd June, 2022;

11. Lieutenant	H ewa Vitharanage Uthpala
Prabakara Hewavitharana, SLAC (O/71065) -
23rd June, 2022;

12. Lieutenant	 Polwaththe Gedara Chandima
Jayadesh Wijerathna, SLAOC (O/71066) - 23rd
June, 2022;

13. Lieutenant	 Premachandra Hewagamage
Anuradha Vimukthi Hewagama, VIR (O/71067) -
23rd June, 2022;

14. Lieutenant	 Jayasooriya Mudiyanselage Ayesh
Dushmantha Jayasooriya, GW (O/71068) - 23rd
June, 2022;

15. Lieutenant	 Nawinda Dimuth Rajapaksha, SLSR
(O/71070) - 23rd June, 2022;

16. Lieutenant Galedande Ekanayaka Mudiyanselage
Mahakubure Walawwe Chamendra Sampath
Bandara Ekanayake, SLASC (O/71071) - 23rd June,
2022;

17. Lieutenant Kankanige Lasith Chathuranga
Kankanige, GR (O/71072) - 23rd June, 2022;

18. Lieutenant Charaka Rajapaksha, MIR (O/71073) -
23rd June, 2022;

19. Lieutenant	 Ranpalu Hewagama Arosha Sugith
Ravindu Masinghe, SLLI (O/71074) - 23rd June,
2022;

20. Lieutenant	 Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Dhanushka
Suresh Rathnayake, GR (O/71075) - 23rd June,
2022;

21. Lieutenant	 Napagoda Arachchige Sagara
Sandaruwan Napagoda, SLA (O/71076) - 23rd
June, 2022;

22. Lieutenant Kariyakarawana Mahapatabadige
Vidanalage Thilanka Ferdinando, SLSR
(O/71077) - 23rd June, 2022;

23. Lieutenant Ranathunga Arachchige Gihan
Oshara Karunarathna, VIR (O/71078) - 23rd June,
2022;

24. Lieutenant Hashan Laksri Abeysiriwardhana, SLLI
(O/71080) - 23rd June, 2022;

25. Lieutenant	 Kahandage Sumudu Sameera Kahandage,
GR (O/71081) - 23rd June, 2022;

26. Lieutenant	 Kosma Pasindu Tharindra , SLSR
(O/71083) - 23rd June, 2022;

27. Lieutenant	 Maheepala Mudalige Imara
Maduranga Paris, SLSR (O/71287) - 23rd June,
2022;

28. Lieutenant Don Pasan Tharaka Ranasinghe, GW
(O/71286) - 23rd June, 2022;

29. Lieutenant	 Govini Thantrige Sachithra
Nadeeshani , SLAGSC (O/71289) - 23rd June, 2022;

30. Lieutenant	 Sooriyapperuma Arachchige Udara
Iranthi Sooriyapperuma, SLAGSC (O/71288) -
23rd June, 2022;

31. Lieutenant	H alahapperumage Madhuranga 
Jeewantha Fonseka, SLLI (O/71424) - 23rd June, 
2022;

32. Lieutenant Wickramasinghe Rathnayaka Dugganna
Mudiyanselage Kushan Wickramasinghe, MIR
(O/71284) - 23rd June, 2022;

33. Lieutenant Jayasekara Kankanam Pathiranage
Isuru, GR (O/71423) -23 June, 2022.

	H L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
27th July, 2022.

12-91/7
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No. 830 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

THE Promotion of the undermentioned Officers’ to the rank 
of  Temporary Captain is approved with effect from the 
dates stated against their names:

1. Lieutenant	 Godegama Kankanamlage Dona
Anuradha Sooryadevi Rathnasiri, CES (O/71427)
- 18th July, 2022;

2. Lieutenant	 Polwaththa Gallage Dimal Prasad
Dewaka Gallage, SLLI (O/71085)  - 16th September,
2022;

3. Lieutenant	 Adikari Mudiyanselage Hemantha
Mahesh Adikari, GW (O/71084)  - 16th September,
2022;

4. Lieutenant	 Anaththa Pathiranage Kavinda
Sampath Pathirana, GR (O/71638)  - 16th September,
2022;

5. Lieutenant	 Weerakoon Mudiyanselage Imantha
Lakshan Abeyrathna, MIR (O/71370)  - 16th
September, 2022;

6. Lieutenant	 Abeysinghe Mudiyanselage Dimuthu
Madushanka Senavirathna, GW (O/71371)  - 16th
September, 2022;

7. Lieutenant	H ewawasam Gamage Sasanka Irosh
Hewawasam, GR (O/71368)  - 16th September, 2022;

8. Lieutenant	 Rathnayake Arachchilage Jaliya
Nilnuwan Wijesena Rathnayake, VIR (O/71369)  -
16th September, 2022;

9. Lieutenant	 Ranasinghe Arachchige Don Hareen
Senura Ranasinghe, VIR (O/71086) - 16th
September, 2022;

10. Lieutenant	T hennakoon Mudiyanselage Thanne
Gedara Nuwan Madushanka Thennakoon, SF
(O/71087)  - 16th September, 2022;

11. Lieutenant	H urigolle Gedara Jayasri Keminda
Dheeranatha Pathiraja, SLA (O/71088)  - 16th
September, 2022;

12. Lieutenant	 Kariyawasam Masachchilage Pasan
Diluksha Kariyawasam, SLE (O/71089)  - 16th
September, 2022;

13. Lieutenant	H erath Mudiyanselage Paile Gedara
Upul Sandakalum Herath, MIR (O/71091) - 16th
September, 2022;

14. Lieutenant	 Ranathunga Mudiyanselage Nawala
Gedara Sudesh Lakmal Ranathunga, VIR
(O/71092) - 16th September, 2022;

15. Lieutenant	 Walallgodage Kavindu Gimhan
Wishwajith Karunathilaka, GR (O/71093) - 16th
September, 2022;

16. Lieutenant	 Pawulu Hewage Desh Sankalpa
Fernando, SLSC (O/71094) - 16th September, 2022;

17. Lieutenant	 Nissanka Arachchi Appuhamilage
Probodh Tharinda Nishshanka, GR (O/71096) -
16th September, 2022;

18. Lieutenant	 Rathnayakalage Don Diyan Gamitha
Rathnayake, SLSR (O/71097) - 16th September,
2022;

19. Lieutenant	T harindu Akash Pallawela, SLA 
(O/71098) - 16th September, 2022;

20. Lieutenant	H ewa Thanthirige Akitha Kavindra
Perera, SLA (O/71101) - 16th September, 2022;

21. Lieutenant	 Jayasooriya Liyanage Sithija
Sandaruwan Silva, GW (O/71102) - 16th September,
2022;

22. Lieutenant	 Vimukthi Kasun Tharanga
Ranasinghe, SLCMP (O/71103) - 16th September,
2022;

23. Lieutenant	 Megamuwage Dilshan Madhushanka
Megamuwage, GW (O/71104) - 16th September,
2022;

24. Lieutenant	 Adappa Godage Shehan Dilru Godage,
SLSR (O/71105) - 16th September, 2022;

25. Lieutenant	Y akada Kubure Gedara Roshan
Madushanka Chandrasiri, VIR (O/71106) - 16th
September, 2022;

26. Lieutenant	T horadeniya Gamlathge Isuru
Dhananjaya Dewshan Thoradeniya, SLSR
(O/71107) - 16th September, 2022;
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27. Lieutenant	 Umesh Ishara Wijesinghe, SLLI
(O/71641) - 16th September, 2022;

28. Lieutenant	T hennakoon Mudiyanselage Tharindu
Dharamakeerthi, SLLI (O/71109) - 16th September,
2022;

29. Lieutenant	 Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Chanaka
Prasanjith Rathnayake, CR (O/71110) - 16th
September, 2022;

30. Lieutenant	H ewa Aluthsahal Arachchilage
Lahiru Sanuka Saranga Aluthsahal Arachchi,
GR (O/71111) - 16th September, 2022;

31. Lieutenant	 Kirihettige Chamath Priyashan
Maduwantha Perera, GW (O/71113) - 16th
September, 2022;

32. Lieutenant	 Kulasinhalage Maleesha Shaminda
Perera, VIR (O/71116) - 16th September, 2022;

33. Lieutenant	 Gallath Ralalage Himal Jayanga
Anurasiri, SLSR (O/71117) - 16th September, 2022.

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
06th October, 2022.

12-91/8

No. 831 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

THE undermentioned Officers’ promotion to the rank of 
Temporary Captain (Quartermaster) is approved with effect 
from the dates stated against their names:

1. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Ranaweera 
Kodithuwakku Arachchige Aruna Champika, 
SLASC (O/69808) - 04th June, 2020;

2. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Jayakodi Arachchilage
Karunarathne, VIR (O/69817) - 04th June, 2020;

3. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Dehigaspitiyage Don
Ruwan Kumara Dehigaspitiya, SLAC (O/69854) -
26th September, 2020;

4. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Weerasangililage
Gedara Premarathne, SLAOC (O/67030) - 01st
June, 2021;

5. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Herath Mudiyanselage
Kumarasinghe Herath, SLSC (O/69828) - 01st
June, 2021;

6. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Kadigamuwa Hakuruge
Susantha Piyasiri, CES (O/70046) - 01st June, 2021;

7. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Wijesinghe 
Arachchilage Sugath Sanjaya Wijesinghe, SLLI 
(O/70156) - 29th April, 2022;

8. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Kodikara Arachchige
Upali, SLE (O/70199) - 29th April, 2022;

9. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Palle Gedara Sagara
Palansooriya, SLLI (O/69243) - 01st June, 2022;

10. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Nuwan Kumara
Punchihewa, SLEME (O/69972) - 01st June, 2022;

11. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Yakmedillage Sanath
Chandana Jayasooriya, SLE (O/70182) - 01st June,
2022;

12. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Amarasinghage
Priyantha Sarath Chandrasiri, GR (O/70207) -
01st June, 2022;

13. Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Jayasundara
Mudiyanselage Keerthi Dayananda, SLEME
(O/70214) - 01st June, 2022.

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
06th October, 2022.
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No. 832 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

THE Promotion of the undermentioned Officers’ to the rank 
of Lieutenant is approved with effect from the dates stated 
against their names:

1. Second Lieutenant Mallawa Thanthrige Mishel
Nathasha, CES (O/70970)  - 11th May, 2018;

2. Second Lieutenant Dukganna Ralalage Kalana
Sanchitha Wijerathna, SLE (O/71205)  - 11th May,
2018;

3. Second Lieutenant Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage
Winoth Danuka Nadeeshan Rathnayaka, CES
(O/71336)  - 16th March, 2019;

4. Second Lieutenant Ridmika Sasith Ginige, SLEME
(O/71797)  - 23rd March, 2020;

5. Second Lieutenant Meddegoda Gedara Salinda
Janaka Bandara Meddegoda, SLEME (O/71798)  - 
23rd March, 2020;

6. Second Lieutenant Jakodige Chamindu Kithmini,
SLAC (O/71799)  - 23rd March, 2020;

7. Second Lieutenant Adrian Dhanuka Sahan
Nimalrathne, CES (O/71800)  - 23rd March, 2020;

8. Second Lieutenant Sembukuttige Naveen Sapumal
De Silva, MIR (O/71801)  - 23rd March, 2020;

9. Second Lieutenant Piyumi Anushka Chandra
Wathawana Vithanage, SLASC (O/71802)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

10. Second Lieutenant Munipurage Ushan Akalanka,
MIR (O/71803)  - 23rd March, 2020;

11. Second Lieutenant Jayanetti Koralalage Chamil
Kushantha Jayanetti, SLSC (O/71804)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

12. Second Lieutenant Happawana Vithanage
Shamintha Dilshan, SLEME (O/71805)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

13. Second Lieutenant Rohitha Dinesh Kumara
Sikurajapathi, SLSC (O/71806)  - 23rd March, 2020;

14. Second Lieutenant Kurukulasuriya Kavinda
Nimantha Fernando, SF (O/71807)  - 23rd March,
2020;

15. Second Lieutenant	 Kondasinghe Lankeshwara
Welgamathenne Gedara Thilina Kaushalya,
SLEME (O/71808)  - 23rd March, 2020;

16. Second Lieutenant Herath Mudiyanselage Nipun
Kavinda Herath, SLLI (O/71809)  - 23rd March,
2020;

17. Second Lieutenant Savishan Nandakumara, MIR
(O/71810)  - 23rd March, 2020;

18. Second Lieutenant Hewa Pathiranage Udara
Dananjaya Dayarathne, SLEME (O/71811)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

19. Second Lieutenant Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage
Dimuth Sisira Kumara, SF (O/71812)  - 23rd March,
2020;

20. Second Lieutenant Wanasingha Pathirage Kolitha
Dushmantha Nandasiri, GR (O/71813)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

21. Second Lieutenant Wickramasinghe Gamachchige
Sajith Madhusanka, SLEME (O/71814)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

22. Second Lieutenant Weeringawaththe Gedara
Dhyan Nimesha Weerasiri, SF (O/71815)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

23. Second Lieutenant Hewa Elapathage Ashmika
Ranjula, SLEME (O/71816)  - 23rd March, 2020;

24. Second Lieutenant Ganga Brahmana Ekanayake
Mudiyanselage Sachinthaka Chandimal Bandara
Ekanayake, SLEME (O/71817)  - 23rd March, 2020;

25. Second Lieutenant Didula Nilan Wijesooriya, SLE
(O/71818)  - 23rd March, 2020;

26. Second Lieutenant Loku Kaluthotage Salanka
Dilshan, SLSR (O/71819)  - 23rd March, 2020;

27. Second Lieutenant Disanayake Mudiyanselage
Vikum Thinidu Dissanayake, SLEME (O/71820)  -
23rd March, 2020;
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28. Second Lieutenant Solanga Arachchilage Don
Sashen Malaka, SLE (O/71821)  - 23rd March,
2020;

29. Second Lieutenant Saveen Hansaka Ganegama,
SLEME (O/71822)  - 23rd March, 2020;

30. Second Lieutenant Anthony Hemaka Hiranya
Ranaweera, SLEME (O/71824)  - 23rd March, 2020;

31. Second Lieutenant Dissanayaka Appuhamilage
Linethra Nadeeshan Dissanayaka, CES (O/71825)
- 23rd March, 2020;

32. Second Lieutenant Abeygunawardhana Korale
Kankanamge Nipun Nethsara, CES (O/71826)  -
23rd March, 2020;

33. Second Lieutenant Hewa Pathiranage Buddhi
Krishan Hewapathirana, SLEME (O/71827)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

34. Second Lieutenant Thirimadeera Amalka
Niroshana Mendis, CR (O/71828)  - 23rd March,
2020;

35. Second Lieutenant Panikka Mudiyanselage Piniwan
Wasantha Thilakarathne, SLEME (O/71829)  -
23rd March, 2020;

36. Second Lieutenant Ranasingha Hamillage Kasun
Dananjaya Ranasingha, SLA (O/71830)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

37. Second Lieutenant Nakandalage Don Sanjeewa
Viraj, SLSC (O/71831)  - 23rd March, 2020;

38. Second Lieutenant Wickrama Arachchige Buddika
Dananjaya Wickramaarachchi, GW (O/71832)  -
23rd March, 2020;

39. Second Lieutenant Don Ranasinghe Arachchige
Praharshani Jananika Ranasinghe, CES (O/71833)
- 23rd March, 2020;

40. Second Lieutenant Thirimadura Sanduni Rashmika,
CES (O/71834)  - 23rd March, 2020;

41. Second Lieutenant Meegahawathage Sreeni Sajana
De Silva, CES (O/71835)  - 23rd March, 2020;

42. Second Lieutenant Hakmana Parana Liyanage
Sadupa Dhananjaya Gunawardena, SLSC
(O/71836)  - 23rd March, 2020;

43. Second Lieutenant Tharaka Niroshan Ruwan
Pathirana, SLSC (O/71837)  - 23rd March, 2020;

44. Second Lieutenant Edirisinghe Arachchige
Tharindu Kavindra Edirisinghe, SLSC (O/71838)
- 23rd March, 2020;

45. Second Lieutenant Herath Pathiranage Asiri
Devinda Herath, SLSC (O/71839)  - 23rd March,
2020;

46. Second Lieutenant Hewawasam Puwakpitiyage Don
Nadun Rashmika, SLA (O/71840)  - 23rd March,
2020;

47. Second Lieutenant Dolapihilla Wawulagala
Gedara Manoj Lakshan Dissanayake, SLSC
(O/71841)  - 23rd March, 2020;

48. Second Lieutenant Edirisooriya Arachchiralalage
Krishan Madhuwantha Edirisooriya, SLLI
(O/71842)  - 23rd March, 2020;

49. Second Lieutenant Prabash Madhura 
Gunawardene, VIR (O/71843)  - 23rd March, 2020;

50. Second Lieutenant Shavendra Yasas Makavita, SLA 
(O/71844)  - 23rd March, 2020;

51. Second Lieutenant Ishan Asanka Wickramathunga,
GR (O/71845)  - 23rd March, 2020;

52. Second Lieutenant Dambagolle Gedara Don
Akalanka Upulitha Dambagolla, SLSC (O/71846)
- 23rd March, 2020;

53. Second Lieutenant Sudirikkuge Dulaj Deshan
Thenuka Silva, SLAC (O/71847)  - 23rd March,
2020;

54. Second Lieutenant Ranhotige Lakitha Kanishka,
SLCMP (O/71848)  - 23rd March, 2020;

55. Second Lieutenant Rajapaksha Mudiyanselage
Thilan Shanaka Rajapaksha, CR (O/71849)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

56. Second Lieutenant Dissanayaka Mudiyanselage
Denuwan Chandana Karunarathna, MI (O/71850)
- 23rd March, 2020;

57. Second Lieutenant Abaddayalage Lahiru Pradeep
Karunarathna, GW (O/71851)  - 23rd March, 2020;

58. Second Lieutenant Chamath Kavinda Molagoda,
SLSR (O/71852)  - 23rd March, 2020;
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59. Second Lieutenant Athureliyage Mithun Amarajith
Athureliyage, VIR (O/71853)  - 23rd March, 2020;

60. Second Lieutenant Weerasinhe Rathnayake
Mudiyanselage Chathura Sahan Ranathunga,
MIR (O/71854)  - 23rd March, 2020;

61. Second Lieutenant Pivithuru Madhara
Bandarigoda, SLAOC (O/71855)  - 23rd March,
2020;

62. Second Lieutenant Alankarage Nelaka Gayantha
Ranasinghe, SLSR (O/71856)  - 23rd March, 2020;

63. Second Lieutenant Punchi Naidelage Pradeep
Sadaruwan Chandrarathna, CR (O/71857)  - 23rd
March, 2020;

64. Second Lieutenant Galappaththi Arachchilage
Yasitha Ashan Thisara, CR (O/71858) - 23rd March,
2020;

65. Second Lieutenant Hetti Arachchi Kankanamlage
Madura Sangeeth Gunathilake, SLSC (O/71859)
- 23rd March, 2020;

66. Second Lieutenant Alahakoon Mudiyanselage
Sachin Devinda Jayasinghe, SLAGSC (O/71860)  -
23rd March, 2020;

67. Second Lieutenant Meepitiye Ralalege Gedara
Chethiya Priyankara Rathnayake, GR (O/71861)  -
23rd March, 2020;

68. Second Lieutenant Kebadduwa Gamage Sawan
Sudaraka Gamage, GW (O/71863)  - 23rd March,
2020;

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
04th October, 2022.

12-91/10

No. 833 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

The undermentioned Medical Officers’ promotion to the 
rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from dates stated 
against their names:

1. Second Lieutenant Mahadurage Madushani Perera
Gunatilaka, SLAMC (O/71631) - 12th March, 2021;

2. Second Lieutenant Ranasinghe Weerakkody
Channa Kamal Ranga, SLAMC (O/70397) - 12th
August, 2021.

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
04th July, 2022.

12-91/11

No. 834 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

The undermentioned Medical Officers’ promotion to the 
rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from dates stated 
against their names:

1. Second Lieutenant Pitigala Kankanamge Hashini
Imaya Madushani, SLAMC (O/71632) - 12th March,
2021;

2. Second Lieutenant Meegahakumbure Gedara
Nayomi Nimasha Senarath Bandara, SLAMC
(O/71271) - 01st February, 2022.

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
31st July, 2022.

12-91/12
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No. 835 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

THE undermentioned Medical Officer’s promotion to 
the rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from 01st 
February, 2022:

1. Second Lieutenant Biyanwilage Don Chamani
Methma Biyanwila, SLAMC (O/71783);

2. Second Lieutenant Wijethunge Lokupitupage Dona
Nadini Nayanalochani Wijethunge, SLAMC
(O/71776);

3. Second Lieutenant Amila Shalinda Amarasinghe,
SLAMC (O/71764);

4. Second Lieutenant Janani Thathsara Kariyawasam,
SLAMC (O/71781);

5. Second Lieutenant Thennakoon Appuhamilage
Sachintha Rukshan Thennakoon, SLAMC
(O/71758);

6. Second Lieutenant Kalawila Withanage Anupa
Nandun Karunathilake, SLAMC (O/71755);

7. Second Lieutenant Yapa Puwakdandawage
Vimukthi Achintha, SLAMC (O/71772);

8. Second Lieutenant Karunathilaka 
Muhandiramlage Kalana Sampath 
Karunathilaka, SLAMC (O/71756);

9. Second Lieutenant Rajapaksha Walimuni
Mudiyanselage Kavinda Sandun Lokubandara,
SLAMC (O/71759);

10. Second Lieutenant Liyanagama Kankanamge
Sajitha Madhusanka, SLAMC (O/71770);

11. Second Lieutenant Dileepa Dinuka Jayawardena,
SLAMC (O/71757);

12. Second Lieutenant Galahitiya Vidana Gamage
Shashini Malshini Kumari Hettiarachchi,
SLAMC (O/71780);

13. Second Lieutenant Kandangamuwe Gedara
Santhusha Heshan Karunajeewa, SLAMC
(O/71766);

14. Second Lieutenant Panakaduwa Gamage Shashika
Sandaruwan, SLAMC (O/71775);

15. Second Lieutenant	I shara Muthulak Hewa
Pathiranage, SLAMC (O/71763);

16. Second Lieutenant Didumi Vishvani Panangala
Gamage, SLAMC (O/71779);

17. Second Lieutenant Dilshan Udyoga 
Samarawickrama, SLAMC (O/71765);

18. Second Lieutenant Galabada Hewage Pasan
Saranga, SLAMC (O/71754);

19. Second Lieutenant Lakshman Dissanayaka
Pathiranage Tharindu Nirmal, SLAMC (O/71761);

20. Second Lieutenant Benthara Arachchige Irandi
Chathurika Hansamali, SLAMC (O/71784);

21. Second Lieutenant Muthukuda Arachchige
Pathumali Nimalka Perera, SLAMC (O/71777);

22. Second Lieutenant Thelge Dushara Nisal
Nidukanie Dissanayake, SLAMC (O/71786);

23. Second Lieutenant Isuru Niranjan 
Warnakulasuriya, SLAMC (O/71762);

24. Second Lieutenant Withana Pathirannahalage
Hesara Sasmitha Pathirana, SLAMC (O/71760)  -
23rd March, 2020;

25. Second Lieutenant Kevitiyagala Vithanage Vipuli
Kanchana Senadheera, SLAMC (O/71778);

H L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
05th October, 2022.

12-91/13



1660

No. 836 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

THE promotion of the undermentioned Officers’ to the rank 
of Lieutenant is approved with effect from 07th July, 2022:

1. Second Lieutenant Kankani Pathirage Dona Iresha
Madushani, SLASC (O/71224);

2. Second Lieutenant Ranhoti Pejlage Saduni
Ruwanthika Wijerathne, SLAOC (O/71225);

3. Second Lieutenant Hennedige Pavithra Sewwandi
Soysa, SLCMP (O/71227);

4. Second Lieutenant Wejesundara Mudiyanselage
Raveena Dilrukshi, SLCMP (O/71229);

5. Second Lieutenant Madurapperuma Arachchilage
Kaumadi Prismi Keshani Madurapperuma, SLAOC
(O/71231);

6. Second Lieutenant Ranathunga Disanayakalage
Nadeesha Sewwandi Disanayake, SLCMP
(O/71233);

7. Second Lieutenant Anthoni Dura Pathum Nimni
Sathsarani Silva, SLAWC (O/71226);

8. Second Lieutenant Naotunna Gamage Dineshi
Amandi, SLAWC (O/71228);

9. Second Lieutenant Jinathul Hadeema Ahamad,
SLAWC (O/71230);

10. Second Lieutenant Dona Sashini Ravindi Apasinghe,
SLAWC (O/71232);

11. Second Lieutenant Nanayakkara Wasam Weragoda
Vidanelage Senuri Kavindaya, SLAWC (O/71235);

12. Second Lieutenant Agalla Dewage Prabodani
Kawshalya Kumari Perera, SLAWC (O/71237);

13. Second Lieutenant Ekanayaka Mudiyanselage
Kithmini Gayanjana Ekanayaka, SLAWC
(O/71238).

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
27th July, 2022.

12-91/14

No. 837 of 2022

sri  lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

THE undermentioned Medical Officer’s promotion to the 
rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from 01st August, 
2022:

		  Second Lieutenant Jayalath Mudiyanselage Nipuna 
Isuru Gunatilake, SLAMC (O/71247).

	H  L V M Liyanage RWP RSP ndu,
Lieutenant General,

Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters,
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
28th October, 2022.

12-91/15
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Government Notifications
Registrar   General’s   Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/27/2020/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

01.	I , hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

02.	T he Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the
Registrar of Lands Mathara, 02.12.2022 to 16.12.2022 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working
days.

03. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar
General not later than 23.12.2022. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence
relies upon the support of it.

P. S. P.  Abeywardhana,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla,
24th November, 2022.

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 281 of volume 402 of	 All that allotment of land marked   01. Deed of Gift No. 2570 written and
Division A of the Land Registry		 Lot No. 01 depicted in the land		 attested by L. Vithanachchi, Notary
Matara in Mathara District.		 called “Pahala Kelle Athmaga alias 		 Public on 28.10.2003.

		Kirala Gaha Koratuwa” in the Plan	
		No. 979A and dated 24.05.1997 	
		made by N. Wijeweera, Licensed 		
		Surveyor of the land in the Kadawath		
Sathara Pattu in Thalpavila in the  
District of Mathara, Southern Province
bounded on the,

North by	 :	Lot 1A the above mentioned
that the Surveyor N. Wijeweera’s 

			 Plan No. 979A;	
East by 	 :	Ela;		
South by	 :	Lot 2 and 3, the above 

mentioned that the Surveyor 
N. Wijeweera’s Plan No. 979A;

West by	 :	Main Road from Mathara to 
			Y atiyana; 

Extent  	 :	00A., 00R., 12.80P.

12-155
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Registrar   General’s   Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/59/2022/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

01.	I , hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

02.	T he Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the
Registrar of Lands Kundasale, 02.12.2022 to 16.12.2022 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working
days.

03. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar
General not later than 23.12.2022. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence
relies upon the support of it.

P. S. P.  Abeywardhana,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla,
24th November, 2022.

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 153 of volume 104 of S	 All that allotment of land Lot No. 07   	 01.	 Deed of transfer No. 658 written
Division of the Land Registry		 in Plan No. 1088 and dated 13.11.1990		 and attested by Swarna Karaliyadda,
Kundasale Kandy District.		 made by N. D. B. Weththawa, Licensed 		 Notary Public on 29.08.1992.

		Surveyor of the land called	
		“Babilathanne Hena alias Waththa” 	
		situated at Medagammadda in the  		
		Palispaththu Pattu Nagenahira Korale in the		
District of Kandy, Central Province and 
bounded on the,	

North by	 :	W. G. Sundara owned  
Bathalawathte Hena;	

East by :	Lot 06;	
South by	 :	Lot 09;			
West by	 :	Lot 08; 
Extent  :	00A., 00R., 30P.

12 - 154
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Registrar   General’s   Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/26/2020/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

01.	I , hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

02.	T he Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the
Registrar of Lands Mathara, 02.12.2022 to 16.12.2022 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working
days.

03. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar
General not later than 23.12.2022. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence
relies upon the support of it.

P. S. P.  Abeywardhana,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla,
24th November, 2022.

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 166 of volume 523 of	 All that allotment of land marked   01. Deed of Partition No. 3342 written
Division A of the Land Registry		 Lot No. 2 depicted in the land 		 and attested by L. Vithanachchi, Notary
South in Mathara District.		 called “Palapol Koratuwa alias 		 Public on 15.06.2008.

		Sami Kokila Kalla alias Samige
		Kalla” in the Plan No. 76/2007	 02. Deed of Declaration No. 2757
		and dated 17.08.17 made by 		 written and attested by I. P.
		S. K. P. Silwa, Licensed Surveyor 		 Gamachchige, Notary Public on
		of the land in the Kadawath Sathara		 28.08.2013.
Pattu in Hiththatiya Madaraum Para 
in the District of Mathara, Southern
Province and bounded on the,	

North by	 :	Road;		
East by :	Lot No. 3;		
South by	 :	Lot No. 4;		
West by	 :	Lot No. 1; 
Extent  :	00A., 00R., 15.1P.
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Folio No. 168 of volume 523 of	 All that allotment of land marked   01. Deed of Partition No. 3342 written
Division A of the Land Registry		 Lot No. 4 depicted in the land 		 and attested by L. Vithanachchi, Notary
Southern in Mathara District.		 called “Palapol Koratuwa alias 		 Public on 15.06.2008.

		Sami Kokila Kalla alias Samige
		Kalla” in the Plan No. 76/2007	 02. Deed of Declaration No. 4196
		and dated 17.08.2007 made by 		 written and attested by
		S. K. P. Silva, Licensed Surveyor 		 L. Vithanachchige, Notary Public
		of the land in the Kadawath Sathara		 on 28.10.2013.
		Pattu Hiththatiya Madaraum 			
Para in the District of Mathara, 
Southern Province and bounded 
on the,

North by	 :	Lot 1, 2 and 3;		
East by :	Road;		
South by	 :	Walauwaththa alias

Watagedara Waththa
			 alias Kongaha Waththa;		

West by	 :	Pathegamage Waththa; 
Extent  :	00A., 00R., 18.5P.

12 - 153

Registrar   General’s   Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/19/2020/Re/Con.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

01.	I  hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Lands described in
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

02.	T he Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the
Registrar of Lands Aththanagalla, 02.12.2022 to 16.12.2022 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all
working days.

03. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar
General not later than 23.12.2022. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence
relies upon the support of it.

P. S. P.  Abeywardhana,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla,
24th November, 2022.

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers
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Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Extract bearing ó./óß 08/13 of 	 All that allotment of land marked    01. .ï/m%/óß/522 and 21.04.1984 grant
the Land Registry Aththanagalla		 Lot 26 depicted in Plan No. uq. ms. .ï.		 and presented by the Secretary to the 
in Gampaha District.		 616 made by the Surveyor General 		 president.

		of the land situated at Makkanigoda	
		in Mirigama Divisional Secretariat 	
		Division in Grant No. .ï/m%/óß/522		
		dated 21.04.1984 in 14A, Bothale 

		I halagama Grama Niladhari Division
		in the District of Gampaha bounded 		
on the,

North by	 :	Lot Nos. 24, 22 and 27;	
East by :	Lot Nos. 27 and 31;		
South by	 :	Lot Nos. 31 and 25;			
West by	 :	Lot Nos. 25 and 24; 
Extent  :	00A., 00R., 00P. Hec. 0.622.

12 - 152

Registrar   General’s   Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/39/2020/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

01.	I , hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

02.	T he Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the
Registrar of Lands Kurunegala, 02.12.2022 to 16.12.2022 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working
days.

03. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar
General not later than 23.12.2022. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence
relies upon the support of it.

P. S. P.  Abeywardhana,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla,
24th November, 2022.
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Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Extract bearing LDO B 47/1085/ All that allotment of land marked   01. l=re/m%/18484 & 24.07.1987 grant
87 of the Land Registry Kurunagala		 Lot 2989 made by the Surveyor		 and presented by the Secretary to the
in Kurunagala District.		 General of the land called “Kubukgolla” president.

		situated at Karalanda in Polpithigama	
		Divisional 	Secretariat Division in 
		99 Karalankadawala Grama Niladhari		
		Division in the District of Kurunagala		
		bounded on the,

North by	 :	Lot No. 144 Lot No. 145 1/2;	
East by :	Lot No. 143;		
South by	 :	Lot No. 146;			
West by	 :	Lot No. 149; 
Extent  :	Hec. 0.776.

12 - 151

Registrar   General’s   Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/72/2022/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

01.	I , hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

02.	T he Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the
Registrar of Lands Homagama, 02.12.2022 to 16.12.2022 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working
days.

03. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar
General not later than 23.12.2022. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim is made must be clearly and
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence
relies upon the support of it.

P. S. P.  Abeywardhana,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla,
24th November, 2022.
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Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 477 of volume 193 of 	 All that allotment of land marked   01. Deed of Transfer No. 22792 written
G Division of the Land Registry		 Lot No. 01 in Plan No. 5840 dated		 and attested by W. M. P. Wijesundara,
Homagama Colombo District.		 27.09.1975 made by D. P. A. Jayasinghe, 		 Notary Public on 28.09.1975.

		Licensed Surveyor of the land called  	
		“Thaldiyawala Kumbura” situated at 		
		Athurugiriya in the Palle Pattu Hewagam 
		Korale in the District of Colombo,  
		Western Province and bounded on the,

North by	 :	Canal;	
East by :	Portion of this Land;		
South by	 :	Portion of this Land			
West by	 :	Canal
Extent  :	00A., 01R., 34P.

12 - 150

Registrar   General’s   Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/82/2022/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

01.	I , hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

02.	T he Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the
Registrar of Lands Delkanda, 02.12.2022 to 16.12.2022 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working
days.

03. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar
General not later than 23.12.2022. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim is made must be clearly and
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence
relies upon the support of it.

P. S. P.  Abeywardhana,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla,
24th November, 2022.
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Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 291 of volume 432 of 	 All that allotment of land marked   01. Deed of Transfer No. 452 written
M Division of the Land Registry		 Lot No. F depicted in the land called		 attested by S. L. Moonesinghe,
Delkanda in Colombo District.		 “Ambhagaha Kumbura” in the land 		 Notary Public on 24.03.1942.

		in the Palle Pattu Salpiti Korale in  	
		Gangodawila in the District of Colombo, 02.	 Deed of Transfer No. 8086
		Western Province and bounded on the,		 written and attested by D. R. De

S. Abhayanayake, Notary Public
on 17.02.1946.

		North by	 :	Millaga deniya and Lot E
				 of the same land;	 03. Deed of Mortgage No. 2635 written

East by 	 :	 By Owita marked Lot X;		 and attested by A. H. Senaviratne,
South by	 :	 J of Lausia deniya Owita and		 Notary Public on 14.04.1946.

				 Lot G and H of the same land;			
West by	 :	 part of same field and	 04. Deed of Gift No. 133 written and

				 depa-ela;		 attested by M. A. D. Alwis, Notary
Extent  	 :	 00A., 03R., 12.28P. Public on 30.10.1960.

05. Deed of Gift No. 134 written and
attested by M. A. D. Alwis, Notary
Public on 30.10.1960.

12 - 149

Registrar   General’s   Department

My No.: RG/NB/11/2/33/2018/msgq$ie.

Notice under the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

01.	I , hereby give notice under section 04 of the land registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land
Register folios, particulars of which appear in column 1 of the schedule hereto, affecting the Land described in
column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in column 3 of the said schedule.

02.	T he Provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the
Registrar of Lands Negombo, 02.12.2022 to 16.12.2022 between the hours of 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on all working
days.

03. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar
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General not later than 23.12.2022. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

P. S. P.  Abeywardhana,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla,
24th November, 2022.

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 41 of volume 347 of 	 All that allotment of land marked   01. Deed of Gift No. 26087 written and
Division C of the Land Registry		 Lot No. B3, B4, B5 in Plan No. 3265P		 attested by J. Aberuwan, Notary,
Negombo in Negombo District.		 and dated 28.03.1925 made by  		 Notary Public on 24.09.1965.

J. C. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of
the depicted in the land called 02. Deed of Transfer No. 314 written
“Ambhagaha Waththa” in the land attested by W. S. D. S. Abhaya-

		 in the Dasiya Pattu Aluthkuru Korale		 -gunasekara, Notary Public on
		in Kurana, Katunayake in the District		 12.11.1977.
		of Negombo, Western Province and 
		bounded on the,

		North by	 :	Lot B2 of the same land;
East by 	 :	 Estate of the Heirs of N. David

				F  ernando, deceased;		
South by	 :	 Estate of the Heirs of Hendri

				 Salgadu, deceased;			
West by	 :	 Lot B1;	
Extent  	 :	 00A., 00R., 18.36P. 

Folio No. 53 of volume 349 of 	 All that allotment of land marked Lot   03. Deed of Transfer No. 921 written
Division C of the Land Registry		 No. B1 depicted in the land called		 and attested by A. E. Rosa, Notary
Negombo in Negombo District.		 “Ambhagaha Waththa” in the land in		 Public on 31.03.1934.

		the Dasiya Pattu Aluthkuru Korale  	
		in Kurana, Katunayake in the	 04. Deed of Transfer No. 7523 written
		District of Negombo, Western Province		 and attested by D. C. E. V.
		and bounded on the,		 Karunarathne, Notary Public on

16.02.1958.
		North by	 :	Lot B2;	
		East by 	 :	Lot B2	 05. Deed of Gift No. 26087 written
South by	 :	 Rest of Lot B1 and Rest of			 and attested by J. Abheruwan,

				 this Land named as Lot A;		 Notary Public on 24.09.1965.
West by	 :	 Rest of this land named as

				 Lot A;	 06. Deed of Transfer No. 314 written
Extent  	 :	 00A., 00R., 15P.		 and attested by W. S. D. S.

Abhayagunasekara, Notary
Public on 12.11.1977.
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	 Particulars of Damaged	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
 Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 55 of volume 349 of 	 All that allotment of land marked in the   01. Deed of Gift No. 26047 written and

Division C of the Land Registry		 land called “Ambhagaha Waththa” in the		 attested by J. Abheruwan, Notary

Negombo in Negombo District.		 land in the Dasiya Pattu Aluthkuru Korale		 Public on 20.09.1965.

		in Kurana, Katunayake in the District 	

		of Negombo, Western Province and 	 02. Deed of Transfer No. 242 written

		bounded on the,		 and attested by D. F. D.

North by	 :	 Palihawadanage Dumingu;		 Jayawardhana, Notary Public on

				F ernandoo’s Northern Part				 28.07.1971.

				 of Ambagahawaththa North;	

East by 	 :	 Ambagahawaththa Lot B2,

				 B3, B4 and B5 bearing part;		

South by	 :	 Land belonging to the heirs of

				H enry Salgado and to the heirs

				 of David Fernando owned land;		

West by	 :	 Road;		

Extent  	 :	 00A., 02R., 10P. 			

12 - 148

Pilgrimages  Ordinance

In terms of the regulations published in the Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka No. 2126/42 dated 

27th of March, 2019 under the Section 2 of the Pilgrimages Ordinance (Chapter 175), it is hereby notified that the Cultural 

Festival 2023 of Beralapanathara Galbokka Selagiri Maha Viharaya of Divisional Secretariat, Pasgoda Matara District, 

Southern Province will be held from 04th of January to 08th of January, 2023.

Madumathi M. Rathnayake,

Divisional Secretary,

Pasgoda.

At Divisional Secretariat, Pasgoda,

October, 2022.

12-97
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Revenue & Expenditure Returns

UNIVERSITY  OF  JAFFNA, SRI LANKA

Financial Statements of the University of Jaffna for the year ended 31st December, 2021

We attach herewith a complete set of financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2021 together with 
Supplementary information pertaining to the same and the Trial Balance as at 31st December, 2021. These have been 
prepared in the form and contents specified by he UGC Financial Circulars in compliance with Sri Lanka Public Sector 
Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) and also in terms of Section 106(1) and 107(1) (b) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 
and the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971.

In preparing the Financial Statement we complied with the financial regulations, rules and procedures laid down 
by the University Grants Commission and proper controls systems have been maintained to ensure propriety of transactions 
and efficiency in expenditure. To the best of our knowledge, the financial statements in respect of the year 2021 have been 
prepared satisfactorily to exhibit a true and fair view of the financial position, performance and cash flows of the University.

The Income and Expenditure of the University of Jaffna, Sri Lanka, for the year ended 31st December, 2021 
were Rs. 7,311,682,439 and Rs. 5,061,653,854 respectively including financial assistance to the student. The Income over 
expenditure for the year was Rs. 2,250,028,585 compared to the (Rs. 966,484,640) previous year.

The Income and Expenditure for the year under review compared with the previous year are summarized below.

Total Income 2021 2020
Government Grant – Recurrent 3,879,000,000 3,567,000,000
Capital Grant and Donation 3,172,139,155 -
Financial Assistance Received for students 128,516,000 92,936,000
University Development Fund - 46,500,000
Net Income/(Expenses) from other Activities 77,986,561 (1,814,359)
(Restricted Fund)
Other Income 54,040,722 45,239,794
Total Income for the Year 7,311,682,439 3,749,861,435
Total Expenditure
Total Operating Expenditure 3,823,262,093 3,673,114,022
Financial Assistance to the students 128,516,000 92,936,000
Depreciation 1,065,410,856 802,113,342
Provision for Gratuity 43,966,568 148,142,337
Net Losses and write off 498,337 40,374
Total Expenditure 5,061,653,854 4,716,346,075
Income over Expenditure/(Expenditure over Income) 2,250,028,585 (966,484,640)

Capital Expenditure Detail Summary
Capital Grant Recommended by National Budget 500,000,000 373,000,000
Capital Grant Released by Treasury 449,350,000 373,000,000
Special Grant Received from UGC ) Others
Grant for Establishment of Faculty of Technology 66,000,000 50,500,000
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Total Income 2021 2020
Strengthening “State of the Art Library” and  IT Centre 28,286,087 40,000,000
Staff Quarters 1,000,000 4,000,000
Tsunami Project 37,821,474 75,000,000
Fund for IT Infrastructure for online Teaching and Learning 20,000,000 -
Additional Student Intake – AHEAD Fund 137,000,000 -
Other Grants 40,972,090 56,500,000
Total Capital Expenditure 780,429,651 599,000,000

The Financial Statements for the year 2021 have been received and recommended by the Special Audit Committee 
meeting held on 25th February, 2022 and the Council approval obtained at its 462nd meeting held on 27th February, 2022.

The Financial Statements for the year 2021 will be published in the Government Gazette in terms of Section 109 of 
the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 on receipt of the Audit report.

Prof. S. Srisatkunarajah,
Vice Chancellor,
University of Jaffna,
Accounting Officer,
27.02.2022.

Copy:	 Secretary, Ministry of Finance.
Secretary, Ministry of Educaion.
Chairman, University Grants Commission.
Secretary, University Grants Commission.
Director General, Department of National Budget.
Accountant, University Grants Commission.
Chief Internal Auditor, University Grants Commission.
Superintendent of Audit, National Audit Sub Office University of Jaffna.
Asst. Internal Auditor, University of Jaffna.

UNIVERSITY OF JAFFNA

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December, 2021

Description Notes 31st December, 2021 31st December, 2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash 
equivalents 04 49,714,802,89 63,259,328.16

Trade and Other 
Receivables 05 501,462,788.03 560,069,105.63

Inventories/Stocks 06 35,374,539.52 38,946,480.16
Short Term Investments 07 924,405,730.27 734,047,883.00
Total Current Assets 1,510,957,860.71 1,396,322,796.95
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Description Notes 31st December, 2021 31st December, 2020
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Non Current Assets
Long Term Investments 08 459,185,592.04 422,575,852.07
Property, Plant and 
Equipment 09 12,882,393,923.84 10,429,396,084.16

Work in Progress 10 1,094,655,281.82 1,372,214,601.21
Total Non Current Assets 14,436,234,797.70 12,224,186,537.44
Total Assets 15,947,192,658.41 13,620,509,334.39

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables 11 231,192,677.78 213,599,814.85
Accrued Expenses 12 40,422,264.05 121,818,134.37
Self Financing Courses 
and Projects 13 303,704,994.84 246,275,699.07

Total Current Liabilities 575,319,936.67 581,693,648.29

Non Current Liabilities
Payables 14 10,338,258.33 16,119,362.82
Provisions for Gratuity 1,068,211,918.28 1,024,245,349.93
Restricted Fund 15 1,228,948,056.70 1,157,276,736.97
Total Non Current 
Liabilities

2,307,498,233.31 2,197,641,449.72

Total Liabilities 2,882,818,169.98 2,779,335,098.01
Total Assets/Equity 13,064,374,488.43 10,841,174,236.38

Assets/Equity
Accumulaed Fund 
(Capital Grant) 16

13,198,553,047.33 13,157,580,956.94

Accumulated Surplus/
Deficit 16A (1,077,823,927.04) (3,268,503,046.22)

Total Assets/Equity 12,120,729,120.29 9,889,077,910.72

Reserve

General Reserve 17 (1,283,056,705.43) (1,259,896,729.64)
Bond Obligation Reserve 18 225,073,053.40 210,346,035.13

Net Revaluation - 
Reserve 18A 2,001,571,160.17 2,001,571,160.17

Capital Reserve 57,860.00 57,860.00

Total Reserve 943,645,368.14 952,096,325.66
Total Net Assets/Equity 13,064,374,488.43 10,841,174,236.38
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The Accounting policies and notes on page 09 to 22 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
These Financial statements have been prepared and presented in compliance with the University Act, No. 16 of 1978, applicable 
Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards. (SLPSAS), and other rules and regulations prevailing in the University System.

Mr. K. Sureshkumar,	 Mr. V. Kandeeapan,
Bursar.	 Registrar.

The Members of the Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. These    
Statements were approved by the Council of the University of Jaffna.

    Prof. S. Srisatkunarajah,			
      Accounting Officer,		 Council Member,	 Council Member,

Vice Chancellor.		 Signed on behalf	  Signed on behalf	
of the Council.	 of the Council.		

27th February, 2022.

UNIVERSITY OF JAFFNA, SRI LANKA

Statement of Financial Performance for the Year ended 31st December, 2021

Description Note Year ended
31st December, 2021

Year ended 
31st December, 2020

Rs. Rs.
Revenue
Revenue from Non Exchange Transaction - Current

Government Grant for Recurrent Expenditures 19 3,879,000,000.00 3,567,000,000.00
UGC Grants for Student Bursaries 22 128,516,000.00 92,936,000.00
Total Revenue from Non Exchange Transaction - Current 4,007,516,000.00 3,656,936,000.00

Revenue from Exchange Transaction - Current

Other Income 21 54,040,722.40 45,239,794.41
Net Income/(Expenses) from other Activities (Restricted 
Fund)

20 77,986,561.41 (1,814,359.19)

University Development Fund 46,500,000.00
Total Revenue from Exchange Transaction - Current 132,027,283.81 89,925,435.22

Total Revenue - Current 4,139,543,283.81 3,749,861,435.22

Revenue from Non Exchange Transaction - Capital

Government Grant for Capital Expenditures 19 A 739,457,561.09 __

Gift & Donations 19 B 2,432,681,594.22 __

Total Revenue from Non Exchange Transaction - 
Capital

3,172,139,155.31

Total Revenue 7,311,682,439.12 3,749,861,435.22

Operating Expenses - Current

Personnel Emoluments 23 3,342,146,756.05 3,202,589,988.42

Travelling 23 2,950,070.24 2,612,842.24
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Description Note Year ended
31st December, 2021

Year ended 
31st December, 2020

Rs. Rs.
Supplies and Consumables 23 79,046,665.94 63,255,903.20

Repair & Maintenance 23 25,358,454.59 26,823,409.53

Contractual Services 23 278,805,595.27 302,262,094.06

Other Operating Expenses 23 94,954,550.98 75,569,785.02

Financial Assistance to Student Bursaries 24 128,516,000.00 92,936,000.00

Net Losses and Write off 25 498,336.50 40,373.53

Provision for Gratuity 23 43,966,568.35 148,142,337.36

Total Operating Expenses 3,996,242,997.92 3,914,232,733.36

Non Operating Expenses

Depreciation 23 1,065,410,855.92 802,113,341.58

Total Non Operating Expenses 1,065,410,855.92 802,113,341.58

Total Expenses 5,061,653,853.84 4,716,346,074.94

Total Surplus / (Deficit) for the year 2,250,028,585.28 (966,484,639.72)

Surplus / (Deficit) from Operating Activities - Current 143,300,285.89 (164,371,298.14)

Surplus / (Deficit) from Operating Activities - Capital 2,106,728,299.39 (802,113,341.58)

The Accounting policies and notes on page 09 to 22 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

UNIVERSITY  OF JAFFNA

Cash flow Statement for the Year ended 31st December, 2021

Description Notes 2021 2020
Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the Period 2,250,028,585 (966,444,266)
Adjustment for the Non Cash Items
Depreciation 09 1,065,410,856 802,113,340
Gift & Donation 19 B (2,432,681,594)
Provision for Gratuity 23 43,966,568 148,142,337
Prior Period Adjustment 17 (23,159,976) (37,016,749)
Net Losses and Write off 25 (40,374)
Transfer to Restricted Fund 20 (77,986,561) 1,814,359
(Increase)/Decrease in Stock 06 3,571,941 (5,272,620)
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 05 58.606,318 208,689,228
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 11, 12 (63,803,007) 67,190,653
Increase/(Decrease) in Refundable Deposit 14 (5,781,104) 6,290,325
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 818,172,024 225,466,233
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Description Notes 2021 2020
Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Addition of Plant and Equipment 09 (368,335,455) (189,133,405)
(Increase)/Decrease in work in progress 10 (421,195,232) (541,684,293)
Investments 07, 08 (226,967,587) (19,219,408)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (1,016,498,274) (750,037,106)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Government Grant for Capital Expenditures 16 40,972,090 565,771,340
Restricted Funds 15 71,671,320 7,771,482
Self Financing Courses & Projects 13 57,429,296 (30,273,122)
Bond Obligation Fund 18 14,709,018 10,979,160
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 184,781,724 554,248,860

Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (13,544,525) 29,677,987
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 4 63,259,328 33,581,341
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period 4 49,714,803 63,259,328

The Accounting policies and notes on page 09 to 22 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

UNIVERSITY  OF JAFFNA

Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the Year ended 31st December, 2021
Amount in Sri Lanka Rupees

Description Capital 
Grant

Accumulated 
Surplus/Deficit General Reserve Revaluation 

Reserve

Bond 
Obligations 

Reserve

Capital 
Reserve Total

Balance as at 31st 
December, 2019

12,558,529,626 (2,415,699,955) (1,222,879,981) 2,034,851,152 199,384,875 57,860 11,154,243,577

Surplus/(Deficit) 
(Note 26)

(966,484,639) (966,484,639)

Transfer from 
Restricted Fund

1,814,359 1,814,359

Prior Year 
Adjustments

(37,016,749) (37,016,749)

Prior Year 
Provision for 
Depreciation 
adjustment

111,867,189 111,867,189

Bond Obligation/
Increase in Other 
Reserve

10,979,160 10,979,160

Revaluation 
Adjustment During 
the Period

(33,279,992) (33,279,992)

Capital Grant 
Received

599,051,331 599,051,331
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Description Capital 
Grant

Accumulated 
Surplus/Deficit General Reserve Revaluation 

Reserve

Bond 
Obligations 

Reserve

Capital 
Reserve Total

Balance as at 31st 
December, 2020

13,157,580,957 (3,268,503,046) (1,259,896,730) 2,001,571,160 210,364,035 57,860 10,841,174,238

Surplus/(Deficit) 
(Note 26)

2,250,028,585 2,250,028,585

Transfer from 
Restricted Fund

(77,986,561) (77,986,561)

Prior Year 
Adjustments

(23,159,976) (23,159,976)

Prior Year 
Provision for 
Depreciation 
adjustment

0

Bond Obligation/
Increase in Other 
Reserve

14,709,018 14,709,018

Prior Year 
Provision for 
Depreciation 
adjustment

18,637,095 18,637,095

Revaluation 
Adjustment During 
the Period

0

Capital Grant 
Received

40,972,090 40,972,090

Balance as at 31st 
December, 2021

13,198,553,047 (1,077,823,926) (1,283,056,706) 2,001,571,160 225,073,053 57,860 13,064,374,489

The Accounting policies and notes on page 09 to 22 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

UNIVERSITY  OF JAFFNA

Statement of Comparison of Budget & Actual Amounts for the Year ended 31st December, 2021

Description Budget Actual

Revenue
Government Grant for Recurrent Expenditure 3,879,000,000 3,879,000,000
Internal Income 43,000,000 54,040,722
Total Revenue 3,922,000,000 3,933,040,722
Operating Expenses
Personal Emoluments 3,342,283,000 3,342,146,756
Travelling 2,960,000 2,950,070
Suppliers & Cosumables 79,298,000 79,046,666
Maintenance 25,365,000 25,358,455
Contractual Service 277,170,000 278,805,595
Other Recurrent Expenses 95,031,000 94,954,551
Gratuity 37,750,000 43,966,568
Total Operating Expenses before Depreciation 3,859,857,000 3,867,228,661
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UNIVERSITY  OF  JAFFNA

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st December, 2021

1. General Information

1.1	 Legal and Domicile Form

University of Jaffna is a Government University which was established under the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 
and located at Thirunelvely, Jaffna, Sri Lanka. Currently University has 13 Faculties (including 3 Faculties from 
Vavuniya Campus). The Faculty of Engineering, Faculty of Agriculture and Faculty of Technology are located in 
Ariviyal Nagar, Kilinochchi premises.

1.2	 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

		T he principal activities of the University of Jaffna are promote and develop higher education teaching, learning and 
research activities in keeping with the National Policy by providing higher learning facilities for students.

	 1.3	 Vavuniya Campus

		T he Northern Province Affiliated University College was amalgamated with University of Jaffna with effect from 
01.04.1997 by Gazette notification number 968/6 of 26.03.1997 as a Campus of this University. The Financial 
Management of the Vavuniya Campus is under the purview of the University of Jaffna. Monthly imprest is released 
for Recurrent and Capital Expenditure by the University of Jaffna. Reasonable extent of Financial Powers has 
been delegated to the Vavuniya Campus which is managed by Campus Board headed by Rector. The financial 
transactions of the Vavuniya Campus was incorporated in the accounts of the University of Jaffna.

As per the Government Gazettes number 2231/5-2021 dated 08.06.2021 Vavuniya Campus has been announced as 
a separate University with effect from 01.08.2021 under the Name of University of Vavuniya. Due to this Vavuniya 
Campus has become a separate entity. Therefore as per the financial regulations financial management and fund 
receiving of the University of Vavuniya has to be carried out separately from 01st August, 2021 onwards.

Since University of Vavuniya has separated in mid of the Year University of Jaffna at its letter reference number 
UJ/F/BK2/CF/01/2021 dated 06th August, 2021 requested University Grants Commission to clarify the Financial 
Procedure need to be followed between University of Jaffna and University of Vavuniya from 01st August, 2021 
onwards. UGC has replied to Vice Chancellor University of Jaffna with the letter reference number UGC/SAA-BF/
FO/JFN/2021 dated 04th October, 2021 mentioned that Cash Forecast for the period from August to December 
2021 should be submitted by University of Jaffna including requirement of University of Vavuniya. The expenditure 
on University of Vavuniya must be incurred and accounted by University of Jaffna subject to the pre-determined 
budgetary provision. Further University of Jaffna needs to prepare Annual Financial Statement as at 31st December, 
2021 for the University of Jaffna including the financial operation of the University of Vavuniya and take necessary 
action to transfer assets and liability with effect from 1st January, 2022 to the University of Vavuniya. Based on the 
above letter University of Vavuniya expenses was included in the Financial Statement preparation of the University 
of Jaffna for the financial Year 31st December, 2021.

1.4 	Basis of Preparations

		T he Financial Statements of the University of Jaffna, Sri Lanka are prepared in conformity with the Sri Lanka 
Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) and are applied consistently on a historical cost basis, subject 
to fixed assets being bought into books on revaluation with computerizing fixed assets register. The Financial 
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Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2021 are presented in the formats that were specified by University 
Grants Commission in accordance with complying Sri Lankan Public Sector Accounting Standard (SLPSAS).

1.5 	Financial Period

		T he Financial period of the University of Jaffna represent twelve months period from 1st January, 2021 to 31st 
December, 2021.

1.6	 Date of Authorization for Issue

		T he Financial statement for the year ended 31st December, 2021 of the University of Jaffna was approved and 
authorized to issue by the 462nd meeting of the University Council held on 27th February, 2022.

2	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1	 Accounting for Student Fees

		T he Student Registration Fees, Tuition Fees and Medical Fees are accounted on cash basis and all other incomes 
are on accrual basis and this practice was adopted by the University since inception.

2.2	 Grant for Bursary

		T he Grant for Bursary is shown as income under the Recurrent Grant and the payment of Bursary is shown as 
Expenditure of the Welfare Services as directed by the University Grants Commission by its letter No. UGC/F/
BUR/87 dated 14.10.1987 and classified as a separate item as Financial Assistance to students in the statement of 
Financial Performance. The Mahapola is fully handled by University Grants Commission and Mahapola Scholarship 
Trust Board.

2.3	 Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Gratuity is made in terms of payment of Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983. The Provision for Gratuity 
is not represented by the investment since the Treasury does not provide financial allocation to make investment 
externally. As per the University Grants Commission Circular number 05/2019 dated 04th June, 2019, Academic 
allowance and MCA (Monthly Compensatory Allowance) paid for the staff are considered for the Gratuity 
calculation in terms of the Gratuity Act number 12 of 1983 with effect from 01st June, 2019.

2.4	 Inventories

		I nventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due adjustment based on First in 
First out (FIFO) method. The cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bring them to the 
existing location and condition. The Inventories of the University includes stationeries, consumables, chemicals, 
maintenance and medical items.

2.5	 Live Stock

Livestock consist of living animals held for the agriculture activity managed by the Farm of the Agriculture Faculty. 
Livestock are measured on initial recognition and each reporting date at its fair value less cost to sell. The fair value 
of the livestock was determined based on the published rates of the National Livestock Department Board (NLBD) 
and prevailing market prices of the similar Assets.

2.6	 Expenditure of Capital Nature

Expenditure incurred for the purpose of extending or improving assets of the permanent nature of this University is 
treated as Capital Expenditure.
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2.7	 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprise gross inflows of economic benefits or services potential received and receivable by University 
during  the year and represent an increase in net assets/equity. University recognition revenue following the 
establish criteria of SLPSAS 10 (Revenue for exchange transactions) and SLPSAS 11 (Revenue for non-exchange 
transitions). The Income and Expenditure of Self Financing courses have been shown on cash basis. The net 
Income from other activities has been shown in the statement of Financial Performance and the balances have 
been added to the opening balance of the respective activities and shown under current liabilities as self-financing 
courses.

2.8	 Expenditure Recognition

		T he expenditure has been analysed by a Programme/Project/Object wise and anlysis was classified under different 
expenditure heading based on UGC guideline to comply with the Common reporting format during the period 
of which they incurred. All expenses incurred in respect of under graduate education have been recongnized on 
accrual basis and charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

2.9	 Statement of Cash Flows

		T he statement of Cash flows has been prepared in accordance with SLPSAS 02 Cash Flow Statement under the 
indirect method.

2.10	 Receivables

Receivables of Hostel rental from students has been stated at the amount estimated to realise as an income for the 
financial year 2021.

2.11	 Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on a Straight line basis over the estimated 
useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment items from the date of that they were purchased. Lands are not 
depreciated. Depreciation is provided at the following rates as per the University Grants Commission Circular No. 
649 of 05/10/95.

Buildings	 5%
Office Furniture	 10%
Office Equipment and Sports Goods	 20%
Lab and Teaching Equipment	 20%
Books and Periodicals	 20%
Vehicles	 20%
Cloaks	 20%

		T elephone	 20%
Plant and Machinery	 10%

2.12	 Liabilities and Provisions

All known liabilities as at the reporting date are included in the Financial Statements and adequate provisions are 
made for liabilities which are known to exist other than the amount of which cannot be determined accurately.

3. Other Notes Related to the Financial Statements

3.1	 Depreciation and Provision for Gratuity

		T he Net Surplus from Operating Activities - Current for the year 2021 is Rs. 143,300,285 includes the non-cash 
item of Gratuity amounting of Rs. 43,966,568. Therefore the Operating  Surplus - Current is Rs. 187,266,853.
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		T he Net Surplus from Operating Activities - Capital for the year 2021 is Rs. 2,106,728,299 includes the  
non - cash  item of  Depreciation amounting of Rs. 1,065,410,855. Therefore the Operating Surplus - Capital is  
Rs. 3,172,139,155.

3.2	 Losses and Write off

		T he following losses were written off with the approval of the Council during the year 2021 and reflected in the 
accounts.

Losses and Write off	 Rs. 498,337

3.3	 Excess Income over Expenditure

		T he Income over Expenditure is Rs. 2,250,028,585 occurred due to the inclusion of the following non-cash items.

				 Rs.

(1) Depreciation for Non-Current Assets 1,065,410,856
(2) Provision for Gratuity 43,966,568

1,109,377,424

3.4	 Assets and basis of their valuation

All assets categories other than Books & Periodicals and provision for depreciation as at 31.12.2021 had been 
adjusted based on verification and revaluation on assets made by M/S Carter De Costa Corporate Services 
(Pvt) Ltd who was assigned with preparation of Fixed Assets Register. Verification and revaluation of the 
Assets at 31.12.2014 and additions during the year 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 had been 
taken in to accounts.

3.5	 Events after the Reporting date

		T here are no material events subsequent to the financial year which require additional disclosure in the 
Financial Statements.

3.6	 Gift & Donations for the Financial Year 2021

Assets donated from different donors details are shown below.

Donors Amount
Rs. C.

Dr. K. Thabotharan 2,000.00
Dr. K. Umasuki 146,500.00
Dr. Kathiravetpillai & Mr. Kapilan 141,000.00
JICA Project 2,171,267,711.00
M/S Commercial Bank 62,990.00
M/S National Research Council 158,900.00
M/S Techno Solutions (Pvt) Ltd 140,000.00
UNHCR 41,800.00
Welfare Society 17,000.00
Mr. Arumugamnanthan 525,000.00
Mr. B. Sureshkumar 184,990.00
Mrs. S. Ravichandran 3,200.00
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Donors Amount
Rs. C.

The Alumini Faculty of Medicine 7th Batch 144,300.00
Assets Donated from Accelerating Higher Expansion and 
Development (AHEAD)

250,368,910.00

Current Solar AS 9,477,293.12
Total 2,432,681,594.12

Notes to the Financial Position	 2021 2020
Rs.C.	 Rs. C.

Note 04 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank Balance - Restricted Fund	 49,665,211.61	 61,894,648.11 

  Bank Balance - Treasury Fund	 43,873.24	 1,321,929.11
 I mprest Kilinochchi, Franking Machine and Stamps in hand	 5,718.04	 42,750.94

49,714,802.89	 63,259,328.16 
Note 05 Trade and Other Receivable

Bond Obligation - Receivable	 64,804,584.42	 62,343,766.96
Loans and Advances/Staff	 145,338,773.08	 152,083,642.21
Advance to Supplies and Services	 96,424,224.94	 167,890,203.59
Advance to Buildings	 81,526,170.67	 50,976,822.63

 I mports Advance	 - 407,827.76
Others	  113,369,034.92	 126,366,842.48

 501,462,788.03	 560,069,105.63 

Note 06 Inventories/Stocks

 I nventories Main Stores           22,417,498.63	 20,999,434.13 
 I nventories in Department      12,957,040.89	 17,947,046.03

35,374,539.52	 38,946,480.16	
Note 07 Short Term Investments

  Special Deposit for Library Books	 261,478.14	 225,474.74 
 F ixed Deposit Bio chemistry Extension Course	 - 1,431,089.93
 F aculty of Science Research Development	 2,945,341.62	 2,768,362.97

Vingnanam Journal Investment 91,900.26 91,900.26 
  Medical Faculty Development Fund Investment	 929,971.63	 921,655.22 
 I nvestment A/C - Restricted Fund	 910,000,000.00	 720,000,000.00 

Vice Chancellor’s Welfare Fund Savings A/C	 571,099.98	 430,379.25
Science Fac. Equipment Fund - Investment	 9,605,938.64	 8,179,020.63

924,405,730.27	 734,047,883.00 

 I ncrease/(Decrease) for the year	 (190,357,847.27)	 (5,820,424.80)

Note 08 Long Term Investments

  Endowment Fund Investment	 354,932,503.04	 317,807,874.55 
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Security Deposit	  977,366.67	 984,571.16
Sundry Investment	 98,022,331.78	 99,033,406.36 
Vice Chancellor’s Welfare Fund	 5,253,390.55	 4,750,000.00 

459,185,592.04	 422,575,852.07

Increase/(Decrease) for the year	 (36,609,739.97)	 (13,398,982.99)

UNIVERSITY OF JAFFNA

Property, Plant & Equipment Notes to the Financial Statement - 2021

Note 09 Property, Plant & Equipment

Cost of the Property, Plant & Equipment

Assets Opening 
Balance 

as at 
01.01.2021

Addition Gift & Donations Addition from 
Work in Progress

Addition 
from 

Rehabilitation

Closing Balance 
as at 31.12.2021

Lands 2,005,295,168.43 38,112.00 - - - 2,005,333,280.43
Buildings 8,660,335,862.43 163,455,288.04 1,581,001,598.00 713,668,483.31 20,660,148.74 11,139,121,380.52
Sports 
Equipment

35,085,805.25 1,060,564.00 - - - 36,146,369.25

Office Furniture 571,810,685.73 44,751,915.02 37,249,225.05 - - 653,811,825.80
Office 
Equipments

322,517,672.18 49,375,511.62 16,024,262.19 - 1,313,331.25 389,230,777.24

Lab & Teaching 
Equipment

1,540,981,477.68 66,512,804.90 655,062,431.63 - - 2,262,556,714.21

Plant & 
Machinery

76,881,307.16 - 123,672,193.12 - - 200,553,500.28

Library Books 
& Periodicals

425,708,600.41 16,408,988.97 1,193,952.47 - - 443,311,541.85

Motor vehicles 136,834,518.24 - 3,564,000.00 - 635,659.98 141,034,178.22
Cloaks 13,313,750.00 1,201,750.00 - - - 14,515,500.00
Live Stock - 2,541,450.00 - - - 2,541,450.00
Telephone 3,046,220.00 379,930.00 - - - 3,426,150.00
Total 13,791,811,067.51 345,726,314.55 2,417,767,662.46 713,668,483.31 22,609,139.97 17,291,582,667.80

Accumulated Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment

Assets Opening Balance as at 
01.01.2021

Addition Adjustment Closing Balance 
as at 31.12.2021

Lands - - - -
Buildings 1,503,865,347.93 542,967,962.09 - 2,046,833,310.02

Sports Equipment 24,644,862.68 3,997,690.59 - 28,642,553.27

Notes to the Financial Position	 2021 2020
Rs. Rs.
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Assets Opening Balance as at 
01.01.2021

Addition Adjustment Closing Balance 
as at 31.12.2021

Office Furniture 191,237,323.12 66,940,608.81 - 258,177,931.93
Office Equipments 174,323,009.84 51,004,625.27 - 225,327,635.11
Lab & Teaching 
Equipment

926,542,679.67 347,584,913.08 - 1,274,127,592.75

Plant & Machinery 40,201,292.92 19,737.479.52 (18,637,095.31) 41,301,677.13
Library Books & 
Periodicals

388,046,292.25 20,019,327.92 - 408,065,620.17

Motor vehicles 100,800,979.57 11,580,702.33 - 112,381,681.90
Cloaks 10,270,864.85 1,176,288.97 - 11,447,153.82
Live Stock - - - -
Telephone 2,482,330.52 401,257.34 - 2,883,587.86
Total 3,362,414,983.35 1,065,410,855.92 (18,637,095.31) 4,409,188,743.96

Net Book Value of Property, Plant & Equipment

Assets Opening Balance as 
at 01.01.2021

Closing Balance as at 
31.12.2021

Lands 2,005,295,168.43 2,005,333,280.43
Buildings 7,156,470,514.50 9,092,288,070.50
Sports Equipment 10,440,942.57 7,503,815.98
Office Furniture 380,573,362.61 395,633,893.87
Office Equipments 148,194,662.34 163,903,142.13
Lab & Teaching Equipment 614,438,798.01 988,429,121.46
Plant & Machinery 36,680,014.24 159,251,823.15
Library Books & Periodicals 37,662,308.16 35,245,921.68
Motor vehicles 36,033,538.67 28,652,496.32
Cloaks 3,042,885.15 3,068,346.18
Live Stock - 2,541,450.00
Telephone 563,889,48 542,562.14

Total 10,429,396,084.16 12,882,393,923.84

2021 2020
Rs. Rs.

Note 10 Work in Progress

Opening Balance	 1,372,214,601.21	 900,085,503.53
  Additions during the year	 421,195,232.16	 541,684,293.36
 T ransfer during the year (Building)	 (713,668,483.31)	 (69,555,195.68)

Donation from AHEAD	 14,913,931.76 	 -

1,094,655,281.82	 1,372,214,601.21 
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Note 11 Payables

Sundry Creditors	 97,207,593.77	 110,040,136.79 
Others	 133,985,084.01	 103,559,678.06

231,192,677.78	 213,599,814.85

Note 12 Accrued Expenses	

Accrued Expenses 	 40,422,264.05	 121,818,134.37

40,422,264.05	 121,818,134.37

Note 13 Self Financing Courses & Projects (Payable)

Diploma in Physical Education       	 6,060.96	 21,511.82 
Bio Chemistry Extension course Fund (Msc in Bio - Chemistry)	 - 1,431,089.53
Master of Education   	 17,176,014.35	 26,341,688.01
Certificate Course in English Lang. Teaching for Non Eng. Teachers	 367,083.00	 2,078,858.20
Dip. in English for Officers	 - 905,769.40
Computer Education for Staff Officers	 - 220,000.00
Income from External Exam Unspent 	 3,677,024.52	 23,685,430.19
Post Graduate Dip. in Education - Part time   	 2,117,454.82	 2,105,064.82
Diploma in Journalism	 1,048,989.42	 1,471,900.92
M. A. in Tamil 3,618,785.43	 3,599,785.43 
M. A. in Saiva Siddhanta 1,630,029.34	 1,322,644.08
BBM Online Degree Programme	 54,338,177.50	 50,757,372.05
BBM Online Degree Programme - B-IX	 6,878,545.68	 6,103,588.42
BBM Online Degree Programme - B-X	 9,310,213.22	 119,893.88
BBM Online Degree Programme - B-XI	 16,646,891.32	 -
MSc in Environmental Management	 3,679,862.35	 2,306,587.35
MSc in Health Management	 1,585,187.10	 1,664,247.10 
M. A. in Cultural Studies 166,722.05	 1,506,239.61
Post Grad. Dip. in English as Second Language 934,149.16	 227,424.16 
G. I. S. Training - 22,230.00
Post graduate Dip. In Library Information Science 179,919.46	 438,287.29
Diploma in Human Resources 498,811.63	 527,811.63
Diploma in Management & Marketing 778,465.84	 778,465.84
Diploma in Micro Finance 1,371,585.74	 608,290.74
Master of Business Administration Batch I 67,979,449.68	 45,825,148.93
Bachelor of Commerce (External) 45,308,855.45	 28,863,824.98	
B. A. External 34,259,488.71	 26,749,079.27

 I CDA	 2,017,844.65	 2,194,604.49
ICCM	 1,090,949.75	 1,432,754.75
Intergrated Farm & Training Centre F/Agriculture	 9,768,829.68	 8,666,054.58
Certificate Course in Molecular Biology	 18,834.00	 47,134.00
Higher Diploma in Media Studies B 1	 - (31,657.00)
JUICE 2018	 371.41	 -

 H igher Diploma in Physical Education B 1	 3,232,778.46	 35,911.60
BA in Translation Studies	 1,942,182.02	 1,237,820.00

2021 2020
Rs. Rs.
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Certificate Course of Poultry Mgt.	 88,000.00	 88,000.00
Master in Clean Energy Technologies  B-1	 2,654,120.37	 1,331,520.00
Recorp Fish Project University of Amsterdam	 1,591,323.00 1,591,323.00
Diploma in Professional English	 2,223,252.00
Certificate Course in Earthwarm Technology	 96,000.00	
Certificate Course in Mushroom Manufacture and Training Technology	 88,000.00

 H igh Dip. in Media Studies	 1,372,843.00
PGD in Education (Part time) 2020/2021 Jaffna	 215,652.50

  English Language Teaching Centre Unspent	 3,008,589.65
 I nduction Programme SDC	 22,000.00

Phd	 368,952.18
M. Phill 140,105.44
Basic Sinhala Level - 1 12,500.00
English Language for Officers 13,500.00
Conduct a study on Psychological, Social and economic Challange 180,000.00

303,704,994.84	 246,275,699.07

Increase/(Decrease) for the Year	 57,429,295.77	 (30,273,122.00) 

Note 14 Payable	  		

    Refundable Deposit	 - 1,049,120.60
Security Deposit Payable	 703,023.57	 -
Security Deposit Payable - Staff	 345,447.60	 -
Security Deposit Payable - Others	 440,000.00	 470,500.00
Science Deposit Post Graduate	 1,312,650.00	 1,180,400.00

  H all Deposit	 277,250.00	 187,250.00 
Cloak Deposit	 386,131.04	 676,631.04

  T ender Deposit	 2,455,750.00	 2,663,750.00
Library Deposit	 66,500.00	 66,500.00 
Library Hall Deposit	 2,019,800.00	 396,400.00	
 Science Deposit Under Graduate	 1,458,000.00	 1,073,000.00
Science Deposit Under Graduate V. C.	 30,500.00	 30,500.00 
Rental Deposit 	 279,993.10	 266,098.16
Security Deposit-V.C.
Performance Bond U/J	 443,213.02	 7,929,213.02 
Canteen Deposit V/C	 120,000.00	 130,000.00 

10,338,258.33	 16,119,362.82 

Note 15 Restricted Fund and Specific Fund

Endowment Fund	 432,935,695.09	 411,663,536.17 
Memorial Lectures	 1,599,131.75	 1,039,743.97
Development Fund	 94,579,788.98	 73,903,380.77
Special Grant	 100,000.00 450,563.65
Research Grant	 9,532,397.00	 13,975,371.18 
Gifts and Donations	 462,973,165.72	 462,304,921.96
Vice Chancellor’s Welfare Fund	 9,220,275.47	 7,196,970.85
Rector’s Welfare Fund	 534,578.37	 362,228.37

2021 2020
Rs. Rs.
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Computer Development Reserve	 110,028.41	 110,028.41 
English Language Teaching Centre Unspent	 - 3,008,589.65
Grant for Managment Faculty Development Fund	 50,975.00 50,975.00 
Sivasiththantha Arthmapala Fund	 - 50,000.00
Student Deposit Investment Fund	 - 1,806,496.76
Balance from restricted Fund Spent	 21,528,417.86 21,528,417.86
Balance from restricted Fund	 17,967,200.03 17,967,200.03
Panchadcharam Awards	 - .3,187.50)
University Development Fund V/C	 1,584,347.33	 1,584,347.33
University Development Fund	 13,767,204.46	 11,799,656.36
University Development Fund Spent	 35,289,653.39	        35,289,653.39

 I nduction Programme SDC	 - 22,000.00
Lee Kong Chain Endowment	  3,899,000.00 3,899,000.00

  I nterest from Swept A/C	 1,112,366.06	 848,830.69
  I nterest from Restricted Fund - Spent A/C	 54,317,538.67	 54,317,538.67
 I nterest from Restricted Fund	 67,846,293.11	 34,100,473.40 

1,228,948,056.70	 1,157,276,736.97
Increase/(Decrease) for the year	 71,671,319.73	 7,771,482.00

Note 16 Accumulated Fund (Capital Grant)

Capital Grant Spent	 8,630,014,183.20	 8,630,014,183.20
Unspent Capital Grant	 12,261,779.62	 12,261,779.62 
Constribution to Capital Outlay	 141,176,780.69	 141,176,780.69 
Contri. to Assets taken from other Institutions			

UJ 16,843,764.54			
VC 25,740,440.81	 42,584,205.35	 42,584,205.35

Computer Development Reserve Spent	 398,960.00  398,960.00 
Capital Receipts	 4,372,117,138.47	 4,331,145,048.08

 13,198,553,047.33	13,157,580,956.94
Increase/(Decrease) for the year	 40,972,090.39	 565,771,340.00 

16A Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)

Opening Balance	 (3,268,503,046.22)	(2,415,699,954.96)
Current Year Balance	 2,250,028,585.28	 (966,484,639.72)

  Prior Year Provision for Depreciation adjustment	 18,637,095.31	 111,867,189.27
 T ransferred to Restricted Fund	 (77,986,561.41)	 1,814,359.19

(1,077,823,927.04)	(3,268,503,046.22)
Note 17 General Reserve

Opening Balance	 (1,259,896,729.64)	(1,222,879,980.78)
Prior Year Adjustments	 (23,159,975.79)	 (37,016,748.86)

Closing Balance	 (1,283,056,705.43)	(1,259,896,729.64)

2021 2020
Rs. Rs.
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Note 18 Bond Obligation - Reserve

Received	 92,849,387.04	 87,184,969.21 
  Receivable	 64,804,584.42	 62,343,766.96 
 I nterest Received	 67,419,081.94	 60,835,298.96 

225,073,053.40	 210,364,035.13

Increase/(Decrease) for the year	 14,709,018.27	 10,979,160.07

Note 18A Revaluation -  Reserve

Revaluation Surplus Opening	 2,001,571,160.17	 2,034,851,152.32 
Revaluation net deficit	 - (33,279,992.15)

2,001,571,160.17	 2,001,571,160.17

Note 19 - Recurrent Grant

Grant from Treasury	 3,879,000,000.00	 3,567,000,000.00

3,879,000,000.00	 3,567,000,000.00

Note 19A Capital Grant

  Construction of Staff Quarters	 1,000,000.00	 -
 T sunami Grant	 37,821,474.09	 -

Grant for Est. Technology	 66,000,000.00	 -
  Grant of Strengthening state	 28,286,087.00	 -
 F und for the IT Insfrastructure	 20,000,000.00	 -

Additional Student intake	 137,000,000.00	 -
Capital Grant	 449,350,000.00	 -

739,457,561.09 -
Note 19B - Donation

Donation from AHEAD	 250,368,910.10	 -
Donation from Dr. K. Thapotharan	 2,000.00	 -
Donation from Dr. K. Umasuki	 146,500.00	 -
Donation from Dr. Kathiravetpillai & Mr. Kapilan	 141,000.00	 -
Donation from Commercial Bank	 62,990.00	 -
Donation from National Research Council	 158,900,00
Donation from Techno Solutions Pvt Ltd	 140,000.00
Donation from Welfare Soceity	 17,000.00	 -
Donation from Mr. Arumukanathan	 525,000.00	 -
Donation from Mr. B. Sureshkumar	 184,990.00	 -
Donation from Mrs. S. Ravichandran	 3,200.00	 -
Donation from the Alumini Faculty of Medicine 7th Batch	 144,300.00	 -
JICA Project	 2,171,267,711.00	 -
Welfare Society	 41,800.00	 -

2021 2020
Rs. Rs.
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Current Solar AS	 9,477,293.12	
2,432,681,594.22	

Note 20 - Net Income/(Expenses) from other Activities

Diploma in Physical Education	    (11,850.86)	        (71,932.13)
Master of Education	 (11,850.86)	 (71,932.13)
External Exam	 (129,226.07)	 (3,011,473.30) 
Post Graduate Dip. in Education (Part time)	 12,390.00	 (621,871.48)
Post Graduate Diploma in Library Information Studies	 (258,367.83)	 (630,427.71)
Dimploma in Journalism	 (70,863.80)	 - 
Master of Business Administration	 22,134,164.75	 (4,466,820.38)
M. A. in Tamil 19,000.00	 (445,890.23)
M. A. in Saiva Siddhanta 307,385.26	 (459,185.53)	
BBM Online Degree Programme 30,192,973.37	 (55,330.37)
Dip. in Marketing & Management - (248,562.11)
Diploma in English Language Teaching 500,500.00
M. Sc in Environmental Management 1,373,275.00	 168,490.45	
M. Sc in Health Management (79,060.00)	 100,000.00
Diploma in Micro Finance 726,695.00	 (705,136.21)
Dip. in Community Dev. Managment 621,871.48
PGD in Teaching English as Second Language 29,000.00	 -
Bachelor of Commerce (External) 16,452,230.47	 8,429,149.98 
Bachelor of Arts (External) 7,537,409.44	 (754,350.00)

 I ntergrated Farm & Training Centre	 1,102,775.10	 293,046.01 	
MA in Cultural Studies	 (1,339,517.56)	 (384,505.53) 	

77,986,561.41	 (1,814,359.19) 

Note 21 - Other Income

 I nterest from investment	 85.00	 38,943.94 
 I nterest from Loan	 6,015,333.49	 6,377,821.99 

Rent from Property	 3,976,734.12	 4,282,868.00
Sale of Unserviceable Article	 - 16,500.00
Sale of old Stores	 2,448.00	 118,157.00
Sale of produce	 2,106,336.50	 2,278,744.31
Sale of Publication	
Misc. Receipts	 20,805,292.50	 12,770,113.55 
Registration Fees - Undergraduate	 1,999,450.00	 1,190,350.00 
Registration Fees - Postgraduate	 165,100.00	 403,750.00
Convocation Income	 5,013,350.00	 -

 T uition Fees - Postgraduate	 597,000.00	 2,267,250.00
Examination Fees - Undergraduate	 4,084,390.00	 3,625,900.00
Examination Fees - Postgraduate	 4,000.00	 214,100.00 
Library Fine	 5,045.00	 12,484.00 
Medical Fees	 1,558,280.00	 1,151,250.00 
Discount Received	 165,391.80	 161,182.88 

 I ncome from other Activities	 1,430,589.99	 812,167.44

2021 2020
Rs. Rs.



1690

Liquidity Damages	 - 1,690,801.30
Rent Hostel	 6,075,471.00	 7,827,410.00
Recovery Visiting Income	 36,425.00	 -

54,040,722.40	 45,239,794.41 
Note 22 - Grant for Financial Assistance to Students

Bursary	 22.1	        128,516,000.00	 92,936,000.00 

128,516,000.00	 92,936,000.00
22.1 Bursary

Jaffna	 99,316,000.00	 78,116,000.00 
Vavuniya	 29,200,000.00	 14,820,000.00

128,516,000.00	 92,936,000.00

Note 23 - Operating Expenses (Details Shown in 23A)

  Personnel Emoluments	 3,342,146,756.05	 3,202,589,988.42 
 T ravelling	 2,950,070.24	 2,612,842.24 

Supplies	 79,046,665.94	 63,255,903.20 
Maintenance	 25,358,454.59	 26,823,409.53 
Contractual Services	 278,805,595.27	 302,262,094.06
Depreciation	  1,065,410,855.92	 802,113,341.58 
Provision for Gratuity	 43,966,568.35	 148,142,337.36
Other Operating Expenses	 94,954,550.98	 75,569,785.02

4,932,639,517.34	 4,623,369,701.41

Note 24 - Payment of Financial Assistance to Students

Bursary	  128,516,000.00	 92,936,000.00 

128,516,000.00	 92,936,000.00

Note 25 - Losses and Write off

Vavuniya Campus write off	 -	 -
Losses & write off	 498,336.50	 46,873.53
Recovery for Cloak	 - (6,500.00)

498,336.50	 40,373.53

Note 26 - Surplus/(Deficit)

  Suplus/(Deficit)	 2,250,028,585.28	 966,484,639.72
 T ransfer to Resticted Fund	 77,986,561.41	 1,814,359.19

2,328,015,146.69	 968,298,998.91

2021 2020
Rs. Rs.
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 Note : 23 A 

Object Code Object Title  Actual Expenditure 
2021 
Rs.

 Actual Expenditure 
2020 
Rs.

01 PERSONAL EMOLUMENTS 3,342,146,756.05 3,202,589,988.42 
1101-1 Salaries 1,216,792,675.02 1,178,483,245.62 
1101-2 Pension 148,601,039.60 137,256,479.26 
1101-3 U.P.F. 207,115,630.66 200,697,403.17 
1101-4 E.T.F. 71,438,729.46 67,391,245.99 
1101-5 Gratuities 58,135,575.23 52,149,650.43 
1102 Overtime & Holiday Pay 27,943,369.96 31,205,641.12 
1106 Visiting Lecture Fees Including Travelling & 

Subsistence to Visiting Lecturers
11,076,089.70 15,351,433.50 

1108 Monthly Compensative Allowance (MCA) 195,515,024.35 189,276,394.05 
1109-1 Other Allowance (Dean's Allow. Heads of Dept. 

etc.) 
5,153,079.46 4,025,731.97 

1109-2 Entertaintment Allowance 1,247,375.20 758,208.00 
1109-3 Acting Allowance 794,084.90 575,037.88 
1111 Language Allowance -   -   

1112-1 Cost of Living Allowance 169,910,984.04 162,825,142.73 
1112-2 Income Tax -   -   
1115 Academic Allowance 836,409,189.46 782,403,939.61 
1116 Equalisation Allowance 1,800.00 2,383.94 
1117 Research Allowance 174,648,704.40 177,414,097.66 
1122 Special Allowance 363,413.41 -   
1123 20% Additional Allowance 202,231,038.96 191,739,251.58 
1125 Interiam Allowance -   -   
1128 Transport Allowance 8,235,482.02 7,708,872.90 
1129 Fuel Allowance 2,005,367.00 1,996,621.74 
1130 Adjusted Allowance 6,817.17 -   
1131 Communication Allowance 4,521,286.05 1,329,207.27 

02  TRAVELLING EXPENSES 2,950,070.24 2,632,903.36 
1201 Travelling Expenses (Local) 896,754.34 2,238,100.04 
1202 Travelling Expenses (Foreign) 2,053,315.90 394,803.32 

03   SUPPLIES 79,046,665.94 63,255,903.20 
1301 Stationery & Office requisites 29,540,080.17 28,436,431.60 
1302 Fuel & Lubricants 7,206,021.22 8,560,341.40 
1303 Uniforms including tailoring charges 2,868,844.25 4,890,839.81 

UNIVERSITY OF JAFFNA - SRI LANKA

Actual Expenditure by Objects - 2021
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1304-1 Mechanical & Electrical goods, 3,879,265.92 866,222.81 
1304-2 Chemical & Glassware 17,598,428.50 7,532,560.65 
1305 Medical Supplies 2,779,890.06 4,499,947.23 
1309 Other Supplies 15,174,135.82 8,469,559.70 

04  M INOR REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 25,358,454.59 26,823,409.53 
1401-1 Vehicles 7,359,086.17 5,785,621.15 
1401-2 Plant & Machinery 8,261,270.57 7,821,785.17 
1402-1 Buildings & Structure 7,801,174.65 10,023,769.43 
1402-2 Furniture 773,967.67 465,665.00 
1402-3 Other Services 1,162,955.53 2,726,568.78 

05 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 278,805,595.27 302,262,094.06 
1501 Transport 304,268.50 81,562.00 

1502-1 Telecommunication 41,724,801.18 43,521,187.91 
1502-2 Postage 1,806,988.45 1,508,238.25 
1503-1 Electricity 58,859,981.08 59,425,690.78 
1503-2 Water 1,609,493.91 854,597.03 
1504-1 Rent 8,521,100.00 7,542,000.00 
1504-2 Hiring Charges 2,596,735.28 5,357,201.00 
1505 Rates, Taxes and Insurance 2,069,032.61 2,222,558.87 

1506-1 Printing 3,639,980.72 5,671,019.00 
1506-2 Advertisement 5,266,143.50 6,173,306.40 
1507-1 Security Services 57,196,496.44 67,713,935.28 
1507-2 Cleaning Services 66,634,669.02 71,693,855.68 
1507-3 Other Services 28,575,904.58 30,496,941.86 

06 OTHER RECURRENT EXPENSES 94,954,550.98 75,549,723.90 
1601 Subscriptions, Contributions and Membership 

Fees - Local
412,880.35 373,011.00 

1602 Subscriptions, Contributions and Membership 
Fees - Foreign

1,818,135.72 1,277,463.63 

1607 Academic Research & Publication -   12,000.00 
1608 Work Shop Seminar 652,165.60 828,088.99 
1609 Grant to Other Organisation 800,000.00 -   
1610 Awards & Indemnities 100,000.00 262,500.00 
1611 Loses and write-offs -   -   
1612 Holiday Warrants, Season Tickets 99,040.00 1,245,500.00 

1613-1 Audit Fees 1,173,408.00 1,267,488.00 
1613-2 Council Members' Fees etc. 3,020,500.00 1,962,200.00 

Object Code Object Title  Actual Expenditure 
2021 
Rs.

 Actual Expenditure 
2020 
Rs.
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1614 Convocation 10,342,791.30 2,021,688.46 

1615 Entertainment Expenses 3,390,618.05 2,533,339.25 

1616-1 Other Recurrent Expenses 10,308,986.95 10,490,664.78 

1616-2 Bank Charges 450.00 -   

1617 Examination Expenses 55,865,345.21 40,852,032.97 

1618 Post Graduate Research & Schlorships -   -   

1619 Course Materials for Students & Learning 
Quality

-   -   

1620 Industry internship,practicals & carer guidance -   -   

1621 Training for teachers,Administrators & Other 
Employees

384,660.12 931,000.00 

1622 Students Development initiatives & community -   189,700.00 

1623 Universities Sports activities 1,028,750.00 954,895.00 

1624 Students Welfare,Employee Welfare, Student 
Council & Social harmony

-   -   

1625 Corporative planing,governance & outreach -   -   

1626 Interest subsidy on property loan 5,556,819.68 10,348,151.82 

Total Operating Expenses
3,823,262,093.07 3,673,114,022.47 

07 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO STUDENTS
-   -   

Endowment Scholarship
1704-1 Treasury Component
1704-2 Donors Component
1705 Bursaries

Mahapola
1706-1 Treasury Component
1706-2 Mahapola Trust Component

08 Depreciation of Fixed Assets
1,065,410,855.92 802,113,341.58 

09 Provision for Gratuity
43,966,568.35 148,142,337.36 

4,932,639,517.34 4,623,369,701.41 

Object Code Object Title  Actual Expenditure 
2021 
Rs.

 Actual Expenditure 
2020 
Rs.
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31st May, 2022.	 My No.: JAF/C/UOJ/1/2021.

Vice Chancellor,
University of Jaffna.

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements and Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements of the University of Jaffna for the year ended 31st December, 2021 in terms of Section 12 

of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018

1.	F inancial Statements

	 1.1	 Qualified Opinion

		 The audit of the financial statements of the University of Jaffna (“University”) for the year ended 31st December, 
2021 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2021 and the statement of financial 
performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, was carried out under my direction 
in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka 
read in conjunction with provisions of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 and Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971. My 
report to Parliament in pursuane of provisions in Article 154 (6) of the Constitution will be tabled in due course.

		 I  n my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for Qualified Opinion section of my 
report, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the University as 
at 31st December, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.

1.2	 Basis for Qualified Opinion

(a) Assets costing Rs. 2,421,636,621 received from JICA and AHEAD Projects had been indicated in the
statement of financial performance as the revenue from non-exchange transactions during the year under
review without adjusting retrospectively in terms of Sri Lanka Public Accounting Standard 3.

(b)	T he useful lifetime of fixed assets had not been reviewed anually in terms of paragraph 65 of the Sri Lanka
Public Sector Accounting Standard 7. Vehicles and cloaks accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment
costing Rs. 78,957,863 had been fully depreciated but still being used by the end of the year under review. No 
action had been taken to recetify the estimated error in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting 
Standard 3.

(c) According to the paragraph 47 of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 7, when the fair value
of the revalued asset differs materially from its carrying amount, a further revaluation is necessary. It may
be necessary to revalue the item every three or five years. However, Property, plant, equipment with the
aggregated amount of Rs. 7,288,976,743 had not been revalued for the past 7 years since 2014.

(d) Sum of Rs. 40,972,090 had been received as capital grant from treasury during the year under review had
not been recognised as revenue in terms of SLPSAS 11. As a result, the surplus from operating activities/
capital for the year had been understated by that similar amount in the Financial Statement.

(e) An aggregated amount of Rs. 2,541,450 live stock had not been disclosed separately under non-current assets
as biological assets in the statement of financial position as per the requirement of Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standard 18. Instead of, it had been accounted under Property, plant & equipment. As a results
he value of the Property, plant & equipment had been overstated by the similar amount.

II
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(f) Expenditure on depreciation amounting to Rs. 1,065,410,866 relating to the year under review had been
adjusted in the statement of financial performance as non-operating expenditure instead of adjusting to the
operating expenditure of the year.

As such, profit earned from current operations and the profit earned from capital operations had been overstated 
and understated respectively in the financial statements during the year under review.

		I  conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My responsibilties, under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor.s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of my report. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my qualified opinion.

1.3	 Other information included in the University’s 2021 Annual Report.

		T he other information comprises the informatin included in the University.s 2021 Annual Report but does not 
include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon, which I have obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report. Management is responsible for the other information.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

		I n connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information identified 
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

		I f based on the work I have performed on the other information that I have obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s 
report, I conclude that there is  a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. 
I have nothing to report in this regard.

1.4	 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

		I n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing hte University’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the University or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

		T hose charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the University’s financial reporting process.

As per Section 16(1) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018, the University is required to maintain proper books 
and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities, to enable annual and periodic financial statements 
to be prepared of the University.

1.5	 Auditor’s Responsibilties for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material missatement, whether due to fraud or error,and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assuarance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
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with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statments.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, I exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also,

*	I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the University’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
University to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

		I  communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

2. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2.1	 National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 and Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 includes specific provisions for following
requirements.

2.1.1	 Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for Qualified Opinion section of my report, I 
have obtained all the information and explanation that required for the audit and as far as appears from my 
examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the University as per the requirement of section 
12(a) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

2.1.2	T he financial statements presented is consistent with the preceding year as per the requirement of Section 6(1) 
(d) (iii) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

2.1.3	T he financial statements presented includes all the recommendations made by me in the previous year except 
the audit matters described in the basis for Qualified Opinion section of my report as per the requirement of 
Section 6 (1) (d) (iv) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.
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2.2	 Based on the procedures performed and evidence obtained were limited to matters that are material, nothing has come 
to my attention.

2.2.1	T o state that any member of the governing body of the University has any direct or indirect interest in any 
contract entered into by the University which are out of the normal cause of business as per the requirement 
of Section 12(d) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

2.2.2	T o state that the University has not complied with any applicable written law, general and special directions 
issued by the governing body of the University as per the requirement of Section 12(f) of the National Audit 
Act, No. 19 of 2018 except for the following observations.

Reference to Rules and Regulations Description

(a)	F inancial Regulation of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

(i)	F inancial Regulation 267 The salary or wages of an employee should, as a rule, be paid to the 
payee himself and his discharge therefore obtained on the relevant 
pay sheet, or a separate receipt may be obtained where the employee 
requests payment into his bank account. However, in 45 instances 
salaries had been paid to employees without obtaining receipts from 
them in January, February and November 2021. Also, during the 
year under review, there were 173 instances where salaries had been 
obtained by signing by another person instead of the payee.

(ii)	F inancial Regulation 371 (2) (i) The balance of a Sub-Imprest should be settled immediately
after the completion of the purpose it is granted. However, in
270 instances, aggregating to Rs. 7,230,301 of advances paid
to employees had not been settled on due dates, and thus, the
period of delays in settlement had been ranging from 11 days
to 161 days.

(ii) Where a larger Ad hoc Sub-Imprest is condidered necessary, the
authority of the General Treasury should be obtained through
the Chief Accounting Officer. However, in 20 instances 
aggregated Ad hoc Sub-Imprest amounting to Rs. 3,147,017 
had been approved by the management of the University 
without being obtained the prior authority of the General 
Treasury.

(b) Section 5.3.11 of Procurement Manual
of the Democratic Socialist Republic
of Sri Lanka (Goods & Works)

When obtaining bid for on call vehicles the bid security had not been 
obtained from selected 2 bidders during the year under review.

(c) Paragraph 13 of Motor Vehicle manual
of University of Jaffna.

Fuel consumption test for 6 vehicles had not been done for more than 
one year.

2.2.3	T o state that the University has not performed according to its powers, functions and duties as per the requirement 
of Section 12(g) of he National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 except for the following observations.

(a)	T he University had not filled 165 vacanceis in key academic posts such as professor, associate professor,
and senior lecturer/lecturer etc in ten faculties and other academic units in the University of Jaffna.

(b) According to the University Grants Commission (UGC) Circular No. 636 dated 14th July, 1995,
examination results should be released within three months after the examination. However, it was
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observed that there were considerable period of delays in releasing of examinations results, i. e. period 
of delays ranging from 01st month to 21 months by several faculties of the University such as faculties 
of Arts, Science, Management, Allied Health Science and Technology during the year 2021. As a result, 
students were at risk of missing out on opportunities to get their jobs on time.

2.2.4	T o state that the resources of the University had not been procured and utilized economically, efficiently and 
effectively within the time frames and in compliance with the applicable laws as per the requirement of Section 
12(h) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

3. Other Facts

(a) Distress loan balance amounting to Rs. 1,168,318 outstanding for a period ranging from 03 to 26 years had been
shown as receivables in the financial statements without been take proper actions to recover those dues.

(b) Sum of Rs. 1,591,323 shown as Recorp fish project of University of Amsterdam under Self Financing Courses
payables in current liabilities had been remained unsettled for a period ranging from 01 to 05 years.

(c) Sixty-nine academic staff and Twenty-one non-academic staff of the University who had gone abroad on scholarship
pregrammes had not reported for duty or left from the University after completion of the scholarships. However,
the University had not taken remedial actions to recover the bonds aggregating Rs. 71,019,495 during the period
from 1983 to 2021 from the officers who had breached agreements.

(d) A Senior lecturer in Department of Botany had obtained approval for the resignation of her post with effect from 26th
December, 2018 and acknowledged the approval. She had withdrawn her resignation and she had been reinstated,
in contrary to the Section 4.5 (C) of the Chapter V of Establishment Code of the University Grants Commission
and the Higher Educational Institution. However Rs. 12,451,000 had been paid as salary and allowance since she
had reinstated, without being obtained any continuous service by the University. Even though she had resigned
her post properly, she had been given sabbatical leave and vehicle import permit without being complete 07 years
and 06 years respectively from her reinstated date.

(e)	T he first instalment of Rs. 2,591,400 had been paid to the Engineering Unit of the University during the year
under review for completion of 14 minor maintenance works which estimated cost of Rs. 28,805,000. However,
the maintenance works had not commenced by December 31, 2021. Also, the percentage of non-completion of 11 
maintenance works cost of Rs. 29,411,000 to be completed by that unit during the year under review was between 
27 to 100.

(f) Aggregated amount of Rs. 345,359,916 had been obtained by the University as endowment funds from the well-
wishers for the academic development and encouragement for students in 204 categories. During the year under
review, Rs. 8,823,834 had been received as interest on the above funds. But Rs. 6,041,617 of that interest or 68
percent remain unused in a bank current account.

(g)	I n 2015, Sum of Rs. 53,246,276 had been donated as the estate of late Karthigesan Tamil music trust fund and the
estate of late Karthigesan Tamil library trust fund for the specified implementation. Even though Rs. 184,476,087
had been received as interest, sum of Rs. 167,160,640 or 91 percent not utilized by the specified purposes since 
the year of donation.

(h) A three storied building had been constructed at Kaithady Siddha Medicine Unit at a cost of Rs. 93.7 million
including arbitration fee, interest and interest on interest in 2015. According to the audit inspection conducted in
December, 2021, it was observed incomplete works and massive defects such as horizontal splitting, rain water
drip through most of the walls and fungus appear in inter walls within 6 year period.

(i) Seven academic staffs of the University were unable to complete their postgraduate degree within the specific
study leave period, but they had resumed duties. However, as per the Circular No. 920 dated 05th February, 2010
of the University Grant Commission and the Clause No. 14 (a) of the Agreements, the University had not taken

I fldgi : (I) fPoh    ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2022'12'02

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 02.12.2022



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2022'12'02

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 02.12.2022 1699

appropriate actions to recover the expenditure amounting to Rs. 26,969,765 incurred by the University for the 
period from 2018 to 2021 from the respective staff.

W. P. C. Wickramaratne,
Auditor General.

	Observation of the Governing Authority in respect of the issues highlighted in the report.

1. Financial Statements

1.2	B asis for Opinion

(a) As per the SLPSAS 10 & 11 income received from exchange and non-exchange transaction has to be disclosed
as an income in that particular year only. Rs. 2,171,267,711 has been received as a donation from JICA in 2021.
Even though physical building has been completed and equipment received from the project before 2021, official
handing over of the building had been done in February, 2021 by the Japanese Government to the University of
Jaffna. Hence the official receipt of this donation amounting Rs. 2,171,267,711 had been received as donation in
2021 and reported to the council after officially received the assets from the Japanese Government. Therefore,
even though the building was completed and equipment were received before 2021 official handing over of the
assets has happened only in 2021. Accordingly, proper accounting had been made for this transaction in the book
of accounts in 2021 as per SLPSAS 10 & 11.

(b) As per the SLPSAS 07 and SLPSAS 03 the residual value and the useful life of an asset shall be reviewed at
least at each annual reporting date. However, University of Jaffna has more than 11 categories of assets and some
of these categories (Lab & Teaching Equipment and office Equipment) has more than one hundred thousand
individual items. The University has carried out one the revaluation for the 1st time in 2014 by a firm of Chartered
accountants firm for the purpose of computerization at a cost of more than Rs. 5 million taking more than 5
years and updated the fixed assets registrar. Reviewing the useful life of these assets annually for the purpose
of depreciation will not be practical as it time consuming and costly exercise which is not expected to bring a
significant impact on the financial statemets. Considering these aspects the Audit Committee at its 70th meeting
held on 22nd April, 2022 recommended to the council to initiate a policy to adopt the cost model taking the
revalued amount as deemed cost changing the depreciation policy appropriately with the approved of the UGC.
The Council is in apparent with this arrangement. Currently the depreciation has been calculated according to
the UGC circular No. 649 of 05.10.1995 which specify the useful life of the assets for each category. This will be
reviewed in consultation with the UGC from 2022 onwards with the justifiation for deviating from the Accounting
standard with appropriate disclosure.

(c) Same as (b) above.

(d)	T he amount received from the treasury as a Capital grant has been properly taken to the account and disclosed
as revenue in the income statement. Rs. 40,972,090 reflected in the report was received from various sources
such as well-wishers, donors and income from restricted fund. When assets were purchased using other sources 
of funds the assets and the income are shown in the respective self-financing courses. Since it is related to the 
continuing Self-finance courses.

(e) Although the biological assets had been recognized, measured and kept in a separate ledger account properly
in terms of SLPSAS 18, for the reporting purpose the live stocks have been included and disclosed along with
Property, plant and equipment as a practice. Action had been taken to disclose the livestock as a separate line
item under non-current assets in the future.

(f) Depreciation being a noncash expenditure not funded by treasury and not considered for financial performance of
the University, we have been showing this as non-operating expenditure in the financial statement as a practice.
The amounts of depreciation for the year 2021 amount to Rs. 1,065,410,866. However, action will be taken to
show the depreciation as an operating expense in the future.
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02. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2.2.2

(a)	F inancial Regulation of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

(i) As per the financial regulation 267 staff salaries are remitted to their bank account as per the written
confirmation given by the employees. Every month while remitting the salaries to the staff bank account
we are sending the payment details clearly to each of them through their heads of departments. Up to
data salaries were made to the individual employee’s bank account properly and we did ot receive any
complaint from any employees as they have not received their salary.

		T he salary slips sent monthly to the individual employees through their department head are received and 
acknowledged monthly and returned to the finance branch properly. However, there had been instances 
where some of the employees are receiving their colleague’s salary slips due to the study leave, medical 
leave and some other reason and acknowledging with their own signature without attaching their colleagues 
request letter to collect their salary slip. Strict action has been initiated to avoid this practice and internal 
circular dated 19.05.2021 had been issued to all staff informing the procedure needs to be followed when 
they are collecting the colleague.s salary slips. Proper internal control mechanism has been accelerated 
to monitor this process closely.

(ii) (i)	 Due to the Covid 19 pandemic situation most of the institution had shut down their operations
cotinuously. University of Jaffna also completely closed for certain period continously for one to one 
and half months. Due to this most of the officers who were taken the advances for certain purposes were 
unable to commence and complete their program as they planned. Due to this the advance settlements 
had been delayed. However, we have ensured that all advances taken during the period of 2021 itself.

Also, we have taken proper control mechanism to monitor the advances and ensure the settlement of 
the advances as soon as the event is completed. Strict action has been taken and internal circulars had 
been issued to all the staff to educate them to settle their advances on time.

		(ii) When the staff is making advance request for any event costing more than Rs. 100,000 they request
the full amount of the expense as an advance since they are unable to finance the remaining amount
is excess of Rs. 100,000 from their own money. Internal circulars have already been issued to educate
the staff in advance the procedure, to be followed, regarding the limits, approval and settlement. Proper
mechanism has already been implemented to supervise and monitor the advances strictly.

(b) Procurement Manual of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka (Goods & Works)

While calling the quotation procurement procedures have been followe properly and bid security had been called
along with the bidding document. While doing the evaluation those who have failed to submit the bid security
are not been considered. Technical evaluation committee considers only those who have fulfilled the requirement
of the bidding document. Contract for on call vehicle had been awarded by the departmental procurement
committee for the eligible contractors based on the technical evaluation committee recommendation.

(c) Motor Vehicle Manual of University of Jaffna

As per the vehicle manual details fuel consumption for every vehicle had been checked annually and was
properly disclosed.

2.2.3	

(a) University has taken all efforts to fill the existing cadre vacancies prompty. However, to fill some key academic
positions such as Professor, Associate Professor, Senior Lecturer/Lecture etc. are still in process as there were
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no applications received with required qualifications despite repeated advertisements being placed. In such 
circumstances the University has filled these vacant positions by Temporary Lectures, Temporary Instructors 
and Temporary Demonstrators in order to carry out the academic programs without interruption. However, 
University was able to fill 16 academic cadre position after 31.12.2021. Action has been taken to fill existing 
cadre vacancies as soon as possible.

(b) We have taken very strict follow up action on the release of results. Monthly reports regarding release of
examination results with the details of examinations, date of examinations held, details of subjects for which
results not released and period of delay are submitted to the Senate. In addition, Internal Circular issued by the
Competent Authority on 04.03.2020 and reported to Council indicating the procedures, guidelines and rules
to expedite the process of releasing results. Action had been taken to closely monitor this process and there
has been a significant improvement on releasing the results in comparison with previous year. Timeline for
releasing the results have been included in the Examination by laws which are to be approved by the Council.

3 . Accounting Deficinecies

(a) Unsettled distress loan balances have been brought down to Rs. 1,168,318 which relates to 09 employees only.
Out of unsettled amounts one employee (Dr. Amarasinghe) distress loan had been fully settled in 2022. Out
of the 8 employees one employee had expired on 06.11.2018 and action had been taken to recover his distress
loan balance from his UPF refund. UPF form of this employee had been forwarded to UGC on 01.04.2022 to
recover Distress loan outstanding and a waiting the UGC’s response.

Another employee is on nopay foreign leave from 19.03.2019 to 18.03.2024. Recovery of his loan will take
place once he resumes duty. Also, another employee has been interdicted from the service on 18.11.2019.
Recovery of his loan will be made from his gratuity payment, if he is not reinstated.

Remaining unsettled distress loan details are shown below and action has already been taken to recover them
from these employee’s gratuity payment.

No. Emp. 
No.

Name Amount Issued Year

1 00030 S. Selvakumar 132,110 2010
2 01287 Dr. Victor 115,516 1995
3 01579 S. Gnanakumaran 66,940 1997
4 01600 R. Gnanakumaran 51,400 1997
5 02117 K. Kesavan 134,667 2003
6 03752 S. Paththinathan 98,943 2010

Computer Loan balance outstanding Rs. 27,500 has been fully recovered in year 2022.

(b)	T he Recorp fish project have been funded by Netherlands Science Foundation for different kinds of skill
development and other activities. Fund will be used only when the given criteria has been met. Also unutilized
funds of these project can be claimed by the donor at any time. In 2022 one of the M. Phil student requested 
to pay her allocated grant for the research purpose. Balance amount of this fund had to be kept under current 
liabilities as it is payable on demand.

(c) Academic Staff

		T he Committee on Obligations of Bond and Agreement (COBA) has studied all the details of bond defaulters
and prepared a policy paper to the Council which was formulated based on the prevailing legal and regulatory
framework and relevant rulings of the University Council up to 2017. The Council at its 426th meeting held
on 24.02.2018 approved the policy paper on bond obligations and granted approval for the enforcement in the
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relevant administrative work of the University of Jaffna. UGC has published all the names of the defaulters 
including all the Universities in the newspapers in 2018. The only action possible now is to take legal action.

Accordingly, a detail study of Information and details of 68 defaulters as at 24.10.2019 is being carried out 
to processed with the legal action.

		T he (COBA) at its 16th meeting held on 20.04.2022 having noted the long outstanding dues from the bond 
violators (both Academic & Non - Academic) amounting to LKR 68. million, prepared a comprehensive 
summary policy and guideline and step by step procedure for strict implementation with the approval of the 
Council. A detailed study on a case by case basis to make recommendation to the Council for the possible 
legal action is being carried out. The Committee meets on a regular basis and carries out a detailed evaluation 
with the view to clear the long outstanding balances.

		T he committee also has taken up the matters pertaining to the academic staffs who have assumed duties without 
completing their postgraduate studies within the study leave period, and  made recommendations to the council 
on appropriate action to the taken based on deliberations made at the 16th meeting held on 20.04.2022.

		T he Committee has taken following decisions against the seven defaulters out of 68.

i.	I f the Bond Violator is not responding for the request that matter should be brought to the Council for its
decision.

ii.	T he balance obligation can be waived off in considering the payment already made under the Liquidated
Damages and Interest.

iii. Recover the balance obligation through Bond property which was mortgaged by Bond Defaulters with  the
approval of the Council.

iv.	I ssue last warning letter to defaulter and sureties and threatening to impound the passport through Courts.
v. Allowed to settle the balance Bond Obligation in instalment basis within two years. If fail to settle the

payment action will be taken to threatening to impound the passport through Courts and the leagal action
will be taken to transfer the land to the University.

Non-Academic Staff

In the case of 21 nonacademic staff, all of them were not in service and most of their last reporting date for duty 
was in the 1990’s. University has taken all efforts to contact these staff with no success. Also, the University 
has still not released the Gratuity and UPF to these staff and the funds are with the University. Based on the 
information available Rs. 2,351,822.90 is the Bond amount to be recovered as at 31.12.2021. 

Action will be taken to recover the dues whenever these staffs claim their UPF dues.

(d) Mrs. J. Nandakumar informed by her letter dated 25.09.2018 that she would resing her post of Senior
Lecturer Grade I with effect from 26.12.2018 due to personal reason. The Council at its 431st meeting held on
14.10.2018 accepted her resignation with effect from 26.12.2018 and the requirement of three month notice
for resignation is waived as per the provision of Chapter V Section 4.1 of Establishments Code. Later, she has
requested to disregard her resignation and permit her to continue her service by her letter dated 14.12.2018,
(Just 12 days before the effective date of resignation 26.12.2018). Her request for revoking the resignation has
been recommended and forwarded by the Dean/Faculty of Science and Head/Department of Botany, and the
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Council at its 433rd meeting held on 16.12.2018 decided to withdraw the letter of acceptance of resignation 
based on the humanitarian grounds. Since her period of service had not been interrupted, Sabbatical leave 
was granted which is an entitlement of an employee, for the period from 30.05.2019 to 29.05.2020 for 1st 
instance and up to 29.01.2021 as an extension of earned sabbatical leave. She resumed duties on 29.01.2021 
after the sabbatical leave and she used the entire sabbatical leave to write and publish a book titled “Medical 
plants of Jaffna Peninsula” and to recover from the severe life-threatening medical complications. It is 
noted that, just prior to the sabbatical leave she was granted medical leave for the period from 08.02.2017 
to 07.02.2018 and vacation leave from 07.03.2018 to 04.05.2018 while referring her to medical board and 
considering the recommendation of the medical board. It is also emphasized that revoking the acceptance 
resignation (24.12.2018) with in three month period of the request for resignation (26.09.2018) by the Council 
on humanitarian grounds is well justifiable and reasonable. Because of the revoking of resignation, she did not 
lose her continuity of the service and thus her entitlement for sabbatical leave was considered favorably and 
sabbatical leave was granted. Vehicle permit and other benefits also granted to Mrs. J. Nandakumar based on 
the above justification. This has been adequately explained in our reply.  

(e)	T here are 76 approved cadres (skilled and unskilled) for the maintenance branch of the University of Jaffna.
Staff at the maintenance branch is for the maintenance of the existing buildings and other accessories. Out of
76 approved cadre, 39 cadres were filled, and 37 cadres are fill vacant, and the workforce of the manpower 
services are brought against the vacant cadre at the maintenance branch.

		T he defects in the buildings/rehabilitation work of the buildings are being carried out by contractual works 
but it was observed that due to the COVID 19 situation and other unexpected conditions, contractors were 
unable to complete the works on time and the maintenance branch started the execution of such work on 
priority basis with the existing work force at the maintenance branch. No special work force brought for such 
rehabilitation work. The approval for such rehabilitation works which can be managed by the maintenance 
branch, are obtained from the Vice Chancellor and the materials are purchased by the Finance Branch. The 
works are commenced on priority basis and the material at site are for the execution/commencement of work.

		T he current status of the works is given below.

No. Name of the Renovation work Awarded 
date

Comments

01 Renovation of Students toilet at Physics 
block, faculty of Science, University of 
Jaffna

13.01.2021 Due to lack of sanitary fitting in the 
market. progress not started However on 
23.02.2022 all materials received, and 
work started.

02 Upgrading of Electrical panels at 
Selvanayagam block, Faculty of Arts, 
University of Jaffna

20.01.2021 Work Completed

03 Construction of Internal Access at RAFA 
hostel, University of Jaffna

05.05.2021 Work in progress with available material

04 Painting work to the Light tower at 
physical Education unit, University of 
Jaffna

05.05.2021 Work will be started by May, 2022 as all 
material received.

05 External Painting works at the faculty of 
Arts, University of Jaffna

17.09.2021 Work in progress
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No. Name of the Renovation work Awarded 
date

Comments

06. Construction of Entrance gate at faculty 
of Management studies and Commerce, 
University of Jaffna

29.10.2021 Not started due to unavailability of 
materials in the market.

07 Sink fixing works at new building 
faculty of Technology, University of 
Jaffna, Ariviyalnagar, Kilinochchi

29.10.2021 Work in Progress. Materials are not fully 
received due to the shortage of materials 
in the market.

08. Floor concrete work at female hostel, 
University of Jaffna, Ariviyalnagar, 
Kilinochchi

11.03.2021 Not started due to unavailability of 
materials in the market

09. Floor concrete work at male hostel, 
University of Jaffna, Ariviyalnagar, 
Kilinochchi

11.08.2021 Not started due to unavailability of 
materials in the market.

10. Aluminium partition works at new 
building, faculty of Technology, 
University of Jaffna, Ariviyalnagar, 
Kilinochchi

11.08.2021 Not started due to unavailability of 
materials in the market.

11. Solar panel Armoured cable work at 
faculty of Engineering, University of 
Jaffna, Ariviyalnagar, Kilinochchi

15.11.2021 Not started due to unavailability of 
materials in the market.

12. Renovation of Boundary wall at 
Balasingam hostel, University of Jaffna

03.12.2021 Not started due to unavailability of 
materials in the market.

13. Ceiling fixing works at Quarters, 
University of Jaffna, Ariviyalnagar, 
Kilinochchi

12.03.2021 Not started due to unavailability of 
materials in the market.

14. Internet wiring work in faculty of 
Technology, University of Jaffna, 
Ariviyalnagar, Kilinochchi

14.12.2021 Not started due to unavailability of 
materials in the market.

15. Construction of laboratory (UTM) work 
in Faculty of Technology, University of 
Jaffna, Ariviyalnagar, Kilinochchi

14.12.2021 Not started due to unavailability of 
materials in the market.

		 (f) Due to the Covid 19 pandemic situation prevailed in the country, utilization of the endowment fund was not
made properly. Now the endowment fund has been taken as a separate agenda item in the monthly finance
committee and at council meeting and the progress of the endowment activities have been continously discussed
and followed up at every month. Also details of the faculty wise endowment had been given to each and every
Dean and they are continously discussing the progress of the endowment fund activities in the monthly faculty
board meeting, addition to this all the faculties have appointed faculty endowment committee and speeding
up the utilization of the endowment money.

		 (g) Kandiah Kartigeasan Tamil music trust fund and Kandiah Kartigeasan Tamil library trust fund were given
with certain criteria hence the fund utilization had to be commenced only when the given criteria is met. Also,
Kandiah Kartigeasan trust fund has a special committee to approve any project, only when they meet the
given criteria. Some of the criteria mentioned in the Kandiah Kartigeasan fund are not practical and unable
to meet those criteria. Due to the above barrier utilization of the Kandiah Kartigeasan fund became a biggest
challenge.
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But the committee of the Kandiah Kartigeasan trust fund had decided to negotiate and change the criteria in 
order to commence activities and utilize the fund. Accordingly, the University invited the donor of the Kandiah 
Kartigeasan fund to Sri Lanka in 2020 and get their consent to change certain criteria and use the funds. After 
the changes of the criteria, the activities of the Kandiah Kartigeasan trust fund had started moving fast and 
the progress has been very satisfactory. Currently following activities have already been carried out from the 
Kandiah Kartigeasan trust fund.

Kandiah Kartigeasan Fund Activities

Date Details Amount
20.06.2020 International Tamil Conference 2,000,000.00

23.07.2020 Advance to purchase consumables required for the ola leaf conservation and 
preservation

126,950.00

04.01.2021 Supply & Installation of Book Scanner for the proposed Tamil Library 264,000.00

Supply & Installation of Computer Server for the proposed Tamil Library UOJ. 1,273,620.00

22.03.2021 Purchase External HDD, KVA, UPS, HP pro Book 325,490.00

22.03.2021 Purchase (MFP e-studio, Toshiba, Exit tray, Embeded wifi 771,660.00

Supply of Video Camera Tripod for the Capturing Unit of Conservation & 
Preservation Laboratory

148,500.00

International Tamil Conference 2,000,000.00
20.05.2021 Supply of Video Camera for the Capturing Unit of Conservation & Preservation 

Laboratory, UOJ
2,234,018.88

Supply of Camera and Streaming accessories for the Capturing Unit of 
Conservation & Preservation Laboratory

1,772,869.87

Bill Final - Renovation to Preservation Laboratory of Tamil Library 688,867.84
Supply of Executive Chairs - Tamil Library 79,704.00
Supply of Chairs - Tamil Library 33,600.00
Supply of Chairs - Tamil Library 48,654.00

12.11.2021 Supply of Furniture (Chief Officer Table, Writing Table & Computer Table) for 
Tamil Library

366,930.00

Supply and Installation of Highend Computer for the proposed Tamil Library 525,000.00
Supply of Furniture for Conservation & Preservation Laboratory 307,250.00

21.12.2021 For consenting to reprint the books written by Mr. Veeramani Iyer 100,000.00
02.02.2022 Refurbishment of Library Block at RAFA, University of Jaffna 670,464.00
08.03.2022 Refurbishment of Library Block at RAFA, University of Jaffna 264,603.22
23.03.2022 Supply of Steel Cabinet for Digitization Laboratary, Library UOJ 44,798.40
23.03.2022 Supply of Multimedia Projector for Tamil Library, Library UOJ 198,287.00
23.03.2022 Supply of Steel Cabinet for Digitization Laboratory, Library UOJ 218,700.00
04.04.2022 Library Books Direct Purchase 180,922.50

Library Books Direct Purchase 230,593.41
07.04.2022 Supply of Still Camera with Flash Light for Capturing Unit, Library, UOJ 2,440,000.00

Total 17,315,483.12
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(h) Construction of Five Storied Building for the Unit of Siddha Medicine of the University of Jaffna at Kaithady
at a Total Cost Estimate (TCE) of Rs. 109.5 million was approved by the Cabinet of Ministers on 02.09.2010
on Measure and Pay basis. Although the original estimated cost was prepared for 5 storied building in 2009,
the bids were called in April 2013. Due to the gap of 3 years between the preparation of estimate and invitation
for bid, the scope of this project had to be limited to 3 floors with foundation for 5 storied building.

			F urther the contract was awarded on 30.07.2013 to M/S A Group Construction & Consultants for Rs. 
78,855,000.00 excluding VAT with the approval of Ministry Procurement Committee.

			T he contractor handed over the building through the consultant of this project (Central Engineering Consultancy 
Bureau) with some defects in November 2015 and the contractor failed to rectify the defects within the given 
period. There were some contractual issues during the implementation of this project. Some of the disputes 
were solved. At the end, the contractor has referred 5 contractual disputes to the Adjudicator. Those 5 disputes 
relates to the following.

1. Extension of contract period.
2. Liquidated damages (LD) imposed by the Client.
3. The defects not attended by the contractor
4. Deletion of lift installation.
5. Interest for delayed payment.

Adjudication was held and the Adjudicator submitted the award report. The award report of Adjudicator was 
discussed in detail at the Council on 28.01.2017. Finally the Council decided not to accept the report of the 
Adjudicator due to its incompleteness. Further contractor went to Arbitration, Arbitrator submitted the award 
report. The award report of Arbitrator was approved by Council held on 01.07.2018.

			F urther, new proposal was submitted for Construction & completion of balance 4th & 5th floor of existing 
5 storied building for Siddha Medicine Unit at a Total Cost Estimate (TCE) of Rs. 130.1 million which was 
approved by the Cabinet of Ministers on 07.05.2019 on Measure and Pay basis. But the money had not been 
allocated by the treasury in 2020 and 2021 to implement the project. In the later part of 2021, there was a 
suspension of the construction projects by the Ministry of Finance. Thus the building is not completed. Existing 
building is being utilized fully. Maintenance team has already inspected the defects and action is being taken 
by the Works Engineer to rectify the defects.

		 (i) With report to the recovery of Rs. 26,969,765 the COBA at its 16th meeting held on 20th April, 2022
recommended to recover the obligation of bond from the staff whoever failed to complete their post graduate
degree but assumed duty without completion. Action has already been taken to send letters to relevant staff 
demanding them to settle the obligation amount with copies to their guarant. If they fail to settle the payment
action will be taken to issue vacation of post with the approval of the council.

12 - 52
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Miscellaneous Departmental Notices
PV 86807.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Hideaway Retreats (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Hideaway Retreats (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “23.08.2012” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Hideaway Retreats (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-185

PV 73767.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Island Ventures (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Island 
Ventures (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“13.08.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Island Ventures (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-184

PV 72740.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Wonder Lanka Tours (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Wonder 
Lanka Tours (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“16.06.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Wonder Lanka Tours (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-183

PV 77648.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Acqua Villas (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Acqua 
Villas (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“09.03.2011” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Acqua Villas (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-182
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PV 100695.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Master’s Plan (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Master’s Plan (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“04.09.2014” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Master’s Plan (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-181

PV 105245.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Al-Naam Farms (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Al-
Naam Farms (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“05.05.2015” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Al-Naam Farms (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-180

PV 104653.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the 
Name of “Mahagama Health & Beauty (Private) 

Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Mahagama Health & Beauty (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “23.03.2015” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Mahagama Health & Beauty (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-179

PV 2542.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Goal Key Construction (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Goal Key Construction (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “18.08.2006” under the Companies Act, 
No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Goal Key Construction (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-178
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PV 75653.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Prahasthi Business Systems (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Prahasthi Business Systems (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “24.11.2010” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Prahasthi Business Systems (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-177

PV 65214.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Elmas Engineering (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Elmas 
Engineering (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“19.08.2008” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Elmas Engineering (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-176

PV 5318.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Supreme Investments (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Supreme Investments (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “08.10.2001” under the Companies Act, 
No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Supreme Investments (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-175

PV 72717.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Dambulla Plantations (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Dambulla Plantations (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “15.06.2010” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Dambulla Plantations (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-174
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PV 22062.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Silver Season International (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Silver Season International (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “30.12.2004” under the Companies Act, 
No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Silver Season International (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-173

PV 73838.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Bharath Investments (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Bharath 
Investments (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“19.08.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Bharath Investments (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-172

PV 104370.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Power X L Engineering (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Power 
X L Engineering (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “11.03.2015” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Power X L Engineering (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-171

PB 743.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Access Consolidated Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Access Consolidated Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“08.06.2005” under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Access Consolidated Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-170
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PV 90432.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the 
Name of “Agfour Engineering Services (Private) 

Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Agfour 
Engineering Services (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “09.01.2013” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Agfour Engineering Services (Private) Limited” will 
unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-169

PV 75598.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Malme Lanka (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Malme Lanka (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “22.11.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Malme Lanka (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-168

PV 63747.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Vinora Tea Factory (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Vinora 
Tea Factory (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“08.04.2008” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Vinora Tea Factory (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-167

PV 71514.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Chanmil Pawn Brokers (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Chanmil Pawn Brokers (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “16.03.2010” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Chanmil Pawn Brokers (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-166
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PV 82665.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Vision Solar Power and Construction (Private) 

Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Vision 
Solar Power and Construction (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “23.11.2011” under the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Vision Solar Power and Construction (Private) Limited” 
will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-165

PV 88402.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Idea Telecom (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Idea 
Telecom (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“21.09.2012” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Idea Telecom (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-164

PV 74801.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Nihals Imports (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Nihals 
Imports (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“11.10.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Nihals Imports (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-163

PV 77825.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Laxman Tax Accountants (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Laxman Tax Accountants (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “17.03.2011” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Laxman Tax Accountants (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.
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PV 105351.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Chromatic Trading Ceylon Company (Pvt) 

Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Chromatic Trading Ceylon Company (Pvt) Ltd” a Company 
incorporated on “29.04.2015” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Chromatic Trading Ceylon Company (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-161

PV 92731.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Max Watt Power (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Max Watt Power (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“28.05.2013” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Max Watt Power (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-160

PV 78580.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Sam Lanka Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Sam 
Lanka Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated 
on “29.04.2011” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Sam Lanka Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-159

PV 63481.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Celcius Energy Enviro Solutions (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Celcius Energy Enviro Solutions (Pvt) Ltd” a Company 
incorporated on “17.03.2008” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Celcius Energy Enviro Solutions (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-158
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PV 70443.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Expat Cargo Services (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Expat 
Cargo Services (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“21.12.2009” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Expat Cargo Services (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-157

PV 73645.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Imaginer (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Imaginer (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“06.08.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Imaginer (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
23rd November, 2022.

12-156

PV 71168.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Gtrack Solutions (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Gtrack 
Solutions (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“19.02.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Gtrack Solutions (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-121

PV 67862.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the 
Name of “Schokman & Samerawickreme Kandy 

(Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Schokman & Samerawickreme Kandy (Private) Limited” 
a Company incorporated on “21.05.2009” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Schokman & Samerawickreme Kandy (Private) Limited” 
will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.
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PV 64405.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Quarry Masters Kandy (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Quarry 
Masters Kandy (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “25.06.2008” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Quarry Masters Kandy (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-123

PV 86120.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “The New Global Fashion (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“The New Global Fashion (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “23.05.2012” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “The New Global Fashion (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-118

PV 100627.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Sky Chem & Construction (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Sky 
Chem & Construction (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “02.09.2014” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Sky Chem & Construction (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-119

PV 73700.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Taprobane Exports (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Taprobane Exports (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “11.08.2010” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Taprobane Exports (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-120
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PV 87375.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Anodya Resorts (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Anodya 
Resorts (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“31.07.2012” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Anodya Resorts (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-117

PV 14211.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “N. I. Industries (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “N. I. 
Industries (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“04.12.1997” under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of  
“N. I. Industries (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th November, 2022.

12-116

PV 10669.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Serendib Publishers and Advertisers (Private) 

Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Serendib Publishers and Advertisers (Private) Limited” 
a Company incorporated on “12.09.2000” under the 
Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Serendib Publishers and Advertisers (Private) Limited” 
will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-115

PV 14441.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Pulma Exports (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Pulma 
Exports (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“02.11.2006” under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Pulma Exports (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
14th November, 2022.
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PV 72539.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Nilaveli Salt Producers (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Nilaveli Salt Producers (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated 
on “09.06.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Nilaveli Salt Producers (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-113

PV 100565.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Success Infinite International (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Success 
Infinite International (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“28.08.2014” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Success Infinite International (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-112

PV 73516.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Middle East Consulting (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Middle 
East Consulting (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“30.07.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Middle East Consulting (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-111

PV 87146.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Blackwatch Maritime (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Blackwatch Maritime (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated 
on “19.07.2012” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Blackwatch Maritime (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-110
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PV 89986.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Callidus Consultants (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Callidus Consultants (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “18.12.2012” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Callidus Consultants (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-109

PV 72698.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “High Looks (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “High 
Looks (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“14.06.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“High Looks (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-108

PV 72643.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Prime Tankers Lanka (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Prime 
Tankers Lanka (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “30.06.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Prime Tankers Lanka (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-107

PV 88306.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Tenth Eve Holdings (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Tenth 
Eve Holdings (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “18.09.2012” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Tenth Eve Holdings (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.
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PV 71009.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Ceypay Lanka (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Ceypay Lanka (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “11.02.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Ceypay Lanka (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-100

PV 89679.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Idea Technologies (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Idea 
Technologies (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “03.12.2012” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Idea Technologies (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-99

PV 116536.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Yathama Ventures (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Yathama Ventures (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“07.10.2016” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Yathama Ventures (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-135

PV 62762.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Herb Botanic (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Herb 
Botanic (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on “21.01.2008” 
under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on 
business or in operation.
Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Herb Botanic (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-132
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PV 77276.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Dolphin Beach Paradise (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Dolphin Beach Paradise (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated 
on “18.02.2011” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Dolphin Beach Paradise (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-133

PV 101159.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Namaratne Motors (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Namaratne Motors (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “26.09.2014” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Namaratne Motors (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-129

PV 72581.
COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Hanana Trading (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Hanana 
Trading (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“07.06.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Hanana Trading (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-124

PV 73451.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Peninsula Pharmaceuticals (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Peninsula Pharaceuticals (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “28.07.2010” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Peninsula Pharmaceuticals (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.
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PV 64710.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Anvoline (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Anvoline (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“04.07.2008” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Anvoline  (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-126

PV 72726.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Moon Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Moon 
Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“15.06.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Moon Trading Company (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-134

PV 94469.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “De Gastines Investments (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “De 
Gastines Investments (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “10.09.2013” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “De Gastines Investments (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-130

PV 75028.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Kids.com (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Kids.com (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“21.10.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Kids.com (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-131
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PV 71837.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Olakra (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Olakra (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“05.04.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Olakra (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-127

PV 90590.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Euro Asian Agencies (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Euro 
Asian Agencies (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “18.01.2013” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Euro Asian Agencies (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-128

PV 89073.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Otek Engineering and Constructions (Pvt) 

Ltd”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Otek 
Engineering and Constructions (Pvt) Ltd” a Company 
incorporated on “25.10.2012” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Otek Engineering and Constructions (Pvt) Ltd” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-104

PV 72703.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Ensort (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Ensort 
(Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on “15.06.2010” 
under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on 
business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Ensort (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.
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PV 72612.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Lanka America Farms (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Lanka 
America Farms (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “09.06.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Lanka America Farms (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-106

PV 117952.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Arai Lanka (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Arai 
Lanka (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“22.11.2016” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name of 
“Arai Lanka (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-136

PV 85180.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “The Banquet Company Lanka (Private) 

Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “The 
Banquet Company Lanka (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “28.03.2012” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “The Banquet Company Lanka (Private) Limited” will 
unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-137

PV 75751.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the Name 
of “Black Scorpion (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Black 
Scorpion (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“29.11.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice 
that at the expiration of three months from this date the 
name of “Black Scorpion (Private) Limited” will unless 
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register 
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be 
dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
22nd November, 2022.

12-103
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PV 97618.

COMPANIES ACT, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394(3) to strike off the 
Name of “Infinity Engineering Services (Private) 

Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Infinity 
Engineering Services (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “17.03.2014” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Sanjeewa Dissanayake, Registrar 
General of Companies, acting under Section 394(3) of the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that 
at the expiration of three months from this date the name 
of “Infinity Engineering Services (Private) Limited” will 
unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

Sanjeewa Dissanayake,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
16th November, 2022.

12-102

Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 

banking public company duly incorporated under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 23rd July 
2022 and amended on 22nd October 2022 by the 
Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 23rd July, 2022 adopted 
by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Autioneer to conduct Public Auction 
in respect of the properties as security by Blue Mountain 
Properties Private Limited who has made default loans 
granted by the Bank.

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction and 
to amend the Resolution accordingly.

It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend to said Resolution dated 23rd July, 2022 
by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction referred to in the 
said Resolution and to take necessary legal steps under the 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/1

Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 

banking public company duly incorporated under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 21st 
December, 2019 and amended on 22nd October 
2022 by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank 
PLC, under section 04 of the Recovery of Loans 

by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as 
amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 21st December, 2019 
adopted by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, 
under section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Autioneer to conduct Public Auctions 
in respect of the properties as security by Basheer Nizam, 
Mohamed Ismail Nisrina and Mohamed Basheer Ahamed 
Shabry who have made default of loans granted by the Bank 
for the recovery of sum of Rupees Seven Million Six Hundred 
and Two Thousand Sixty Five and cents Eighty one only  
Rs. 7,602,065.81 as at 31st October, 2019.

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auctions and 
to amend the Resolution accordingly.
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It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend to said Resolution dated 21st December, 
2019 by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auctions referred to in 
the said Resolutions and to take necessary legal steps under 
the Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/2

Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 

banking public company duly incorporated under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 21st 
December, 2019 and amended on 22nd October 
2022 by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank 
PLC, under section 04 of the Recovery of Loans 

by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as 
amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 21st December, 2019 
adopted by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, 
under section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Autioneer to conduct Public Auctions 
in respect of the properties as security by Basheer Nizam, 
Mohamed Ismail Nisrina and Mohamed Basheer Ahamed 
Shabry who have made default of loans granted by the Bank 
for the recovery of sum of Rupees Two Hundred and Ninety 
Nine Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty and cents Seven 
only (Rs. 299,850.07) and a sum Rupees Seven Million Six 
Hundred and Two Thousand Sixty Five and cents Eighty 
one only Rs. 7,602,065.81 as at 31st October, 2019.

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction and 
to amend the Resolution accordingly.

It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend to said Resolutions dated 21st December, 
2019 by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 

of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction referred to in the 
said Resolutions and to take necessary legal steps under the 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/3

Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 

banking public company duly incorporated under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 13th July, 
2019 and amended on 22nd October 2022 by the 
Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 13th July, 2019 adopted 
by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing  
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Autioneer to conduct Public Auction 
in respect of the properties as security by Mohamed Ismail 
Mufees carrying on business as sole proprietor under the 
name, style and firm of M. I. M. Stores who have made 
default loans granted by the Bank for the recovery of a 
sum of Rupees Five Million Six Hundred and Ninety Five 
Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifteen only (Rs. 5,695,815.00) 
as at 28th February, 2019.

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auctions and 
to amend the Resolutions accordingly.

It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend the said Resolutions dated 13th July, 
2019 by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auctions referred to in 



1726

the said Resolutions and to take necessary legal steps under 
the Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/4

Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 

banking public company duly incorporated under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 23rd July 
2019 and amended on 22nd October 2022 by the 
Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 13th July, 2019 adopted 
by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing Mr. 
I. W. Jayasuriya, Auctioneer to conduct Public Auction in
respect of the properties as security by Mohamed Ismail
Mufees carrying on business as sole proprietor under the
name, style and firm of M I M Stores who have made
default loans granted by the Bank for the recovery of
sum of Rupees Twenty Eight Million Six Hundred and
Twenty One Thousand Two Hundred and Fifteen Only
(Rs. 28,621,215.00) as at 28th February, 2019.

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auctions and 
to amend the Resolution accordingly.

It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend to said Resolutions dated 13th July, 
2019 by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auctions referred to in 
the said Resolutions and to take necessary legal steps under 
the Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/5

Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 

banking public company duly incorporated under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 22nd May, 
2021 and amended on 22nd October 2022 by the 
Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 22nd May, 2021 
adopted by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, 
under section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing  
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Autioneer to conduct Public Auction 
in respect of the properties as security by Shamreens Private 
Limited who have made default loans granted by the Bank. 

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction and 
to amend the Resolution accordingly.

It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend the said Resolution dated 22nd May, 
2021 by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction referred to in the 
said Resolution and to take necessary legal steps under the 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/6

 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
kaduwela branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Commercials Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of 

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act No. 04 of 
1990

Loan Account No. : 2374081.
Gamage New Enterprises (Private) Limited.
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at a meeting held on 28th July 2021 the Board of Directors 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved unanimously 
as follows :-

Whereas Gamage New Enterprises (Private) Limited 
a company duly incorporated under registration No. PV 
115720 and having its registered office at No. 577/1B, 
Samurdhi Mawatha, Biyagama, in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, as the Obligor, and 
Dasith Pabasara Mavita Gamage of No. 577/1B, 
Samurdhi Mawatha, Biyagama, as the Mortgagor, have 
made default in payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 5036 
dated 14th December 2017 attested by W. L. Jayaweera, 
Notary Public of Colombo, in favour of Commercial Bank 
of Ceylon PLC, over the land and premises morefully 
described in the schedule hereto and/or the Schedule 
of the said Mortgaged Bond and there is now due and 
owing to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC, as at 4th 
June 2021, an aggregate sum of Rupees Eight Million 
One Hundred and Eight Thousand Seven Hundred and 
Sixty Nine and Cents Fifty Nine (Rs.8,108,769.59) on 
the said Bond (on account of Term Loan No. 2374081) 
and the Board of Directors of Commercial Bank of 
Ceylon PLC under the powers vested by Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act No. 04 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the land and premises morefully 
described in the schedule hereto and mortgaged to the 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC by the said Mortgage 
Bond No. 5036 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. M. 
H. T. Karunarathne, Licensed Auctioneer, of T and H 
Auction of No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa, for 
the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Eight Million One 
Hundred and Eight Thousand Seven Hundred and Sixty 
Nine and Cents Fifty Nine (Rs.8,108,769.59)with further 
interest on a sum of Rs.6,000,000.00 at the rate of 16.5% 
per annum from 05th June 2021 to date of sale together 
with costs of advertising and any other charges incurred 
less payments (if any) since received."\

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 1A 
depicted in Plan No. 36/2003 dated 04.03.2003 made by  
P. M. Leelarathna, Licensed Surveyor of the land called and
known as "Delgahalanda alias Millagahawatta" together
with the trees, buildings, plantations and everything else
standing thereon situated at Biyagama Village in the
Grama Niladhari Division of 280 Biyagama North within
the Divisional Secretary's Division and Pradeshiya Sabha
Limits of Biyagama in Adhikari Pattu of Siyane Korale in
the District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said
Lot 1A is bounded on the North by Samurdhi Mawatha,
on the East by Lot 1B, on the South by Lot 6 of Hiranthi

Mayadunna on the West by land claimed by United National 
Party Office, Biyagama and Land of Ebert Silva Co. Ltd and 
containing in extent more correctly one Rood and Three 
Decimal Eight Perches (0A., 1R., 3.8P) according to the said 
Plan No. 36/2003 and registered in Volume/Folio N216/23 
at the Gampaha Land Registry.

23rd August, 2021.

R. A. P. Rajapaksha,
Company Secretary.

12-83

National  Development  Bank  PLC

Resolution Adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the National Development Bank PLC Under 
Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 as 
Amended

At a Meeting of the Board of Directors of the National 
Development Bank PLC held on 14th of December 2021 
the following resolution was specially and unanimously 
adopted :-

"Whereas Don Chandrasekere Amarasinghe of Kandy 
(First Borrower) Jayasinghe Arachchige Mangalika 
Jayasinghe of Minuwangoda (Second Borrower) and 
Amarasinghe Arachchige Nuwan Pubudu Amarasinghe 
of Bakamuna (Third Borrower) carrying on a business 
in a partnership under the name style and firm of "Single 
Traders" registered with the registrar of business names 
under Registration No. NCP/EH/10/91 dated 03.08.1993 
and having its principal place of business at Bakamuna 
and Jayasinghe Arachchige Samanthi Jayasinghe of 
Minuwangoda (Fourth Borrower) have made default in 
the payment on the Loans/Financial Facilities granted 
against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by Mortgage Bond No. 2828 dated 
25.08.2017 attested by (Ms.) Dharshani Gunasekara 
Notary Public of Matale and Mortgage Bond No. 351 
dated 25.10.2019 attested by (Ms.)Upeka Piyumali 
Kumari Tennakoon Notary Public of Kandy executed in 
favour of National Development Bank PLC (Bank).

And whereas Third Borrower being the freehold owner 
of the property and premises described in the schedule 
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hereto has mortgaged his freehold right title and interest to 
the Bank under the said Mortgage Bonds.

And whereas a sum of Seventy-one Million Six Hundred 
and Five Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty Rupees and 
Thirteen Cents (Rs.71,605,950.13) has become due and 
owing on the said Mortgaged Bonds to the Bank as at 19th 
August 2021.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the 
Powers vested in them under the Recovery of Loans  by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990 as amended 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as Principal Act) do 
hereby Resolve that the Property and premises including the 
Freehold and other right title and interest to the property and 
premises described below mortgaged to the Bank as security 
for the said Loans/Facilities by the said Mortgage Bonds 
be sold by public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya Licensed 
Auctioneer for the recovery of the said sum of Seventy-one 
Million Six Hundred and Five Thousand Nine Hundred and 
Fifty Rupees and Thirteen Cents (Rs. 71,605,950.13) or any 
portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time of sale and 
interest on the amount of Fifty Three Million Four Hundred 
and Twenty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty 
Eight Rupees and Forty Four Cents (Rs.53,429,938.44) 
secured by the said Mortgage Bonds and due in the case of 
said Mortgage Bonds to the Bank at the rate of Seventeen 
Percent (17%) per annum from 20th August 2021 to the date 
of sale together with the cost of advertising selling and other 
charges incurred in terms of Section 13 of the Principal Act 
less any payments (if any) since received"

The Schedule

All that divided and defined  allotment of land depicted 
as Lot 14 depicted in the plan No. 940 dated 10.01.2002 and 
made by K. M. H. W. Bandara, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called "Hikghawatta alias Rikgahawatta and known as 
Kanuwana Estate "Situated at Kanuwana Estate in Ja-Ela 
within the Gramasewa Division of 191/A Atawana Kanuwa, 
within the Secretarial Division of Ja-Ela in the Urban  
Council Limits of Ja-Ela in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale 
in the District of Gampaha Western Province and which said 
Lot 14 is bounded on the, North by : Lot 13 (Res for Road 
9. 0m. Wide), East by : Lot 13A (Res for Road 9.0m wide)
South by : Lot 63 and West by : Lot 15 and containing extent
Ten Decimal Four Perches (0A., 0R., 10.40P) together with
everything standing thereon and registered under v/f H
78/29 at Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with right to use of way over and along the 
following land,

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot 13 (reservation for road 9m wide) depicted in the plan 

No. 940 dated 10.01.2002 and made by K. M. H. W. Bandara, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Hikghawatta alias 
Rikgahawatta and known as Kanuwana Estate” Situated at 
Kanuwana Estate in Ja-Ela within the Gramaseva Division 
of 191/A Atawana Kanuwa, within the Secretarial Division 
of Ja-Ela in the Urban Council Limits of Ja-Ela in Ragam 
Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha 
Western Province and which said Lot 13 is bounded on the, 
North by : Lots 35,46,48, 49,32,33 East by : Lots 34, 3, 4, 5, 
6, 7. 8, 9, 10 , 11, 12, 64,65 68, 73 and 74, South by : Lots 32 
in Plan No. 165 made by L C B Rajapaksha LS and Lots 14, 
15, 16, 17 and 18 and West by Lots 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 
14, 20, 21, 49, 50, 51, 55, 35 36 and containing extent Two 
Roods Nineteen Decimal Six Naught Perches (0A., 2R., 
19.60P)and registered in V/F H 71/139 at Gampaha Land 
Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot 35 (reservation for road 9m wide) depicted in the plan 
No. 940 dated 10.01.2002 and made by K. M. H. W. Bandara, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Hikgahawatta alias 
Rikgahawatta and known as Kanuwana Estate” Situated at 
Kanuwana Estate in Ja-Ela within the Gramaseva Division 
of 191/A Atawana Kanuwa, within the Secretarial Division 
of Ja-Ela in the Urban Council Limits of Ja-Ela in Ragam 
Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha 
Western Province and which said Lot 35 is bounded on the 
North by : Lots 31 and 32, East by : Lots 13, 39, 40, 41, 
42, 43, 44, 45 and 46, South by : Lots 36,37, 38, 39 and 13 
and West by : Lot 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29 and 30 
and containing extent One rood and Nought Decimal Eight 
Perches (0A., 1R., 0.8P) and registered in V/F H 74/274 at 
Gampaha Land Registry.

3. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot 32 (reservation for road) depicted in the plan No. 940 
dated 10.01.2002 and made by K. M. H. W. Bandara, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Hikgahawatta alias 
Rikgahawatta and known as Kanuwana Estate” Situated at 
Kanuwana Estate Ja-Ela within the Gramaseva Division of 
191/A Atawana Kanuwa, within the Secretarial Division of 
Ja-Ela in the Urban Council Limits of Ja-Ela in the Ragam 
Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha 
Western Province and which said Lot 32 is bounded on the 
North by - Lots 33, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 East by - Lots 7, 8, 
9, and 10, South by - Lots 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 and 18 
and Lots 43, 44 and West by : Lot H in Plan No. 3002/P and 
containing extent Three Roods and Twenty Three Decimal 
Six Five Perches (0A., 3R., 23.65P) and registered in V/F H 
71/222 at Gampaha Land registry.

4. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot H (reservation for 20 feet wide road) depicted in the 
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plan No. 3002 dated 26.01.1959 and made by R. A. C. 
S. Gunarathne Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
"Hikgahawatta alias Rikgahawatta and known as Kanuwana 
Estate" Situated at Kanuwana Estate in Ja-Ela within the 
Gramaseva Division of 191/A Atawana Kanuwa, within the 
Secretarial Division of Ja-Ela in the Urban Council Limits 
of Ja-Ela in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District 
of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot H is 
bounded on the North by : Lot B1, East by - Lot B2, South 
by -Portion of Lot B1 and West by - road and containing 
extent Two Roods and Ten Perches (0A., 2R., 10P) and 
registered in V/F H 71/224 at Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with all and singular the immovable plant 
and machinery equipment fixtures fittings and services 
which are now or which may hereafter from time to time 
be affixed or permanently fastened to the said allotment 
of land more fully referred on above including Electricity 
Supply system together with the equipment, Water supply 
system equipment, Telecommunication equipment and Air 
conditioning  equipment.

By Order of the Board,

	 Secretary to the Board,
	 National Development Bank PLC.

12-93/1

National Development Bank PLC

Resolution Adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the National Development Bank PLC Under 
Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990 as amended)

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of the National 
Development Bank PLC held on 14th of December 2021 
the following resolution was specially and unanimously 
adopted :-

“Whereas Amarasinghe Arachchige Nuwan 
Pubudu Amarasinghe of Bakamuna (First Borrower) 
and Jayasinghe Arachchige Samanthi Jayasinghe of 
Minuwangoda (Second Borrower) have made default in 
the payment on the Loans/Financial Facilities granted 
against the security of the Property and premises 
morefully described in the schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by Mortgage Bond No. 427 dated 
17.05.2016 attested by (Ms.) W. E. Nadeeka Jeewanthi 

Harshani alias Nadeeka Ekanayake Notary Public of 
Negombo and Mortgage Bond No. 2837 dated 26.08.2017 
attested by (Ms.) Dharshani Gunesekare, Notary Public 
of Matale executed in favour of National Development 
Bank PLC (Bank).

And whereas Second Borrower being the Freehold owner 
of the property and premises described in the schedule 
hereto has mortgaged her freehold right title and interest to 
the Bank under the said Mortgage Bonds.

And Whereas as sum of Twenty Six Million Nine 
Hundred and Eighty-eight Thousand Three Hundred and 
Fifteen Rupees and Sixty Five Cents (Rs.26,988,315.65) has 
become due and owing on the said Mortgage Bonds to the 
Bank as at 19th August 2021.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the 
powers vested in them under the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions)  Act No. 04 of 1990 as amended 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as Principal Act) do 
hereby Resolve that the property and premises including 
the Feehold and other right title and interest to the Property 
and premises  described below mortgaged to the Bank as 
security for the said Loans/Facilities by the said Mortgage 
Bonds be sold by public acution by I. W. Jayasuriya Licensed 
Auctioneer for the recovery of the said sum of Twenty 
Six Million Nine Hundred and Eighty Eight Thousand 
Three Hundred and Fifteen Rupees and Sixty Five Cents 
(Rs.26,988,315.65) or any portion thereof remaining unpaid 
at the time of sale and interest on the amount of Twenty 
Million Fifty One Thousand Ten Rupees and Seventy Nine 
Cents (Rs.20,051,010.79) secured by the said Mortgage 
Bonds and due in the case of said Mortgage Bonds to the 
Bank at the rate of Seventeen Percent (17%) per annum 
from 20th August 2021 to the date of sale together with 
the cost of advertising selling and other charges incurred in 
terms of Section 13 of the Principal Act less any payments 
(if any) Since received”

The Schedule

All that divided and defined  allotment of Land 
marked Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 9001 dated 01.02.2013 
06.02.2013 made by W. D. N. Senevirathne Licensed 
Surveyor of the Land called as Hedawakagahawatta 
alias Kahatagahawatta situated of Medamulla within the 
Divisional Secretariat Division and the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Minuwangoda and within the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Medamulla in Aluthkuru Korale of Dasiya Pattu 
within the Land  Registration Division of Gampaha in the 
District of Gampaha in Western province and the said Lot 
1 bounded on the North  - by Part of this land owned by  
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J. A. Sarath and Pradeshiya Sabha Road, East : by Pradeshiya 
Sabha Road and land owned by Walter Jayasinghe, South : 
by Land owned by Walter Jayasinghe, Land owned by J. A. 
Dilini Ruwanthika Jayasinghe and Land Owned by Ebert 
Jayasinghe and West - by land owned by Ebert Jayasinghe 
and Land owned by J. A. Sarath Jayasinghe.

Containing in extent of two Rood and Nought Two 
Decimal Nought Nine Perches (0A., 2R., 02.09P) together 
with the soil trees plantation and everything standing 
thereon. This is registered in volume folio K 53/95 at the 
Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with all and singular the immovable plant 
and machinery equipment fixtures fittings and services 
which are now or which may hereafter from time to time 
be affixed or permenently fastened to the said allotment 
of land morefully referred on above including Electricity 
supply system together with the equipment, Water supply 
system equipment, Telecommunication equipment and Air 
Conditioning equipment.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-92/1

Hatton   National  Bank  PLC
dambulla branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions ) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Gasnega Ralalage Saman Senarathne.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 27th October, 2022 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas Gasnega Ralalage Saman Senarathne as the 
Obligor mortgaged and hypothecated property morefully 
described in the schedule hereto under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 4987 dated 28.06.2017 attested 
by S. S. Hewapathirana, Notary Public of Kurunegala, 
13184 dated 30.01.2018 and 13788 dated 24.01.2019 
both attested by S. M. R. Jayawardana, Notary Public 

of Kurunegala in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC 
as security for repayment, of a Term Loan facility of 
Rs. 8,000,000 among other facilities granted by Hatton 
National Bank PLC to Gasnega Ralalage Saman 
Senarathne.

And whereas the said Gasnega Ralalage Saman 
Senarathne has made default in payment of the sum due to 
Hatton National Bank PLC on the said Bonds and on the 
said Term Loan facility of Rs. 8,000,000 and there is now 
due and owing to Hatton National Bank PLC as at 25th 
July 2022 a sum of Rupees Nine Million One Hundred 
and Eighty Three Thousand  Eight Hundred and Eleven 
and Cents Six Only (Rs. 9,183,811.06) on the Said Bonds 
only for the said Term Loan facility among other facilities 
and the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC 
under the power vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act No.04 of 1990 as amended do 
hereby resolve to sell mortgaged property as described in the 
schedule hereto and mortgage to Hatton National Bank PLC 
by the said Bond Nos. 4987, 13184 and 13788 be sold by 
public auction by N. U. Jayasuriya Licensed Auctioneer of 
All Island for recovery of the said sum of Rs. 9,183,811.06 
together with further interest at the rate of AWPLR + 14% p. 
a. on the capital outstanding of Rs. 7,175,000 from 26th July
2022 to date of sale together with costs of advertising and
other charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
as Lot 1 in Plan No. 1176/2016 dated 12.09.2016 made 
by Okandapola, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called Duwannagalayaya situated in the village of 
Kayanwala in the Grama Niladhari Division of Sigiriya in 
the Divisional Secretary Division of Dambulla within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Dambulla in Inamaluwa Korale 
in the District of Matale Central Province and bounded on 
the,

North - By road, East - by Lot 02 in the said Plan 
No. 1176/2016, South - by Lot 02 in the said Plan No. 
1176/2016 and land of A. V. Amarasena West - by lands 
of G. Karunarathne and G. M. Gunathilaka and containing 
in extent One Acre (01A., 0R., 0P) together with the trees, 
plantations, and everything else standing thereon subject 
to the reservations and conditions stated in Crown Grant 
No. Madyama/Dambu/2090 dated 11.12.1995 issued under 
Section 19(4) of the Land Development Ordinance.

Which said Lot 01 in Plan No. 1176/2016 is a resurvey of 
the land morefully described below :

All the defined allotment of land called Duwannagalayaya 
situated in the village of Kayanwala aforesaid and bounded 
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all the defined allotment of land called Duwannagalayaya 
situated in the village of Kayanwala aforesaid and bounded 
on the, North - by land claimed by K. K. Weerasinghe, East - 
by reservation for village council road, South - by reservation 
for Galgoda Ela,  West - By Duvannagalayaya State land and 
containing in extent One Acre (01A., 0R., 0P) together with 
the trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
subject to the reservations and conditions stated in crown 
Grant No. Madyama/Dambu/2090 dated 11.12.1995 issued 
under Section 19(4) of the Land Development Ordinance.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

K. A. L. T. Ranaweera,
DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

12-81/1

National Development Bank PLC

Notice of Nominating a New Auctioneer

At a Meeting of the Board of Directors of National 
Development Bank PLC (NDB) held on 25th October 2022, 
it was resolved that ;

Whereas by a resolution dated 14th December 2021 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer was authorized 
by the Board of Directors of NDB to conduct the public 
auction in respect of property mortgaged as sucurity by 
Amarasinghe Arachchige Nuwan Pubudu Amarasinghe 
and Jayasinghe Arachchige Samanthi Jayasinghe under 
Recovery of loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990, (Recoveries Act).

Whereas after adopting the resolution by the Board of 
Directors of NDB on 14th December, 2021, the said Mr. 
I. W. Jayasuriya has expired on 16th September 2022, As
such, it became necessary to authorize another auctioneer
to be appointed to conduct the auction under the Recoveries
Act.

Whereas the Board  of Directors of NDB appointed 
Mr. Nishantha Upul Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer to 
conduct the auctions and to take Necessary steps on the said 
Resolution dated 14th December, 2021 under Recoveries 
Act.

Save and except the above appointment, the contents of 
the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of NDB 

dated 14th December 2021 shall remain unchanged and in 
force, in fact and in law.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-92/2

National Development Bank PLC

Notice of Nominating a New Auctioneer

At a Meeting of the Board of Directors of National 
Development Bank PLC (NDB) held on 25th October 2022, 
it was resolved that ;

Whereas by a resolution dated 14th December 2021 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer was authorized 
by the Board of Directors of NDB to conduct the public 
auction in respect of property mortgaged as sucurity 
by Don Chandrasekere Amarasinghe, Jayasinghe 
Arachchige Nuwan Pubudu Amarasinghe carrying on 
business in a partnership under the name style and firm of 
“SingheTraders” and Jayasinghe Arachchige Samanthi 
Jayasinghe under Recovery of loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act No. 04 of 1990, (Recoveries Act).

Whereas after adopting the resolution by the Board of 
Directors of NDB on 14th December, 2021, the said Mr. 
I. W. Jayasuriya has expired on 16th September 2022, As
such, it became necessary to authrize another auctioneer to
be appointed to conduct the auction under tthe Recoveries
Act.

Whereas the Board  of Directors of NDB appointed 
Mr. Nishantha Upul Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer to 
conduct the auctions and to take Necessary steps on the said 
Resolution dated 14th December, 2021 under Recoveries 
Act.

Save and except the above appointment, the contents of 
the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of NDB 
dated 14th December, 2021 shall remain unchanged and in 
force, to fact and in law.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National DevelopmentBank PLC.

12-93/2
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Hatton  National  Bank PLC
pettah branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act No. 04 of 1990.

Crown Property Development (Private) Limited

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 27th October, 2022 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas Crown Property Development (Private) 
Limited as the Obligor mortgaged and hypothecated the 
lease hold rights of the property morefully described 
in the schedule hereto by virtue of Mortgage Bond 
Nos. 2803 dated 02nd February, 2011 attested by S. S. 
Halloluwa, Notary Public of Colombo, 4255 dated 29th 
December, 2011 and 4286 dated 09th February 2012 both 
attested by N C Jayawardena, Notary Public of Colombo 
in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC as security for 
repayment of Term Loan facility of Rs. 235,160,000.00 
granted by Hatton National Bank PLC to Crown Property 
Development (Private) Limited 

And whereas the said Crown Property Development 
(Private) Limited has made default in payment of the sums 
due to Hatton National Bank PLC on the said Bonds and 
due on the said Term Loan of Rs. 235, 160,000.00 axtended 
to Crown Property Development (Private) Limited, among 
other facilities and there is now due and owing to Hatton 
National Bank PLC as at 01st August, 2022 a sum of Rupees 
Two Hundred and Nine Million Eight Hundred and Eighty 
Three Thousand Three Hundred and Forty Nine and Cents 
Eighty Five Only (Rs.209,883,349.85) on the said Bonds 
and the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC 
under the power vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990, do hereby resolve 
to sell the lease hold rights of the property mortgaged as 
described in the schedule hereto and mortgaged to Hatton 
National Bank PLC by the said Bond Nos. 2803, 4255, and 
4286 be sold by Public Auction by K. P. N. Silva Licensed 
Auctioneer of all island for recovery of the said sum of  
Rs. 209,883,349.85 together with further interest at the rate 
of AWPLR+3.5% p.a. from 02nd August 2022 on the capital 
outsanding of Rs. 195,060,000.00 to date of sale together 
with coats of advertising and other charges  incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

The Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in P Plan No. Co. 6137 dated 27th January 
1984 authenticated by the Surveyor General together with 
the buildings and everything standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 314 and presently bearing Assessment 
No. 318, Galle Road (now Bambalapitiya Road) situated 
at Thimbirigasyaya in Ward No. 42, Havelock Town within 
the Municipal Council Limits and District of Colombo 
Western Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the 
North by Road and a part of premises bearing Assessment  
No. 314, Galle Road owned by the Commissioner of 
National Housing Department on the East by Galle Road, on 
the South by Kingross Mawatha and on the West by Premises 
bearing Assessment No. 6, Kingross Mawatha claimed by  
K. G. A de Silva and a part of premises bearing Assessment 
No. 314, Galle Road owned by the Commissioner of National 
Housing Department and containing in extent Nought 
Decimal Nought Eight Eight Five Hecatares (0.0885 Hec.) 
according to the said P Plan No. Co. 6137 (Excluding Lots 
1 and 2 depicted in Plan No. 10/89 dated 08.07.1989 made 
by A. J. B. Wijayakoon, Licensed Surveyor and containing 
in extent Nought Decimal Five Five Hectares (0.55Hec.) 
and Nought Decimal Four Seven Hectares (0.47Hec). 
respectively 

The aforesaid property according to a recent survey is 
described as follows :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot X depicted in Plan No. 8472 dated 22nd July, 2005 
made by S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor together 
with the building and everything standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 318, Galle Road, (Now Bambalapitiya 
Road) situated at Thimbirigasyaya in Ward No. 39 
Milagiriya within the Municipal Council Limits and District 
of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot X is 
bounded on the North by Road (Pvt)  and premises bearing 
Assessment No. 314/1, Galle Road On the East by Galle 
Road on the South by Kingross Avenue and on the West by 
Premises bearing Assessment No. 06, Kingross Avenue and 
Premises bearing Assessment No. 314/1, Galle Road and 
containing in extent Thirty Five Perches (0A., 0R., 35P) 
according to the said Plan No. 8472.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

K. A. L. T. Ranaweera,
DGM (Legal) /Board Secretary.

12-81/3
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National Development Bank PLC

Notice of Nominating a New Auctioneer

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of National 
Development Bank PLC (NDB) held on 25th October, 2022, 
it was resolved that :

Whereas by a resolution dated 30th November, 2020  
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer was authorized by 
the Board of Directors of NDB to conduct the public auction 
in respect of property mortgaged as security by Udaha 
Hewage Saliya Prasanna Senavirathne and Iringukotuwe 
Gedara Shayamalee Nishani Ekanayake under Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990, 
(Recoveries Act.)

Whereas after adopting the resolution by the Board 
of Directors of NDB 30th November, 2020 on the said  
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya has expired on 16th September, 2022. 
As such, it became necessary to authorize another auctioneer 
to be appointed to conduct the auction under the Recoveries 
act.

Whereas the Board of Directors of NDB appointed  
Mr. Nishantha Upul Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer to 
conduct the auctions and to take necessary steps on the said 
Resolution dated 30th November, 2020 under Recoveries 
Act.

Save and except the above appointment, the contents of 
the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of NDB 
dated 30th November, 2020 and published in the Government 
Gazette dated 26th March, 2021 and in the Newspapers 
dated 22nd March, 2021 shall remain unchanged and in 
force, in fact and in law.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-88

Seylan  Bank  PLC
veyangoda branch

(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 

of 1990.

Account No. : 1080 - 33553886 - 931.

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 that at a meeting held on 22.09.2022 by the Board of 
Directors of Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously.

Whereas Deemuni Terance Pushpakumara Silva of 
Veyangoda as "Obligor/Mortgagor" has made default 
in payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 1670 dated 21st 
December 2018 attested by W. A. R. Janaka Wellappili, 
Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank PLC (Company 
Registration No. PQ 9 under the Companies Act, No. 07 
of 2007) and there is now due and owing to the Seylan 
Bank PLC on account of principal and interest up to 
02nd July, 2021 an aggregate sum of Rupees Six Million 
One Hundred and Fifty Five Thousand Eight Hundred 
and Five and Cents Two (Rs. 6,155,805.02) together 
with interest on Rupees Five Million (Rs.5,000,000.00) 
at the rate of Fifteen Point Seven Five Percent (15.75%) 
per annum from 03rd July, 2021 in respect of Housing 
Loan -1 facility on the said Bond and the Board of 
Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No.04 of 1990 as amended, do hereby resolve that  
Mrs. Chandima Gamage, Licensed Auctioneer be 
authorized to sell the property morefully described in 
the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC 
by the said Mortgage Bond No. 1670 by Public Auction 
for recovery of the said sum of Rupees Six Million One 
Hundred and Fifty Five Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Five and Cents Two (Rs. 6,155,805.02) together with 
interest as foresaid from 03rd July, 2021 up to the date of 
recovery of full sum, with costs of advertising, any other 
charges under Section 13 of the said act, less payments 
(if any) since received.

The Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
X depicted in Plan No. 15819 dated 05.09.2018 made by 
K. K. A. S. Padmini, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
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“Marapola Estate” situated at Marapola village within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of No. 129, Marapola within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and Divisional Secretary's 
Division of Minuwangoda in Dasiya Pattu of Aluthkuru 
Korale in the Registration Division of Gampaha in the 
District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 
X is bounded on the North by Lot 19 in Plan No. 6524 and 
Lot 35 (15ft wide Rood) in Plan No. 6524 on the East by 
Land of the heirs of A. W. Meithrirathna on the South by 
Lot 23 in Plan No. 6524 and on the West by Lot 21 in Plan 
No. 6524 and Lot 35 (15ft wide road) in Plan No. 6524 and 
containing in extent Fifteen Perches (0A., 0R., 15P) together 
with everything else standing thereon.

Together with road access in over and along the road 
reservation marked as Lot 35 and Lot 12 in Plan No. 6524 
made by I. Kotambage, LS.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

(Mrs.) V. A. Paranagama,
Attorney-at-Law,

Assistant General Manager - Legal.

12-62

National  Development  Bank  PLC

Resolution Adopted by the Board of Directors 
Under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 as 
amended

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of the National 
Development Bank PLC held on 21st June, 2022 the 
following resolution was specially and unanimously  
adopted :-

“Whereas Ekanayaka Mudiyanselage Harshana 
Pradeep Ekanayake of Waduressapitiya, Bamunukotuwa, 
(First Borrower) carrying on business in a Sole 
Proprietorship under the name and style and firm 
of “Ekanayake Enterprises” bearing Registration  
No. 46/1166 and having its principal place of busines 
at Waduressapitiya, Bamunukotuwa Ekanayaka 
Mudiyanselage Jayasena Ekanayaka of Waduressapitiya, 
Bamnukatuwa (Second Borrower) and Hitihami 
Mudiyanselage Dayawathee Menike of Waduressapitiya, 
Bamunukotuwa (Third Borrower) (the said First 
Borrower, Second Borrower and  Thrid Borrower 
collectively referred a the Borrowers) have made default 
in the payment on the Loans/Facilities granted against 
the security of the property and premises described in 

item, 1, 2, 3 and 4 morefully described in the schedule 
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by Mortgage Bond 
No. 455 dated 05.03.2019 attested by Ms. S. M. H. U. 
Kumarasinghe of Kurunegala Notary Public executed in 
favour of National Development Bank PLC (Bank).

And whereas the Second Borrower being the freehold 
owner of the properties and premises item 1 and 2 and the 
Thrid Borrower being the freehold owner of the properties 
and premises item 3 described in below have mortgaged 
their freehold rights title and interest to the Bank under the 
said Bond No. 455.

And whereas a sum of Thirteen Million Seven Hundred 
and Twenty Five Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty Six 
Rupees and Forty Six Cents (Rs.13,725,286.46) has become 
due and owing on the said Bond to Bank as at 30th April, 
2022.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the 
powers vested in them under the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 (Principal 
Act) as amended do hereby Resolve that the property and 
premises including  the Freehold and other right title and 
interest to the property and premises described below 
mortgaged to the Bank as security for the said Loans/
Facilities by the said Bond be sold by public auction by Mr. 
P. K. E. Senapathy Licensed Auctioneer for the recovery of 
the said sum of Thirteen Million Seven Hundred and Twenty 
Five Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty Six Rupees and 
Forty Six Cents (Rs. 13,725,286.46) or any portion thereof 
remaining unpaid at the time of sale and interest on the 
amounts of Seven Million Six Hundred and Thirty Thousand 
One Hundred and Eighty Nine Rupees and Twenty Nine 
Cents (Rs.7,630,189.29) secured by the said Bond No. 455 
due in the case of said Bond at the rate of Thirty Percent 
(30%) per annum,  from 1st May 2022 to the date of sale 
together with costs of advertising selling and other charges 
incurred in terms of Section 13 of the Principal Act less any 
payments (if any) since received".

The schedule

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 18/2010 dated 23.01.2010 
made by A. Athapattu, Licensed Surveyor to the land called 
Palugahamula Watta situated at Wanduressapitiya Village 
in the Grama Niladhari Division of Ganthiriyawa in the 
Divisional Secretary Division of Bamunakotuwa within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Wariyapola in Walgampattu 
Korale of Dewamedi Hathpattu in the District of Kurunegala 
North Western Province and bounded on the  North - By 
lands of H. M. Leelawathie, Mahinda Lankathilaka, E. 
M. Jayasena and M. Somalatha Bandara East - by land of
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A. M. Manelhami and Pradeshiya Sabha Road Sotuh - by
land of H. Pemadasa and Pradeshiya Sabha Road West - by
land of A. M. Saineris Appuhami and containing in extent
One Acre One Rood and Twenty Seven decimal Five Perches
(01A., 01R., 27.5P) together with trees, plantations and
everything standing thereon.

The said land is registered under volume/folio Q 51/142 
at the land Registry, Kurunegala.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot 04 depicted in Plan No. 2010/238 dated 26.09.2010 
made by A. Athapattu, Licensed Surveyor to the land called 
Bogahamula watta (Part of ), Karagahamula Watta (part of), 
Palugahamula Hena now watta situated at Wanduresspitiya 
Village aforesaid and bounded on the North - by Lot 03 in 
the said Plan No. 2010/238 (12ft wide road) and Lot 02 
East - by Part of land of M. Somalatha Bandara and land  
of R. M. Chandralatha, South - by lands of H. Mudiyanse, 
H. M. Jayawathie and W. V. P. Podiappuhami West - by Lot
05 and 03 in the said Plan No. 2010/238 (12ft wide road)
and containing in extent Two Roods and Thirty Seven
Perches (0A., 02R., 37P) together with trees, plantations and
everything standing thereon along with the right to use and
maintain in common roadway depicted as Lot 03 in the said
Plan No. 2010/238

The said land is registered under volume/folio Q 53/81 at 
the land Registry, Kurunegala.

3. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot 05 depicted in Plan No. 2010/238 dated 26.09.2010 
made by A Athapattu, Licensed Surveyor to the land called 
Bogahamula watta (Part of) Karagahamula watta (part of),  
Palugahamula Hena Now Watta sitauted at Wanderessapitiya 
Village  aforesaid and bounded on the North - by Lot 03 
in the said plan No. 2010/238 (12ft wide road), East - by 
Lot 04 in the said Plan No. 2010/238,  South - by land of 
W. V. P. Podiappuhami West : by Lot 06 in the said Plan
No. 2010/238 and containing in extent two Roods and
Thirty Seven Perches (0A., 02R., 37P) together with trees,
plantations, and everything standing thereon.

The said Land is registered under volume/folio D 1388/23 
at the land Registry, Kurunegala.

4. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot 06 depicted in Plan No. 2010/238 dated 26.09.2010 
made by A Athapattu, Licensed Surveyor to the land called 
Bogahamula watta (part of), Karagahamula watta (Part of), 
Palugahamula Hena now Watta situated at Wanduressapitiya 
Village aforesaid and bounded on the North - by Pitiye 
wela and land of Ran Menike East - by Lot 05 in the said 
Plan No. 2010/238 more correctly Lot 05 in the said Plan  

No. 2010/238 and Lot 03 in the said Plan No. 2010/238 
(12ft wide road) South - by Land of W. V. P. Podiappuhami, 
West - by land of W. V. P. Podiappuhami and Pitiye Wela 
and containing in extent Three Roods and Two Perches  
(0A., 03R., 02P) together with trees, Plantations and 
everything standing thereon along with the right to use and 
maintain in common roadway depicted as Lot 03 in the said 
Plan No. 2010/238

The said land is registered under volume/folio D 1388/25 
at the land Registry, Kurunegala.

Together with all and singular the immovable plant 
and machinery equipment fixtures fittings and services 
which are now or which may hereafter from time to time 
be affixed or permanentry festened to the said allotment 
of land morefully referred above including Electricity 
supply system together with the equipment, Water supply 
system equipment, Telecommunication equipment and Air 
conditioning equipment.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-203

Hatton  National  Bank  PLC
gampaha  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Bank (Special Provisions) 

Act, No.04 of 1990

Weerakkodige Saman Kmara Weerakkody.

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 27th October, 2022 it was resolved 
specially unanimously.

Whereas weerakkodige Saman Kumara Weerakkody 
as the Oligor mortgaged any hypothecated property 
morefully described in the First Schedule hereto by 
virtue of Mortgage Bond Nos. 4780 dated 10.03.2005, 
7768 dated 19.03.2010, 12360 dated 11.04.2016 and 
14257 dated 07.06.2019 all attested by P. N. Ekanayake, 
Notary Public of Gampaha in favour of Hatton National 
Bank PLC as security for repayment of a Term Loan of  
Rs. 30,000,000 and Permanent Overdraft of  
Rs. 10,000,000 granted among other facilities by Hatton 
Nationl Bank PLC to Weerakkodige Saman Kumara 
Weerakkody is now due and owing to the Bank as at 
11.09.2022 a sum of Rs. 27,690,935.17 together with 
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further interest at the rate of 13.25% p. a. on the capital 
outstanding of Rs. 26,071,242.67 and Rs. 10,896,366.11 
together with further interest at the rate of AWPR + 3.25% 
p. a. from 12.09.2022 to date sale together with costs of
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if
any) since received.

Whereas Weerakkodige Saman Kumara 
Weerakkody as the Obligor mortgaged and 
hypothecated property morefully described in the 
Second Schedule hereto by virtue of Mortgage Bond  
Nos. 13606 dated 29.03.2018 and 9119 dated 23.11.2011 
both attested by P. N. Ekanayake, Notary Public of 
Gampaha in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC as 
security for repayment of a Development Loan Facility of 
Rs. 33,000,000 granted among other facilities by Hatton 
National Bank PLC to Weerakkodige  Saman Kumara 
Weerakkody is now due and owing to the Bank as at 
11.09.2022 a sum of Rs. 25,449,522.14 together with further 
interest at the rate of AWPLR + 2.5% p. a. from 12.09.2022 
on the capital outstanding of Rs.23,175,000 to date of sale 
together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred 
less payments (if any) since received.

Whereas Weerakkodige Saman Kumara Weerakkody as 
the Obligor mortgaged and hypothecated property morefully 
described in the Third Schedule hereto by virtue of Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 12540 dated 29.07.2016, 12743 dated 11.11.2016 
and 13605 dated 29.03.2018 all attested by P. N. Ekanayake, 
Notary Public of Gamapaha in favour of Hatton National 
Bank PLC as security for repayment of a Development  Loan 
Facility of Rs.22,000,000 granted among other facilities 
by Hatton National Bank PLC to Weerakkodige Saman 
Kumara Weerakkody is now due and owing to the Bank as at 
11.09.2022 a sum of Rs. 16,921,481.79 together with further 
interest at the  rate of AWPLR + 2.5% p. a. from 12.09.2022 
on the Capital outstanding of Rs. 15,450,000 to date of sale 
together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred 
less payments (if any) since received.

Whereas Weerakkoddige Saman Kumara Weerakkody 
as the Obligor mortgaged and hypothecated property 
morefully described in the Fourth Schedule hereto  by virtue 
of Mortgage Bond No. 13607 dated 29.03.2018 attested by  
P. N. Ekanayake, Notary Public of Gampaha in favour of 
Hatton National Bank PLC as security for  repayment of 
a Development Loan Facility of Rs. 15,000,000 granted 
among other facilities by Hatton National Banks PLC to 
Weerakkodige Saman Kumara Weerakkody is now due and 
owing to the Bank as at 11.09.2022 sum of Rs. 11,560,092.73 
together with further interest at the rate of AWPLR + 
2.5% p.a. from 12.09.2022 on the Capital outstanding 
of Rs.10,525,000 to date of sale together with costs of 
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if 
any) since received.

Whereas Weerakkoddige Saman Kumara Weerakkody 
as the Obligor mortgaged and hypothecated property 
morefully described in the First, Second, Third and Fourth 
Schedules hereto by virtue of Mortgage Bond Numbers 
mentioned above, all attested by P. N. Ekanayake, Notary 
Public of Gampaha in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC 
as security for repayment of a Refinance Loan Facility of 
Rs. 15,000,000 granted among other facilities by Hatton 
National Bank PLC to Weerakkodige Saman Kumara 
Weerakkody is now due and owing to the Bank as at 
11.09.2022 on the capital outstanding of Rs. 15,000,000 
to date of sale together with costs of advertising and other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

And whereas the said Weerakkodige Saman Kumara 
Weerakkody has made default in payment of the sum due 
to Hatton National Bank PLC on the said Bonds and on 
the said Term Loan, Development Loans, Refinance Loans 
and Permanent Overdraft facilities totaling to a sum of  
Rs. 125,000,000 and there is now due and owing to Hatton 
National Bank PLC as at 11th September, 2022 sums of  
Rs. 107,756,730.18 (Rupees One Hundred and Seven 
Million Seven Hundred and Fifty Six Thousand Seven 
Hundred and Thirty and Cents Eighteen Only) on the said 
Bonds and the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank 
PLC under the power vested by the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act No. 04 of 1990 as amended 
do hereby resolve to sell mortgaged property as described  
in the Schedules hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National 
Bank PLC by the said Bond Nos. 4780, 7768, 13606, 12540, 
12743, 13605, 13607, 14257, 12360, and 9119 be sold by 
Public auction by N. U. Jayasuriya Licensed Auctioneer of 
all island for recovery of the said sums of Rs. 107,756,730.18 
together with further interest at the abovementioned rates 
from 12.09.2022 on the capital outstandings mentioned 
above to date of sale together with costs of advertising and 
other charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The First Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 430/1990 dated 18.07.1990 
made by K. A. Rupasinghe, Licensed Surveyor from and 
out of the land called "Thanipolgahawatta" together with 
the buildings and everything standing thereon situated at 
Radawana within the Limits of Weke Sub Office  of Dompe 
Pradeshiya Sabha in Gangaboda Pattu of Siyane Korale in 
the District of Gampaha Western Province and which said 
Lot 2 is bounded on the North - by Paddy Field of Villages, 
East - by Land of late of D Allis Appu and Dewata Road, 
South - By Main Road and West - by Lot 1 And containing 
in extent Three Roods and Thirty Four Perches (0A., 03R., 
34P) according to the said Plan No. 430/1990.

The Second Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 2912 dated 01st September 
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2003 made by K. Nandasena, Licensed Surveyor from and 
out of the land called "Dambughawatta, Galabodawatta, 
Gorakkagahawatta, Lindamulawatta, Gorakkagahawatta, 
Walgamagahawatta now called as Walawwatta" together 
with the buildings and everything standing thereon situated 
at Mandawala within the Limits of Dompe Pradeshiya Sabha 
in Gangabada Pattu of Siyane Korale in Grama Niladari 
Division of No. 4, Keragala and Divisional Secretariat of 
Dompe in the District of Gampaha Western Province and 
which said Lot A is bounded on the North - East by Access 
Road and Land of Dayasundara Balasuriya, on the South - 
East by Road (D. C.) on the South - West byLand of Keerthi 
Balasuriya and on the North - West by Paddy Field and 
containing in extent of Seven Acres, Two Roods and Twenty 
Nine Perches (7A, 2R, 29P) according to the said Plan  
No. 2912.

The Third Schedule

All that divided and defined  allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 2463 dated 26th March 2015, 
made by G. K. N.  Thilakasiri, Licensed Surveyor from 
and out of the land called “Kahatagahalanda” together with 
the buildings and everything standing thereon situated at 
Baliwila within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Mahara in 
Meda Pattu of Siyane Korale Grama Niladari Division of  
No. 296A, Baliwila and Divisional Secretariat of Mahara in 
the District of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 
1 is bounded on the North by 12 feet Road, Millagahawatta 
and Millagahalanda on the East by Minuwanwila Ela, on 
the South by Remaining portion of same land and on the 
West by Remaining portion of same land and containing 
in extent of Seven Acres and Twenty One Decimal Four 
Naught Perches, (7A., 0R., 21.40P) according to the said 
Plan No. 2463.

The Fourth Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A1 depicted in Plan No. 2769 dated 14th March 2018, 
made by G. K. N. Thilakasiri, Licensed Surveyor from and 
out of the land called “Dambugahawatta, Galabodawatta, 
Delgahawatta, Lindamulawatta, Gorokgahawatta and 
Kosgahawatta” together with the buildings and everything 
standing thereon situated at Mandawala within the 
Pradeshiya Sabhas Limits of Dompe in Gangaboda Pattu 
of Siyane Korale Grama Niladari Division of No. 395C, 
Mandawala  and Divisional Secretariat of Dompe in the 
Districts of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 
A1 is bounded on the North by Lot B of Plan No. 2331 and 
Land of A. A. D. Yohanis Adhikari, on the East by Land 
of A. A. D. Yohanis Adhikari and Bodhuwatta Road on the 
South by Road (P.S.) and 12 feet wide Road and on the 
West by Road (P. S) 12 feet wide Road and Lot B of Plan  

National Development Bank PLC

Resolution Apoted by the Board of the Directors 
of the National Development Bank PLC Under 
Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 as 
amended

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of the National 
Development Bank PLC held on 13th August, 2019 the 
following resolution was specially and unanimoulsy  
adopted :-

“Whereas Harischandra Gunawardana alias 
Harischandra Amarasiri Gunawardena (First Borrower) 
and Prageeth Mihiran Gunawardana (Second Borrower) 
both of Galle, have made defualt in the payment on the 
Loans/Financial Facilities granted against the security 
of the property and premises morefully described in 
the schedule hereto mortgaged  and hypothecated by 
Mortgage Bond No. 525 dated 29.08.2018 attested by 
(Ms.) Hewa  Kasakarage Anusha Maduwanthi Kumari 
Notary Public of Galle executed in favour of National 
Development Bank PLC (Bank).”

And Wheras the First Borrower being the Freehold owner 
of the property and premises described in the schedule 
hereto has mortgaged his freehold right litle and interest to 
the Bank under the said Mortgage Bond No. 525.

And whereas a sum of Ten Million Seventy Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Twenty One Rupees and Thirty Five 
Cents (Rs.10,070,821.35) has become due and owing on the 
said Bond No. 525 to the Bank as at 31st July 2019.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the 
powers vested in them under the Recovery of Loans by 

No. 2331 and containing in extent of Two Acres, Two Roods 
and Thirty Four Perches (2A., 2R., 34P) according to the 
said Plan No. 2769.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

K. A. L. T. Ranaweera,
DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

12-81/2
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Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990 as amended 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as Principal Act) do 
hereby Resolve that the Property and Premises described 
below mortgaged to the Bank by the said Bond No. 525 
be sold by Public Auction by Mr. Dallas Kelaart Licensed 
Auctioneer for the re covery of the said of Ten Million 
Seventy Thousand Eight Hundred and Twenty One Rupees 
and Thirty Five Cents (Rs.10,070,821.35) or any portion 
thereof remaining unpaid at the time of sale and interest 
on the amount of Nine Million Three Hundred and Eighty 
Thousand Rupees (Rs.9,380,000.00) secured by the said 
Bond No. 525 and due in the case of said Bond No. 525 to 
the Bank at the rate of Sixteen Percent (16%) per annum 
from 01st August 2019 to the due of sale together with the 
cost of advertising selling and other charges incurred in 
terms of Section 13 of the Principal Act less any payments 
(if any) since received.”

The Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
A of the defined lot 4 of the land called "Wadakkarawatta 
alias Tambikankanangewatta" depicted in Plan No. 574 
dated 25.07.1998 made by K. D. N. Weerasinghe Licensed 
Surveyor together with the soil, trees, plantation and with 
the buildings bearing Assessment No. 37, Wakwella Road 
and everything else standing there on, situated at Kalegana, 
within the No.125, Kalegana South Grama Niladari 
Division, within the Divisional Secretarial Limits and 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Bope Poddala, in Four Gravets 
of Galle, District of Galle in Southern Province and which 
said Lot A is  bounded on the : North : by High Road from 
Galle to Wakwella, East - by Lot 5 of the same land, South - 
by Dangamuwege watta alias Walawwewatta, West - by Lot 
3 of the same land, and containing in extent Twenty Three 
Perches (0A., 0R., 23P) and registered in Volume/Folio  
R 74/129 at the Galle land Registry.

Together with all and singular the immovable plant 
and machinery equipment fixtures fittings and services 
which are now or which may hereafter from time to time 
be affixed or permanently fastened to the said allotment 
of land morefully referred to above, including Electricity 
supply system together with the equipment, water supply 
system equipment, Telecommunication equipment and Air 
Conditioning equipment.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-59

National  Development Bank PLC

Resolution Adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the National Development Bank PLC under 
Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 as 
amended

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of the National 
Development Bank PLC held on 22nd April,  2021 the 
following Resolution was specially and unanimously 
adopted :-

“Whereas St. Mary's Feeds (Private) Limited  
(PV 72022) incorporated under the Companies Act, No. 
07 of 2007 having its registered office at Ganemulla 
(First Borrower) and Uswattha Liyanage Namal Indrajith 
Marius Perera of Ganemulla (Second Borrower) have 
made default in the payment due on Mortgage Bond  
No. 331 dated 04.04.2014 and Mortgage Bond  
No. 333 dated 04.04.2014 both attested by (Ms.) L. S. 
Udugampola of Gampaha Notary Public, Mortgage Bond 
No. 419 dated 08.06.2016, Mortgage Bond No. 876 dated 
08.03.2018 and both attested by (Ms.) N. P. Senarath 
Mudali of Gampaha Notary Public in favour of National 
Development Bank PLC (Bank).

And whereas the Second Borrower has mortgaged his 
freehold right title and interest to the Property and Premises 
described in Part I, Part II and Part III in the Schedule below 
to the Bank under the said Mortgaged Bond Nos. 331, 333 
419 and 876,

And whereas a sum of One Hundred and Fourteen Million 
Nine Hundred and Sixty One Thousand Two Hundred and 
Sixty Eight Rupees and Thirteen Cents (Rs.114,961,268.13) 
has become due and owing on the  said Bond to the Bank as 
at 31st March 2021.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the 
powers vested in them under the Recovery of loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 (Principal Act) as 
amended do hereby Resolve that the property and premises 
including the Freehold and other right title and interest to the 
property and premises described Part I, Part II and Part III 
below mortgaged to the Bank as security for the said Loans/
Facilities by the said Bonds be sold by Public auction by 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer for the recovery 
of the said sum of One Hundred and Fourteen Million Nine 
Hundred and Sixty One Thousand Two Hundred and Sixty 
Eight Rupees and Thirteen Cents (Rs.114,961,268.13) 
or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time of 
sale and interest on the following amounts aggregating to 
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Eighty Four Million Five Hundred and Sixty Six Thousand 
Nine Hundred and Thirty Four Rupees and Two Cents 
(Rs.84,566,934.02).

(i) On the amount of Forty Million Two Hundred and
Five Thousand Seven Hundred and Eighty Rupees and Sixty 
Nine Cents (Rs.40,205,780.69) secured by the said Bond 
Nos. 331,333,419 and 876 due in the case of said Bonds 
at the rate of Nineteen  Decimal Two Percent (19.2%) per 
annum.

(ii) On the amount of Eleven Million Three Hundred
and Forty Seven Thousand Two Hundred and Seventy Six 
Rupees and Forty Cents (Rs.11,347,276.40) secured by the 
said Bond Nos. 331,333, 419 and 876 due in the case of said 
Bonds at the rate of Twenty Decimal Seven Five Percent 
(20.75%) per annum.

(iii) On the amount of Seven Million Five Hundred and
Ninety Thousand Rupees (Rs. 7,590,000.00) secured by the 
said Bond Nos. 331,333,419 and 876 due in the case of said 
Bonds at the rate of Seventeen Decimal Seven Five Percent 
(17.75%) per annum.

(iv)  On the amount of  Twenty Five Million Four Hundred
and Twenty Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Seventy Six 
Rupees and Ninety Three Cents (Rs.25,423,876.93) secured 
by the said Bond Nos. 331,333,419 and 876 due in the case 
of said Bonds at the rate of Thirty Percent (30%) per annum.

and all from 1st day of April 2021 to the date of sale 
together with costs of advertising selling and other charges 
incurred in terms of Section 13 of the Principal Act less any 
payments  (if any) since received".

The schedule

Part I

1. All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 5269B dated 20.12.2006 made by  
S. G. Gunathilaka Licensed Surveyor (being a resurvey 
of Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 9747 dated 30.10.1996 
made by S. B. Jayasekara, Licensed Surveyor) of the land 
called “Horagahalanda alias Pathahakele” situated at 
Bollatha within the Pradeshiya Sabha  Limits of Gampaha 
(Galahitiyawa sub office) in the Grama Niladari Division of 
Bollatha, in the Divisional Secretary's Division of Gampaha in 
Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha, 
Western Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the, 
North - by Land  Formally of W. D. G. Francissco, East - by 
land of S. D. E. Appuhamy, South - By Lots 2B and 4, West 
: by Road,  and containing in extent Twenty Five Perches  

(0A., 0R., 25P.) or 0.06322 Hectare and together with the 
soil, trees,  plantations, and everything else standing thereon 
and it is  registered at Volume/Folio P 179/123 at Gampaha 
Land Registry. (In the Remarks Column).

Lot 1 in Plan No. 5269B aforesaid is a resurvey of the 
land described below.

All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 1 depicted 
in Plan No. 9747 dated 30.10.1996 made by S. B. Jayasekara 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Horagahalanda alias 
Pathahakele” together with the soil, trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon, situated at Bollatha in 
the Grama Niladari Division of Bollatha, in the Divisional 
Secretary's Division of Gampaha  in Ragam Pattu of 
Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha, Western 
Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the ;

North - East - by Land of S. D. E. Appuhamy, South - 
East by Lots 2 & 4,  South  - West by Land of M. D. G. 
Appuhamy, North - West by Land of W. D. G. Francissca 
Geetanie and containing in extent Twenty Five Perches  
(0A., 0R., 25P) or 0.0632 Hectare and it is registered at 
Volume/Folio P 179/123 at Gampaha Land Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 2B
depicted in Plan No. 5269B dated 20.12.2006 made by 
S. G. Gunathilaka Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Horagahalanda alias Pathahakele” together with the soil, 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon, 
situated at Bollatha within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of  
Gampaha (Galahitiyawa sub office) in the Grama Niladari 
Division of Bollatha, in the Divisional Secretary’s Division 
of Gampaha in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the 
District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 
2B is bounded on the, North : by lot 1, East : by Land of 
S. D. E. Appuhamy, South : by Lot 2A, West : by Lot 6
(Res. For Road 15ft wide) and Lot 4,  and containing in
extent One Rood Thirty Five Decimal Four Zero Perches
(0A., 1R., 35.40P.) or 0.19069 Hectare and it is registered at
Volume/Folio P 179/31 at  Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with the full and free right liberty  and license 
over in and above the right of way of the following land.

All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 4 depicted in 
Plan No. 9747 dated 30.10.1996 made by  S. B. Jayasekara 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called "Horagahalanda alias 
Pathahakele" situated at Bollatha in the Grama Niladari 
Division of Bollatha, in the  Divisional Secretary's Division 
of Gampaha in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the 
District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said 
Lot 4 is bounded on the ; North - West by Land of S. D. E. 
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Appuhamy, South - East by Lots 2 and 4, South - West  : 
by land of M. D. G. Appuhamy, North - West by land of  
W. D. G. Francissca Geetanie and containing in extent
Twenty Five Perches (0A., 0R., 25P.) or 0.0632 Hectare  and
it is registered at Volume/Folio P179/27 at Gampaha Land
Registry.

And with Right of Way over Lot 6 in Plan No. 5269B 
aforesaid.

Part II

1. All that divided and defined allotment of Lot A1A2
depicted in Plan No. 4511B dated 13.01.2006 made by 
S. G. Gunathilaka Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
"Half Share of Kosgahawatta" together with the soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon, situated at 
Bollatha within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Gampaha 
(Galahitiyawa sub office) in the Grama Niladari Division of 
Bollatha, in the Divisional Secretary's Division of Gampaha 
in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale, in the District of 
Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot A1A2 is 
bounded on the North -East by Lot A1A1, South - East - by 
Lot A3 in Plan No. 516, South - West by A2 in Plan No. 516, 
North - West by Field of M. O. R. Peter and others and field 
of Regional and others,  and containing in extent One Acre 
and Eleven Perches (1A., 0R., 11P.) or 0.43246 Hectare and 
it is registered at Volume/Folio P 179/28 at Gampaha Land 
Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 1A1A 
depicted in Plan No. 4511B dated 13.01.2006 made by 
S. G. Gunathilaka Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
"Half Share of Kosgahawatta" together with the soil, 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon, 
situated at Bollatha within the  Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Gampaha (Galahitiyawa Sub Office) in the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Bollatha, in the Divisional Secretary's Division 
of Gampaha in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale,  in the 
District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 
A1A1 is bounded on the North-East - by Land formally of 
K Tissera, South - East - by Lot A3 in Plan No. 516, South 
- West : by Lot A1A2, North - West - by Field of M. O. R.
Peter and others and contaning in extent One Rood (0A.,
1R., 0P.) or 0.10116 Hectare and it is registered at Volume/
Folio P179/29 at Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with the full and free right liberty and license 
over in and above the right of way of the following land.

All that divided and defined allotment of Lot A 3 
depicted in Plan No. 516 dated 29.04.2000 made  by M. 
D. N. T. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Half
Share of Kosgahawatta” situated at Bollatha within the

Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Gampaha (Galahitiyawa sub 
office) in the Grama Niladari Division of Bollatha, in the 
Divisional Secretary's Division of Gampaha in Ragam Pattu 
of Aluthkuru Korale, in the District of Gampaha, Western 
Province and which said Lot A3 is  bounded on the North 
- East - by Land of K. Tissera,  South - East - by Road and
Land of M. O. R. Peter and Others, South - West by Lot A2,
North - West - by Lot A1, and containing in extent Seven
Perches (0A., 0R., 7P.) or 0.0177 Hectare and it is registered
at Volume/Folio p179/30 at Gampaha Land Registry.

Part III

1. All that divided and defined  allotment of Lot A2
depicted in Plan No. 2388 dated 16.08.2003 made by 
M. D. N. T. Perera Licensed Surveyor of the land called
“Kosgahawatta” together with the soil, trees, plantations, and
everything else standing thereon, situated at Bollatha within
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Gampaha (Galahitiyawa sub
office) in the Grama Niladari Division of Bollatha, in the
Divisional Secretary's Division of Gampaha in Ragam Pattu
of Aluthkuru Korale, in the District of Gampaha, Western
Province and which said Lot A2 is bounded on the North
- East - by Lot A1 and Lot A3, South - East - by Lot A 3
and Lot 4 in Plan No. 2011 of P. M. Nonis LS, South - West
- by Land of the heirs of G. Appuhamy North - West - by
Owita of heirs of G. Appuhamy and others and Anthony
Appuhamy, and containing in extent Two Acres Two Roods
and Twenty Two Decimal Seven Five Perches (02A., 02R,
22.75P.) or 1.0693 Hectares and it is registered at Volume/
Folio P 179/23 at Gampaha Land Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of Lot A1
depicted in Plan No. 2388 dated 16.08.2003 made by 
M. D. N. T. Perera Licensed Surveyor of the land called
"Kosgahawatta" together with the soil, trees, plantations and
everything else standing thereon, situated at Bollatha within
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Gampaha Galahitiya Sub
Office) in the Grama Niladari Division of Bollatha, in the
Divisional Secretary’s Division of Gampaha in Ragam Pattu
of Aluthkuru Korale, in the District of Gampaha, Western
Province and which said Lot A1 is bounded on the North -
East - by Land of K. M. Punchi Appuhamy, South - East - by
Land of P. D. Migel Appuhamy, South - West - by Lots A3
and A2 North - West - by Owita of Anthony Appuhamy and
heirs of D. Appuhamy and others, and containing in extent
Two Acres Two Roods (02A., 02R., 0P) or 1.0117 Hectares
and it is registered at Volume/Folio P 179/24 at Gampaha
Land Registry.

Together with the full and free right liberty and license 
over in and obove the right of way of the following land.
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All that divided and defined allotment of Lot A 3 depicted 
in Plan No. 2388 dated 16.08.2003 made by M. D. N. T. 
Perera Licensed Surveyor of the land called "Kosgahawatta" 
situated at Bollatha within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Gampaha (Galahitiyawa sub office) in the Grama Niladari 
Division of Bollatha, in the Divisional Secretary's Division 
of Gampaha in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale, in the 
District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 
A3 is bounded on the North - East - by Lot of A1,  South 
East - by land of W. D. J. Appuhamy, Lot 5 in Plan No 
2011 made by P. M. Nonis LS and 12 feet wide Road (Lot 
B) South -West : by Lot A2, North -West : by Lot A2 and
containing in extent Fourteen Decimal Two Five Perches
(0A., 0R., 14.25P.) or 0.0360 Hectare and it is registered at
Volume/Folio P 179/25 at Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with all and singular the immovable plant and 
machinery quipment fixtures fittings and services which are 
now or which may hereafter from time to time be affixed or 
permanently fastened to the said allotment of land morefully 
referred above including Electricity supply system together 
with the equipment, water supply system equipment, 
Telecommunication equipment and Air conditioning 
equipment.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-198/1

National  Development Bank PLC

Resolution Adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the National Development Bank PLC under 
Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 as 
amended

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of the National  
Development Bank PLC held on 21st june, 2022 the 
following Resolution was specially and unanimously 
adopted :-

"Whereas Hettige Don Anthony  Samson Bicket of 
Negombo and Jayaweera Mudiyanselage Julite Mary 
Nalini of Negombo (Borrowers) have made default in 
the payment on the Loans/Facilities granted against the 
security of the property and premises morefully described 
in the schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated 

by Bond No. 388 dated 03.07.2019 attested by Ms. E. 
S. P. Gunathunga Notary Public in favour of National 
Development Bank PLC (Bank).

And whereas the Borrowers, being the freehold owners of 
the Property and premises described below have mortgaged 
their freehold right title and interest to the Bank under the 
said Bond No.388.

And whereas a sum of Sixty Eight Million Six Hundred 
and Thirty Three Thousand Five Hundred and Eight Rupees 
and Two Cents (Rs. 68,633,508.02) has become due and 
owing on the said Bond to the Bank as at 30th April 2022.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the 
powers vested in them under the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) act No. 4 of 1990 (Principal 
Act) as amended do hereby Resolve that the property and 
premises including the Freehold and other right title and 
interest to the property and premises described in below 
mortgaged to the Bank as security for the said Loans/
Facilities by the said Bond be sold by Public auction by Mr. 
L. B. Senanayake Licensed Auctioneer for the recovery of
the said sum of Sixty Eight Million Six Hundred and Thirty
Three Thousand Five Hundred and Eight Rupees and Two
Cents (Rs.68,633,508.02) or any portion thereof remaining
unpaid at the time of sale and interest on

(i) a sum of Five Million Seven Hundred Thousand
Rupees (Rs. 5,700,000.00) due on the said Bond No. 388 at 
the rate of Two Percent (2%) Per annum

(ii) a sum of Forty Four Million Nine Hundred and Ninety
Nine Thousand Seven Hundred and Forty Nine Rupees and 
Thirty Four Cents (Rs. 44,999,749.34) due on the said Bond 
No. 388 at the rate of Seventeen decimal Five zero Percent 
(17.50%) per annum

(iii) a sum of Five Million Six Hundred and Ten Thousand
Seven Hundred  and Ninety  Eight Rupees and Forty Six 
Cents (Rs. 5,610,798.46) due on the said Bond No.388 at the 
rate of Thirty Percent (30%) per annum

from 01st May, 2022 to the date of sale together with 
costs of advertising selling and other charges incurred in 
terms of Section 13 of the Principal Act less any payments 
(if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 7887 dated 09.06.2018 made 
by M. D. Edward Licensed Surveyor (being a reseryor of 
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Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 4225 dated 12.01.2007 made by  
M. D. Edward L/S) of the land called Alexandra Estate
situated at Ekala Kuruduwatta Village with the trees,
plantations and everything else standing  in Grama Niladhari
Division of No. 206A, Alexandrawatta within the Pradeshiya
Sabha Limits of and Divisional Secretariat Division of Ja-Ela
Ragama Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in District of Gampaha,
Western Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the
North - by lands of Walter Dantanarayana and others on the
East - by Lands of S. D. Justin Perera on the, South - by 5th
Lane - Alexandra Estate on the, West - by Land of Anusha
Ratnasekara, and containing in extent Nineteen Decimal
Eight Five Perches (0A., 0R., 19.85P.) together  with right
trees, Plantations, everything else standing thereon and
registered under Volume/Folio J 498/112 at Gampaha Land
Registry.

Together with all and singular the immovable plant and 
machinery equipment fixtures fittings and services which are 
now or which may hereafter from time to time be affixed or 
permanently fastened to the said allotment of land morefully 
referred on above including Electricity supply system 
together with the equipment, Water system equipment, 
Telecommunication equipment and  Air conditioning 
equipment.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-197

National Development Bank PLC

Notice of Nominating a New Auctioneer

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of National 
Development Bank PLC (NDB) held on 25th October, 2022, 
it was resolved that :

Whereas by a resolution dated 22nd April 2021 Mr. 
I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer was authorized
by the Board of Directors of NDB to conduct the Public
auction in respect of property mortgaged as sucurity
by St. Mary’s Feeds (Private) Limited (PV 72022)
incorporated  under the Companies Act No.07 of 2007
and Uswattha Liyanage Namal Indrajith Marius Perera
under Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)
Act, No. 4 of 1990 (Recoveries Act).

Whereas after adopting the resolution by the Board of 
Directors of NDB 22nd April 2021 on the Said Mr. I. W. 
Jayasuriya has expired on 16th September 2022 as such, 
it became necessary to authorize another auctioneer to be 
appointed to conduct the auction under the Recoveries 
Act.

Whereas the Board of Directors of NDB appointed 
Mr. Nishantha Upul Jayasuriya Licensed Auctioneer to 
conduct the auctions and to take necessary steps on the said 
Resolution dated 30th November 2020 under Recoveries 
Act.

Save and except the above appointment, the contents of 
the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of NDB 
dated 22nd April 2021 and published in the Newspapers 
dated 06th September 2022 and 21st September 2022 shall 
remain unchanged and in force, in fact and in law.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-198/2

Hatton   National  Bank  PLC
kollupitiya  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton national Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Prime Sites (Private) Limited.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 27th October, 2022 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously:

Whereas Prime Sites (Private) limited as the 
Obligor and Algama Koralalage Sumedha Perera 
as the Mortgagor Mortgaged and hypothecated the 
property morefully described in the Schedule by 
virtue of Mortgage Bond Nos.5802 dated 27.12.2017 
attested by N. C. Jayawardena, Notary Public of 
Colombo and 3759 dated 17.07.2019 attested by  
A. M. D. A. K. Adikary, Notary Public of Colombo in
favour of Hatton National Bank PLC as security for
repayment of Term Loan I & II facilities totaling to
Rupees One Hundred and One Millon Nine Hundred and
Seventy Nine  Thousand Five Hindered and Seven only.
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(Rs.101,979,507.00) granted by Hatton National Bank 
PLC to Prime Sites (Private) Limited.

Whereas the aforesaid Algama Koralalage Sumedha 
Perera is the virtual owner and person who is in control of the 
aforesaid Prime sites (private) Limited in much as aforesaid 
Algama Koralalage Sumedha Perera as a Director of Prime 
sites (Private ) Limited is in  control and management of 
the said Company and accordingly if the corporate veil of 
the Company is unvailed the aforesaid Algama Koralalage 
Sumedha Perera  is the actual beneficiary of the financial 
accommodations granted by the Hatton National Bank PLC 
to Prime Sites (private ) limited.

And whereas the said prime sites (private ) Limited  and 
Algama Koralalage Sumedha Perera have made default in 
payment of the sums due to Hatton National Bank PLC on 
the said Bonds and on the said Term Loan I & II facilities 
totaling to Rs. 101,979,507./- and there is now due and 
owing to Hatton National Bank PLC, as at 31.08.2022 a sum 
of Rupees One Hundred and Six Million Five Hundred and 
Ninety Eight Thousand Two Hundred and Seventy Eight 
and Cents forty three Only (Rs.106,598,278.43) on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC under the power vested by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act No.4.of 1990 as 
amended do hereby resolve to sell mortgaged  property as 
descried in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Hatton 
National Bank PLC by the said bond Nos.5802 and 3759 
be sold by public auction by L. B. Senanayake, Licensed 
Auctioneer of all island for recovery of the said sum of   
Rs, 106,598,278.43 together with further interest at the 
rate of 11.5%  & AWPLR+3% p.a from 01.09.2022 on the 
capital outstanding totaling to Rs.99,403,277.00 to date of 
sale together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received. 

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
lot 2 depicted in plan no.506 dated 29th August 1999 made 
by W M Tillekerathna Banda- Licensed Surveyor from and 
out of the land called Rajagiriya Estate alias Obeysekara 
Walauwa together with the buildings and everything standing 
thereon bearing Assessment No.137/3 Rajagiriya Road 
situated at Welikada within the Grama Niladhari Division 
of 514A,Welikada West and Divisional Secrtary's Division 
of Sri Jayawardenapura Kotte within the Municipal Council 
Limits of Sri Jayawardenapura Kotte in the palle pattu of 
Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo Western province 
and Which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by Crown 
land and Lot 1, on the East by Lot 6, on the south by lot 
3 and on the west by crown Land and containing in extent 
One Rood and Two decimal Five Nought perches (0A., 1R., 
2.50P.) according to the said plan No. 506 and Registered 
under title A 418/59 at the Land Registry of Delkanda, 
Nugegoda.

Together with the right of way over & along the 
Reservation for Road marked Lot 6 (Reservation for Road 
15ft.wide) depicted in plan No.506 dated 29/08/1999 made 
by W.M.Tillekeratne Banda, Licensed Surveyor. 

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

K A L T Ranaweera, 
DGM (LEGAL)/Board Secretary.

12-81/4

Hatton  National Bank PLC
avissawella  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Chamindra Upeksha Mataraarachchi.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 27th October, 2022 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously:

Whereas Chamindra Upeksha Mataraarachchi as the 
Obligor mortgaged and hypothecated property morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto by virtue of Mortgage 
Bond No. 4979 dated 28.04.2021 attested by R. M. C. R. 
Deepthi Rajapakse, Notary Public of Ratnapura in favour 
of Hatton National Bank PLC as security for repayment 
of a Housing Loan facility of Rs. 12,000,000 granted 
by Hatton National Bank PLC to Chamindra Upeksha 
Mataraarachchi.

And whereas the said Chamindra Upeksha Mataraarachchi 
has made default in payment of the sum due to Hatton National 
Bank PLC on the said Bond and on the said Housing Loan 
of Rs. 12,000,000 and there is now due and owing to Hatton 
National Bank PLC as at 06th April, 2022 a sum of Rupees 
Twelve Million Seven Thousand One Hundred and Twenty-
two and cents Seventy-one only (Rs. 12,007,122.71) on the 
said and the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank 
PLC under the power vested by the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended 
do hereby resolve to sell mortgaged property as described in 
the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National Bank 
PLC by the said Mortgage Bond No. 4979 be sold by public 
auction by A. S. Kumari, Licensed Auctioneer of all island 
for recovery of the said sum of Rs. 12,007,122.71 together 
with further interest at the rate of 10.25% p. a. from 07th 
April, 2022 on the capital outstanding of Rs. 11,585,263.90 
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to date of sale together with costs of advertising and other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 22 depicted in Plan No. 3312 dated 11.10.2006 made by 
K. D. G. Weerasinghe, L. S. from and out of the land called
“Welihenpitalanda and Kahalagoda Welihenpitalanda”
together with the buildings and everything standing
thereon situated at Rukmale in the Grama Niladhari
Division of 497 Rukmale in the Divisional Secretary’s
Division of Maharagama within the Urban Council Limits
of Maharagama in Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the
District of Colombo, Western Province and which said Lot
22 is bounded on the North by Lots 92 and 21 hereof, on the
East by Lot C2 in Plan No. 255/101 and Land claimed by
C. Hettiarachchi & others, on the South by Land claimed
by C. Hettiarachchi & others and Lot 25 but more correctly
Lot 24 hereof and on the West by Lots 23 & 92 hereof and
containing in extent Eight decimal Nine Seven Perches
(0A., 0R., 8.97P.) according to the said Plan No. 3312.

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

K A L T Ranaweera, 
DGM (LEGAL)/Board Secretary.

12-81/5

National Development Bank PLC

Notice of Nominating a New Auctioneer

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of National 
Development Bank PLC (NDB) held on 25th October, 2022, 
it was resolved that :

Whereas by a resolution dated 22nd September, 2021  
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer was authorized 
by the Board of Directors of NDB to conduct the public 
auction in respect of property mortgaged as security by  
K. N. S. Pharmaceuticals (Private) Limited and Weerasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Rathna Keerthi Bandara under Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990, 
(Recoveries Act.)

Whereas after adopting the resolution by the Board of 
Directors of NDB on 22nd September, 2021 on the said Mr. 
I. W. Jayasuriya has expired on 16th September, 2022. As
such, it became necessary to authorize another auctioneer
to be appointed to conduct the auction under the Recoveries
act.

Whereas the Board of Directors of NDB appointed 
Mr. Nishantha Upul Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer to 
conduct the auctions and to take necessary steps on the said 
Resolution dated 22nd September, 2021 under Recoveries 
Act.

Save and except the above appointment, the contents 
of the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
NDB dated 22nd September, 2021 and published in the 
Government Gazette dated 12th February, 2021 and in 
the Newspapers dated 30th January, 2021 shall remain 
unchanged and in force, in fact and in law.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-95

National Development Bank PLC

Notice of Nominating a New Auctioneer

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of National 
Development Bank PLC (NDB) held on 25th October, 2022, 
it was resolved that :

Whereas by a resolution dated 23rd July, 2019  
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer was authorized 
by the Board of Directors of NDB to conduct the public 
auction in respect of property mortgaged as security by  
Eeriyagama Palle Walawwe Jothirathna Mudiyanselage 
Thilanka Sanjeewa Ekanayake, Eeriyagama Palle Walawwe 
Asitha Sanjeewa Ekanayake and Eeriyagama Palle 
Walawwe Amitha Sanjeewa Ekanayake under Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990, 
(Recoveries Act.)

Whereas after adopting the resolution by the Board 
of Directors of NDB on 23rd July, 2019 on the said  
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya has expired on 16th September, 2022. 
As such, it became necessary to authorize another auctioneer 
to be appointed to conduct the auction under the Recoveries 
act.

Whereas the Board of Directors of NDB appointed  
Mr. Nishantha Upul Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer to 
conduct the auctions and to take necessary steps on the said 
Resolution dated 23rd July, 2019  under Recoveries Act.
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Save and except the above appointment, the contents of 
the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of NDB 
dated 23rd July, 2019 and published in the Government 
Gazette dated 20th September, 2019 and in the Newspapers 
dated 03rd September, 2019 shall remain unchanged and in 
force, in fact and in law.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-94

National Development Bank PLC

Notice of Nominating a New Auctioneer

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of National 
Development Bank PLC (NDB) held on 25th October, 2022, 
it was resolved that :

Whereas by a resolution dated 22nd September, 2021  
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer was authorized 
by the Board of Directors of NDB to conduct the public 
auction in respect of property mortgaged as security by  
Kenscore Holdings (Private) Limited and Weerasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Rathna Keerthi Bandara under Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990, 
(Recoveries Act.)

Whereas after adopting the resolution by the Board of 
Directors of NDB 22nd September, 2021 on the said Mr. 
I. W. Jayasuriya has expired on 16th September, 2022. As
such, it became necessary to authorize another auctioneer
to be appointed to conduct the auction under the Recoveries
act.

Whereas the Board of Directors of NDB appointed  
Mr. Nishantha Upul Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer to 
conduct the auctions and to take necessary steps on the said 
Resolution dated 22nd September, 2021 under Recoveries 
Act.

Save and except the above appointment, the contents 
of the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
NDB dated 22nd September, 2021 and published in the 
Government Gazette dated 12th February, 2021 and in the 

Newspapers dated 29th and 30th January, 2021 shall remain 
unchanged and in force, in fact and in law.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-96

National Development Bank PLC

Notice of Nominating a New Auctioneer

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of National 
Development Bank PLC (NDB) held on 25th October, 2022, 
it was resolved that :

Whereas by a resolution dated 22nd February, 2022  
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer was authorized 
by the Board of Directors of NDB to conduct the public 
auction in respect of property mortgaged as security by  
Zamlank Developers (Private) Limited under Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990.

Whereas after adopting the resolution by the Board of 
Directors of NDB, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya has expired 
on 16th September, 2022.

Accordingly, it has become necessary to authorize 
another auctioneer to be appointed to conduct the auctions 
under Act, No. 4 of 1990.

It was resolved that by the Board of Directors of NDB to 
appoint Nishantha Upul Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer to 
conduct the auctions and to take necessary steps under Act, 
No. 4 of 1990.

Save and except the above appointment, the contents of 
the resolution adopted by the Board of NDB dated 22nd 
February, 2022 shall remain unchanged and in force, in fact 
and in law.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-60/2
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National  Development  Bank  PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the National Development Bank PLC under 
Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of National 
Development Bank PLC held on 22nd of February, 2022 
the following resolution was specially and unanimously 
adopted:

“Whereas Zamlank Developers (Private) Limited 
incorporated under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 and 
having its registered office at Colombo 03 (Borrower) has 
made default in the payment due on the Loans/Financial 
Facilities granted against the security of the property and 
premises morefully described in the below Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by Mortgage Bond No. 1905 
dated 20.11.2015 attested by (Ms.) C. K. Wickramanayake 
of Colombo, Notary Public executed in favour of National 
Development Bank PLC (Bank).

And whereas Borrower being the Freehold owner of the 
property and premises morefully described in the below 
Schedule hereto has mortgaged its Freehold right title and 
interest to the Bank under the said Mortgage Bond No. 1905.

And whereas a sum of One Hundred and Forty-three 
Million Seven Hundred and Thirty-nine Thousand Two 
Hundred and Thirty-five Rupees and Seventy-nine cents 
(Rs. 143,739,235.79) has become due and owing on the said 
Mortgage Bond No. 1905 to the Bank as at 31st December, 
2021.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the 
powers vested in them under the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as Principal Act) do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises including the 
Freehold and other right title and interest to the property 
and premises morefully described in the below Schedule 
hereto mortgaged to the Bank as security for the said Loans/
Facilities by the said Mortgage Bond No. 1905 be sold by 
public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer for 
the recovery of the said sum of One Hundred and Forty-
three Million Seven Hundred and Thirty-nine Thousand 
Two Hundred and Thirty-five Rupees and Seventy-nine 
cents (Rs. 143,739,235.79) or any portion thereof remaining 
unpaid at the time of sale and interest on the amount of 
Eighty-seven Million Seven Hundred and Thirty-five 
Thousand Four Hundred Rupees (Rs. 87,735,400.00) 
secured by the said Mortgage Bond No. 1905 and due in the 

case of said Mortgage Bond No. 1905 to the Bank at the rate 
of Eighteen Percent (18%) per annum from 01st of January, 
2022 to the date of sale together with the cost of advertising 
selling and other charges incurred in terms of Section 13 of 
the Principal Act less any payments (if any) since received.” 

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 40 depicted on P. Plan No. A 4942 dated 2nd September, 
1966 (more correctly dated 18th July, 1966) as authenticated 
by the Surveyor General (being a divided and defined 
portion of land from and out of the above Lot 1, on P. Plan 
No. 3864) of the land called Siyambalagahawatta alias 
Michaelwatta bearing assessment No. 7, Koswatte 3rd Lane 
Nawala situated in Ward No. 4 within the Urban Council 
Limits of Kotte in Salpiti Korale, Colombo Mudaliyar’s 
Division, (Grama Niladhari Division of 520A, Koswatte 
in the Divisional Secretariat and Municipal Council Limits 
of Sri Jayawardenapura Kotte) Colombo District Western 
Province and which Lot 40 is bounded on the North by Lot 
39 hereof, on the East by Nawala Estate bearing Assessment 
No. 78, Koswatte Road claimed by M. B. Hemasinghe, on 
the South by Lot 45 hereof and on the West by Road and 
containing in extent Twenty-eight decimal Four Perches 
(0A., 0R., 28.4P.) as per the said P. Plan No. A 4942 together 
with the trees, buildings and everything standing thereon. 
Registered under title M 1347/44 at the Delkanda-Nugegoda 
Land Registry.

Together with the right of way in over and along Lots 61 
and 79 on the said P. Plan No. A 4942.

Which said Lot 40 according to a recent survey is 
described as follows:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted on Plan No. 2015/79 dated 08.05.2015 
made by H. Sunil Munasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called Siyambalagahawatte alias Michaelwatta bearing 
assessment No. 7, 3rd Lane off Koswatte Road at Nawala 
in the Grama Niladhari Division of 520A, Koswatte in the 
Divisional Secretariat and Municipal Council Limits of Sri 
Jayawardenapura Kotte in the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale 
in the District of Colombo Western Province  and which 
said Lot A is bounded on the North by Lot 39, on the said  
P. Plan No. A 4942, premises bearing Assessment No. 3, 3rd
Lane, on the East by Premises bearing Assessment No. 78,
Koswatte Road, formerly claimed by M. B. Henasinghe, on
the South by Lot 45, on the said Plan No. A 4942, premises
bearing Assessment No. 3, 3rd Lane and on the West by 3rd
Lane and containing in extent Twenty-seven decimal Six
Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 27.60P.) or 0.0698 Hectare as

I fldgi : (I) fPoh    ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2022'12'02

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 02.12.2022



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2022'12'02

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 02.12.2022 1747

per the said 2015/79 together with the trees, buildings and 
everything standing thereon.

Together with all and singular the immovable plant 
and machinery equipment fixtures fittings and services 
which are now or which may hereafter from time to time 
be affixed or permanently fastened to the said allotment of 
land morefully referred above including, Electricity supply 
system together with the equipment, Water supply system 
equipment, Telecommunication equipment, Air conditioning 
Equipment.

By Order of the Board,

Secretary to the Board,
National Development Bank PLC.

12-60/1

Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 

banking public company duly incorporated under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 07th October, 
2020 and amended on 22nd October 2022 by the 
Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 07th October, 2020 
adopted by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, 
under section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Autioneer to conduct Public Auction 
in respect of the properties as security by Shahul Hameed 
Mohamed Faizal who has made default loans granted by the 
Bank.

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction and 
to amend the Resolution accordingly.

It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend to said Resolution dated 07th October, 
2020 by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction referred to in the 

said Resolution and to take necessary legal steps under the 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/7

Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 

banking public company duly incorporated under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 19th October, 
2019 and amended on 22nd October 2022 by the 
Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 19th October, 2019 
adopted by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, 
under section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing Mr. 
I. W. Jayasuriya, Autioneer to conduct Public Auction in
respect of the properties as security by Mohamed Ibrahim
Asanar & Asanar Muhammathu Ibrahim  who have made
default loans granted by the Bank.

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasurya to conduct the auctions and 
to amend the Resolution accordingly.

It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend to said Resolution dated 19th October, 
2019 by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction referred to in the 
said Resolution and to take necessary legal steps under the 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/8
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Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
kinniya  branch

(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 
banking public company duly incorporated under 

the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 17th October, 
2020 and amended on 22nd October 2022 by the 
Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, under 
section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 17th October, 2020 
adopted by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, 
under section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Autioneer to conduct Public 
Auction in respect of the properties as security by Saburdeen 
Mohamed Ali who have made default of loans granted by 
the Bank.

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction and 
to amend the Resolution accordingly.

It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend to said Resolutions dated 17th October, 
2020 by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction referred to in the 
said Resolutions and to take necessary legal steps under the 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

Accordingly, the Resolution dated 17th October, 2020 
as amended on 22nd October, 2022 by substituting the 
Auctioneer as follows.-

Whereas Saburdeen Mohamed Ali as “Obligor” has made 
default in payments due on Primary Mortgage Bond No. 92 
dated 30th August, 2016 and on Secondary Mortgage Bond 
No. 169 dated 20th June, 2017 and on Another Primary 
Mortgage Bond No. 247 dated 15th July, 2018 and all 
attested by A. S. M. Rafees, Notary Public of Trincomalee 
in favour of Amana Bank PLC bearing Registration No. PB 
3618 PQ a company duly incorporated under the Companies 
Act, No. 07 of 2007 and having its registered office and 
principal place of business at No. 486, Galle Road, Colombo 
03 in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and 
there is now due and owing to the Amana Bank PLC as at 

31st December, 2019 a sum of Rupees Eleven Million Eight 
Hundred and Twenty-seven Thousand One Hundred and 
Eighty and cents Seventy-eight only (Rs. 11,827,180.78) 
on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do 
hereby resolve that the properties morefully described in the 
Schedule hereto and mortgaged to said Amana Bank PLC by 
the said Mortgage Bond Nos. 92, 169 and 247 to be sold by 
Public Auction by Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at No. 
200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 for the recovery of 
the said sum of Rupees Eleven Million Eight Hundred and 
Twenty-seven Thousand One Hundred and Eighty and cents 
Seventy-eight only (Rs. 11,827,180.78) together with costs 
of advertising, any other costs and charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

The Schedule

Property 1

All that divided and defined Portion of the Land called 
“Kinniya Thoddam” forming Part of T. P. 49328 being a 
Lot A in the Plan No. 643 dated 15.10.1963 made by R. 
Murugupillai LSL, situated at Sinna Kinniya in Kinniya, 
within the Urban Council Limits of Kinniya and in the GN 
Division in Sinna Kinniya in the D. S. Division of Kinniya, 
Thampalagamam Pattu in Trincomalee District, Eastern 
Province.

All that divided Quarter of an acre towards the North 
East adjoining the main Batticaloa - Trincomalee Road and 
bounded on North by the land of Rasikeen Saburdeen and 
on South by the remaining Land in Lot A aforesaid of Mahil 
and on East by Trincomalee Batticaloa Main Road and on 
the West by the remaining Land in Lot A of Mahil and in 
extent of 1/4 Acre.

The above Land has now been re-surveyed and marked 
as Lot 1 in the Plan No. 1777 dated 07.06.2016 drawn by 
N. Farook, LSL, situated as aforesaid and everything else
standing thereon and bounded on North by Lots 1 & E in
Plan No. 4486 dated 22.07.2005 drawn by K. Sellapillai and
on East by Batticaloa Road and on South by Land claimed
by Akbar and others and on the West by land claimed by
Akbar and others and in extent of 0A., 1R., 00.00P.

Property 2

All that divided and defined Portion of the Land called 
“Kinniya Thoddam” depicted as Lot 1 in Plan No. 1005 
dated 17.12.1998 made by K. Sellapillai, LSL, which has 
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now been re-surveyed and marked as Lot 1 in the PLan No. 
3799 dated 27.04.2018 drawn by N. Farook LSL, situated 
at Sinna Kinniya in Kinniya, within the Urban Council 
Limits of Kinniya and in he GN Division in Sinna Kinniya 
in the D. S. Division of Kinniya Thampalagamam Pattu in 
Trincomalee District, Eastern Province and Registered at 
Volume/Folio D67/159 and bounded on the North by the 
land of S. M. Ali and on East by the land of S. M. Ali and on 
South by Lot 2 & 3 in the Plan No. 1005 and on the West by 
Path and in extent of 0A., 0R., 28.50P.

All that divided and defined Portion of the Land called 
“Kinniya Thoddam” depicted as Lot 2 in Plan No. 1005 
dated 17.12.1998 made by K. Sellapillai, LSL, which has 
now been re-surveyed and marked as Lot 2 in the Plan  
No. 3799 dated 27.04.2018 drawn by N. Farook LSL, situated 
at Sinna Kinniya in Kinniya, within the Urban Council 
Limits of Kinniya and in he GN Division of Sinna Kinniya 
in the D. S. Division of Kinniya Thampalagamam Pattu in 
Trincomalee District, Eastern Province and Registered at 
Volume/Folio D73/161 and bounded on the North by Lot 1 
hereof, on the East by Lot 3 in Plan No. 1005, on the South 
by Lot 3 hereof and on the West by Path and in extent of 
0A., 0R., 04.00P.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/9

Amana  Bank PLC (PB 3618 PQ)
kandy  branch

(Registered under Reference No. PB 3618 PQ a 
banking public company duly incorporated under 

the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution unanimously adopted on 21st 
November, 2020 and amended on 22nd October 
2022 by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank 
PLC, under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans 

by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as 
amended

Whereas, by a Resolution dated 21st November, 2020 
adopted by the Board of Directors of Amana Bank PLC, 
under section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 

Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, authorizing 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Autioneer to conduct Public Auction 
in respect of the properties as security by Abdul Hameed 
Abdul Malik and Abdul Hameed Amanulla who have made 
default of loans granted by the Bank.

Whereas, the said Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya died on 16.09.2022 
and it has become necessary to substitute a New Auctioneer 
in place of Mr. I. W. Jayasurya to conduct the auction and to 
amend the Resolution accordingly.

It is hereby resolved by the Board of Directors of Amana 
Bank PLC to amend to said Resolution dated 21st November, 
2020 by substituting Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers 
of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at  
No. 200/2, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 in place of late 
Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya to conduct the auction referred to in the 
said Resolutions and to take necessary legal steps under the 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended.

Accordingly, the Resolution dated 21st November, 2020 
as amended on 22nd October, 2022 by substituting the 
Auctioneer as follows.-

Whereas Abdul Hameed Abdul Malik and Abdul 
Hameed Amanulla as “Obligors” have made default in 
payments due on Primary Mortgage Bond No. 4605 and 
Secondary Mortgage Bond No. 4607 both dated 21st 
September, 2016  all attested by S. Paramasothy, Notary 
Public of Kandy and also on another Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 615 dated 23rd September, 2016 attested by T. S. 
Idroos, Notary Public of Kandy in favour of Amana Bank 
PLC bearing Registration No. PB 3618 PQ a company duly 
incorporated under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 and 
having its registered office and principal place of business 
at No. 486, Galle Road, Colombo 03 in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and there is now due and 
owing to the Amana Bank PLC as at 30th September, 2020 
a sum of Rupees Thirty-four Milllion Two Hundred and 
Eighty-five Thousand Three Hundred and Sixty and cents 
Twenty-eight only (Rs. 34,285,360.28) and a sum of Rupees 
Thirteen Million Eight Hundred and Fifty-one Thousand 
Six Hundred and Twenty-six and cents Seventy-four only 
(Rs. 13,851,626.74) on the said Bonds and the Board of 
Directors of Amana Bank PLC under the powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the properties 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged 
to said Amana Bank PLC by the said Mortgage Bond  
Nos. 4605, 4607 and 615 to be sold by Public Auction 
by Thrivanka and Senanayake Auctioneers of No. 99, 
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Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 presently at No. 200/2, 
Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 for the recovery of the said 
sum of Rupees Thirty-four Million Two Hundred and Eighty-
five Thousand Three Hundred and Sixty and cents Twenty-
eight only (Rs. 34,285,360.28) together with profit/markup/
rental/at the rate of 15.27% per annum from 01st October, 
2020 to date of sale together with costs of advertising, any 
other costs and charges incurred less payments (if any) 
since received and a sum of Rupees Thirteen Milllion Eight 
Hundred and Fifty-one Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-
six and cents Seventy-four only (Rs. 13,851,626.74) 
together with profit/markup/rental/at the rate of 15.27% per 
annum from 01st October, 2020 to date of sale together with 
costs of advertising, any other costs and charges incurred 
less payments (if any) since received.

The Schedule

Property 1

All that allotment of land marked Lot 1 depicted in Plan 
No. 1789 dated 09th September, 2012 made by G. S. P. 
Lenagala, Licensed Surveyor from a Premised known as 
“The Glen” bearing Assessment No. 32 1/1 and now bearing 
Assessment No. 32A situated at Saranankara Para within the 
Gramasevaka Niladhari Division of Malwatta - 254 within 
the Municipal Council limits of Kandy and Divisional 
Secretary Division of Kandy and Gangawata Korale in the 
District of Kandy Central Province and which said allotment 
of land marked Lot 1 in the said Plan No. 1789 is bounded 
on North by Saranankara Road, on the East by Lot 2, on 
the South by “The Glen” property claimed by Mr. Herath 
and on the West by Lot 1 in Plan No. 700 and containing 
in extent Thirteen decimal Nought Four Perches (00A., 
00R., 13.04P.) together with the building and everything 
else standing thereon (Lastly Registered in A 431/215 at the 
Kandy Land Registry).

All that allotment of land marked Lot 2 depicted in Plan 
No. 1789 dated 09th September, 2012 made by G. S. P. 
Lenagala, Licensed Surveyor from a Premised known as 
“The Glen” bearing Assessment No. 32 and 32 1/1 and now 
bearing Assessment No. 32A situated at Saranankara Para 
within the Gramasevaka Niladhari Division of Malwatta 
- 254 within the Municipal Council Limits of Kandy and
Divisional Secretary Division of Kandy and Gangawata
Korale in the District of Kandy Central Province and which
said allotment of land marked 2 in the said Plan No. 1789
is bounded on North Saranankara Road, on the East by
Premises bearing Assessment No. 44, Saranankara Road
and Sarannakara Road, on the South by “The Glen” property
claimed by Mr. Herath and Saranankara Road and on the
West by Lot 1 in the said Plan No. 1789 and containing

in extent Twelve decimal Four Six Perches (00A., 00R., 
12.46P.) together with the building and everything else 
standing thereon (Lastly Registered in A 431/229 at the 
Kandy Land Registry).

Property 2

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
as Lot 1 in Plan No. 700 dated 25th October, 2010 made 
by S. A. Dissanayake, L/S from and out of the land called 
and known as “The Glen” situated at Saranankara Road, 
within the Grama Niladhari Division of Malwatte and in 
the Municipal Council Limits of Kandy and Divisional 
Secretariat Division of Kandy Four Gravets and Ganagwatta 
Korale and in the District of Kandy, Central Province in the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and containing 
in extent of Fourteen decimal Four Nine Perches (0A., 0R., 
14.49P.) and which said Lot 1 is bounded according to the 
said Plan, on the North-east by masonry drain separating 
Saranankara Road, on the East and South by Lots 2 and 
on the West by Premises bearing Assessment No. 22/1 
and 30, Saranankara Road and together with Premises 
bearing Assessment No. 32, Saranankara Road and the 
trees, Plantations and everything else standing thereon and 
registered at A 566/136 at the Kandy Land Registry.

The above mentioned land and premises are shown in an 
amended Plan as follows:

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
as Lot 1 in Plan No. 700A dated 25th October, 2010 and 
amended on the 28th September, 2015 made by S. A. 
Dissanayake, L/S from and out of the land called and known 
as “The Glen” situated at Saranankara Road, within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Malwatte and in the Municipal 
Council Limits of Kandy and Divisional Secretariat 
Division of Kandy Four Gravets and Gangawata Korale and 
in the District of Kandy, Central Province in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and containing in extent 
Fourteen decimal Four Nine Perches (0A., 0R., 14.49P.) and 
which said Lot 1 is bounded according to said Plan, on the 
North-east by masonry drain separating Saranankara Road, 
on the East and South by Lot 2 and on the West by Premises 
bearing Assessment Nos. 22/1 and 30, Saranankara Road 
and together with Premises bearing assessment No. 32, 
Saranankara Road and the trees, plantations and everything 
else standing thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Rizah Ismail, 
	H ead of Remedial Management.

12-58/10
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commercial bank of ceylon plc
kaduwela  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of 

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 
1990

Loan Account No. : 2176635.
Mavita Gamage Nihal and Dasith Pabasara Mavita 
Gamage.

at  a meeting held on 28th July, 2021 the Board of Directors 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved unanimously 
as follows:-

Whereas Mavita Gamage Nihal and Dasith Pabasara 
Mavita Gamage, both of No. 577/1B, Samurdhi Mawatha, 
Biyagama, as the Obligors, have made default in payment 
due on Mortgage Bond No. 4986 dated 13th October, 2017 
attested by W. L. Jayaweera, Notary Public of Colombo, 
in favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC, over the 
land and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto and / or the Schedule of the said Mortgage Bond 
and there is now due and owing to the Commercial Bank 
of Ceylon PLC as at 4th June, 2021, an aggregate sum 
of Rupees Nine Million Three Hundred and Ninety-five 
Thousand Four Hundred and Eighteen and cents Eighteen  
(Rs. 9,395,418.18) on the said Bond (on account of 
Home Loan No. 2176635) and the Board of Directors of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC under the powers vested 
by Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the land and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to 
the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC by the said Mortgage 
Bond No. 4986 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. M. H. T. 
Karunarathne, Licensed Auctioneer of T & H Auction of 
No. 50./3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa, for the recovery 
of the said sum of Rupees Nine Million Three Hundred 
and Ninety-five Thousand Four Hundred and Eighteen and 
cents Eighteen (Rs. 9,395,418.18) with further interest on 
a sum of Rs. 7,234,610.57 at the rate of 14.5% per annum 
from 05th June, 2021 to date of sale together with costs of 
advertising and any other charges incurred less payments (if 
any) since received.

The Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 1A depicted 
in Plan No. 36/2003 dated 04.03.2003 made by P. M. 
Leelaratna, Licensed Surveyor, of the land called and known 
as “Delgahalanda alias Millagahawatta” together with the 
trees, buildings, plantations and everything else standing 
thereon situated at Biyagama Village in the Grama Niladari 

Division of 280, Biyagama North within the Divisional 
Secretary’s Division and Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Biyagama in Adhikari Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District 
of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 1A is 
bounded on the North by Samurdhi Mawatha, on the East by 
Lot 1B, on the South by Lot 6 of Hiranthi Mayadunna, on 
the West by Land claimed by United National Party Office, 
Biyagama and Land of Ebert Silva Co. Ltd and containing 
in extent more correctly One Rood and Three decimal 
Eight Perches (0A., 1R., 3.8P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 36/2003 and registered in Volume/Folio N 216/23 at the 
Gampaha Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

R. A. P. Rajapaksha, 
Company Secretary.

23rd August, 2021.

12-82

People’s Bank—Park  Street branch

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank 
Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by Act, No. 32 of 

1986

it is hereby notified that the following resolution was 
unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of the 
People’s Bank under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act, 
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 at 
their meeting held on 28th October, 2022:-

Whereas Nawaloka Construction Company (Private) 
Limited a company duly incorporated under the Companies 
Act, No. 07 of 2007, bearing Registration No. PV 483 and 
having its Registered Office at No. 115, Sir James Peiris 
Mawatha, Colombo 02 has made default in payment due 
on the Mortgage Bond No. 7452 dated 25th April, 2017 
attested by Priyanthi Liyanage, Notary Public of Colombo 
and Mortgage Bond No. 623 dated 01st February, 2021 
attested by W. T. I. Ambepitiya, Notary Public of Colombo, 
there is now due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of 
Rupees One Billion Two Hundred and Four Million Seven 
Hundred and Three Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty-
eight and cents Six (Rs. 1,204,703,438.06) together with 
further interest on the said Bonds.
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The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the 
powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 
of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby 
resolve that the property and premises mortgaged to the said 
Bank by aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 7452 dated 25th 
April, 2017 attested by Priyanthi Liyanage, Notary Public of 
Colombo and Mortgage Bond No. 623 dated 01st February, 
2021 attested by W. T. I. Ambepitiya, Notary Public of 
Colombo morefully described in the Schedule hereto be 
sold by Public Auction by Mrs. E. S. Ramanayaka, Licensed 
auctioneer Colombo for the recovery of aforesaid a sum of 
Rupees One Billion Two Hundred and Four Million Seven 
Hundred and Three Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty-
eight and cents Six (Rs. 1,204,703,438.06) and together with 
further interest on sum of Rupees Four Hundred Eighty-two 
Million (Rs. 482,000,000.00) at the rate of AWPLR+3.5% 
per annum from 21.09.2022 and Rupees Five Million Three 
Hundred Thirty-three Thousand Four Hundred and Eighty 
and cents Three (Rs. 503,033,480.03) POD at the rate of 
AWPLR + 3.5% per annum from 21.09.2022 to date of 
sale and costs and moneys recoverable under Section (29L) 
of the said People’s Bank Act less payment (if any) since 
received and other charges.

The Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 9458 dated 26.01.2007 made 
by S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called Kureniawatta and Kumbura alias Kuruniyawatta and 
Kumbura together with soil, trees, plantations, building and 
everything else standing thereon bearing Assessment No. 
55, Awissawella Road (Low Level Road) situated along 
Avissawella Road in Wellampitiya in Ward No. 3 within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of No. 510B, Kuruniyawatta in 
the Divisional Secretary Division and Urban Council Limits 
of Kolonnawa in Ambatalen Pahala Aluth Kuru Korale South 
and District of Colombo Western Province and which said 
Lot A is bounded on the North by Kittampahuwa Ela, on the 
East by Road (Lot 12 in P. P. Co. 6279), on the South by Lot 
B hereof and on the West by Premises bearing Assessment 
No. 53, Avissawella Road and containing in extent Thirty-
eight decimal Five Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 38.50P.).

All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked 
Lot B depicted in Plan No. 9458 dated 26.01.2007 made 
by S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called Kureniawatta and Kumbura alias Kuruniyawatta 
and Kumbura situated at Wellampitiya aforesaid and which 
said Lot B is bounded on the North by Lot A hereof, on 
the East by Road (Lot 12 in P. P. Co. 6279), on the South 
by Avissawella Road and on the West by Premises bearing 
Assessment No. 53, Avissawella Road and Road and 

containing in extent Four Acres, One Rood and Eighteen 
decimal Two Naught Perches (4A., 1R., 18.20P.) together 
with soil, trees, plantations and everything else standing 
thereon.

Which said lands being a resurveyed and subdivisions of 
the land described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 7053 dated 03.07.1999 made 
by P. Sinnathamby, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Kureniawatta and Kumbura alias Kuruniyawatta and 
Kumbura situated at Wellampitiya aforesaid and which 
said Lot B is bounded on the North by Kittampahuwa Ela, 
on the East by Lot 2 Road in Survey Plan No. (Lot 12 in  
P. P. Co. 6279), on the South by Lot 2 Road in Survey 
Plan No. 5/89 (Lot 12 in P. P. Co. 6279) and Avissawella 
Road (Low Level Road) and on the West by Avissawella 
Road (Low Level Road) and premises bearing Assessment  
No. 53, Awissawella Road (Low Level Road) and containing 
in extent Four Acres, Three Roods and Seven Perches  
(4A., 3R., 7P.) according to the said Plan No. 7053 and 
registered under Title F 72/32 at Colombo Land Registry. 

By order of Board of Directors,

Regional Manager (Colombo South).

People’s Bank,
1st Floor, No. 11,
Duke Street,
Colombo 01.

12-61

nations Trust bank plc

Notice of Resolution passed by the Directors of 
Nations Trust Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 4 of 1990

Ushettige Rukman Chaminda Perera.

in terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed 
by the Board of Directors of Nations Trust Bank PLC on 
26.10.2022.
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Whereas by Mortgage Bond bearing No. 441 dated 
24th June, 2016 attested by Wijesinghe Ekanayakalage 
Nadeeka Jeewanthi Harshani alias Nadeeka Eakanayaka, 
Notary Public of Negombo, Secondary Mortgage Bond 
bearing No. 2405 dated 29th May, 2017 attested by Kenneth 
Godwin De Silva, Notary Public of Bandarawela, Tertiary 
Mortgage Bond bearing No. 2946 dated 24th March, 2019 
attested by Kenneth Godwin De Silva, Notary Public of 
Bandarawela, Additional Mortgage Bond bearing No. 3126 
dated 06th November, 2019 attested by Kenneth Godwin 
De Silva, Notary Public of Bandarawela, Mortgage Bond 
bearing No. 2625 dated 23rd December, 2017 attested by 
Kenneth Godwin De Silva, Notary Public of Bandarawela 
and Secondary Mortgage Bond bearing No. 2948 dated 24th 
March, 2019 attested by Kenneth Godwin De Silva, Notary 
Public of Bandarawela, Ushettige Rukman Chaminda 
Perera as obligor/mortgagor mortgaged and hypothecated 
the rights, property and premises morefully described in 
the First Schedule and Second Schedule hereto in favour of 
Nations Trust Bank PLC of No. 242, Union Place, Colombo 
02 as a security for the due repayment of the financial 
facilities obtained by the said Ushettige Rukman Chaminda 
Perera.

And whereas the said Ushettige Rukman Chaminda 
Perera has made default in the repayment due on the 
facilities secured by the said Bonds:

It is hereby resolved under the powers vested by Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
that the rights property and premises morefully described 
in the First Schedule and Second Schedule hereto be sold 
by Public Auction by Mr. M. H. T. Karunarathna, Licensed 
Auctioneer of No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa for 
the recovery of a sum of Rupees Twenty-two Million Six 
Hundred and Ninety-three Thousand Six Hundred and 
Eighty-nine and cents Ninety-one (Rs. 22,693,689.91) 
with further interest from 02.09.2022 as agreed on a sum 
of Rupees Twenty-one Million Two Hundred and Three 
Thousand Six Hundred and Seventy-seven and cents 
Seventeen (Rs. 21,203,677.17) being the capital outstanding 
on the Term Loan Facilities as at 01.09.2022 together with 
attendant cost, statuary levies, costs of advertising and any 
other charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The  first  Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 1911 dated 17.02.2016 made by 
S. A. Gunawardena, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Koongahawatta, Kosgahawatta and Koongahawatta situated 
at Kandana bearing Assessment No. 91/11, within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of No. 186, Kandana within the 

Kandana Sub Office in Ja-Ela Pradeshiya Sabha and within 
the Divisional Secretariat Division of Ja Ela in Ragam Pattu 
of Aluthkuru Korale within the Land Registration Division 
of Gampaha in Gampaha District in Western Province and 
the said Lot A is bounded on the:

North Land of Joy Perera, P. Rathnayaka & Lot 4B in 
Plan No. 3909 of M. D. N. T. Perera, Licensed Surveyor.

East: Lot 4B in Plan No. 3909 of M. D. N. T. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor and Lot Y1 in Plan No. 3421 of A. A. P. 
Jayantha Perera, Licensed Surveyor.

South: Lots 3 and 2A in Plan No. 3421 of A. A. P. 
Jayantha Perera, Licensed Surveyor, Part of Lot 2 of Hector 
Perera, 12ft. wide Road Reservation marked as Lot 1 in Plan 
No. 6168 and 12 feet wide road reservation marked as Lot 
2B in Plan No. 616 both plans made by D. D. C. A. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor.

West: Lot X in Plan No. 15598 of M. D. J. V. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor.

Containing in extent of Nineteen decimal Four Five 
Perches (0A., 0R., 19.45P.) together with buildings, trees, 
plantations, soil and everything else standing thereon.

Together with the common road access marked as Lot 1 
in Plan No. 6168 & 12 feet wide Road Reservation marked 
as Lot 2B in Plan No. 616 both plans made by D. D. C. A. 
Perera, Licensed Surveyor.

Above said Lot A is an Amalgamation of following Lands

1st Land

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked 
as Lot 4A depicted in Plan No. 3909 dated 18.06.2005 
made by M. D. N. T. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called Koongahawatta, Kosgahawatta and Koongahawatta 
situated at Kandana bearing Assessment No. 91/11, within 
the Grama Niladari Division of No. 186, Kandana within the 
Kandana Sub Office in Ja Ela Pradeshiya Sabha and within 
the Divisinal Secretariat Division of Ja - Ela in Ragam Pattu 
of Aluthkuru Korale within the Land Registration Division 
of Gampaha in Gampaha District in Western Province and 
the said Lot 4A is bounded on the:

North: Land now claimed by P. Rathnayaka,
East: Lot 4B in the said Plan,
South: Land now claimed by U. R. C. Perera,
West: Land now claimed by U. R. C. Perera.
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Containing in extent of Five decimal Eight Zero Perches 
(0A., 0R., 5.80P.) together with buildings, trees, plantations, 
soil and everything else standing thereon. This is registered 
in volume folio B 706/24 at Gampaha LR.  

2nd Land

All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked as 
Lot Y depicted in Plan No. 15598 dated 06.08.1997 made 
by M. D. J. V. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Koongahawatta, Kosgahawatta and Koongahawatta” 
situated at Kandana bearing Assessment No. 91/11, within 
the Grama Niladari Division of No. 186, Kandana within the 
Kandana Sub Office in Ja Ela Pradeshiya Sabha and within 
the Divisional Secretariat Division of Ja Ela in Ragam Pattu 
of Aluthkuru Korale within the Land Registration Division 
of Gampaha in Gampaha District in Western Province and 
the said Lot Y is bounded on the:

North: Land of Roy Perera and others, Lot A claimed by 
the inheritance of Ather Jayakody,

East: Lot Y1 in Plan No. 3421 made by A. A. P. J. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor,

South: Land claimed by the inheritance of Ather Jayakody 
and 12 feet wide Road Reservation,

West: Lot X in the said Plan.

Containng in extent of Thirteen decimal Six Five Perches 
(0A., 0R., 13.65P.) after Transferring the Lot Y1 in extent of 
4.35P depicted in Plan No. 3421 made by A. A. P. J. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor from the entire Land in extent of Eighteen 
Perches (0A., 0R., 18P.) depicted in Plan No. 6801 dated 
11.10.1982 by M. D. D. J. V. Perera, LS and resurveyed by 
Plan No. 15598 aforesaid, together with buildings, trees, 
plantations, soil and everything else standing thereon, and 
this is registered in volume folio B 167/245 at Gampaha 
Land Registry (The remaining divided portion).

The Second Schedule

All that allotment of land called and known as 
“Delgahawatta” bearing assessment No. 33/3, St. Bridget 
Mawatha, which is situated at Welisara Village, within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Wattala, in the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Welisara 182, in Ragama Pattu of Aluthkuru 
Korale of Wattala D. S. Division in the Gampaha District 
of the Province of Western which is depicted as Lot X1 in 
Plan of Survey bearing No. 3327 dated 26.09.2004 made by 
M. D. N. T. Perera, Licensed Surveyor ad re-endorsed by
K. E. J. B. Perera, L.S. on 01.07.2014 and which said Lot
X1 is bounded according to the said Plan on the North by
St. Bridget Mawatha, on the East by 10 feet wide Road (Lot
Z in Plan No. 12976 made by M. D. J. V. Perera, L. S.), on

the South by Lot X2 and on the West by Land now of L. R. 
M. Jansze and containing in extent within these boundaries
Ten decimal Eight Two Five Perches (0A., 0R., 10.825P.)
and together with the building and everything else standing
thereon and registered under L 142/127 at the Gampaha
Land Registry.

Together with the full and free right of way in over and 
along the road reservation described below:

All that allotment of land called and known as 
“Delgahawatta” which is situated at Welisara Village, 
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Wattala, in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Welisara 182, in Ragam 
Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale of Wattala D. S. Division in 
the Gampaha District of the Province of Western which is 
depicted as Lot Z (reservation for 10 feet wide access road) 
in Plan of Survey bearing No. 12976 dated 31.10.1989 made 
by M. D. N. T. Perera, Licensed Surveyor which said Lot 
Z is bounded according to the said Plan, on the North by  
St. Bridget Mawatha, on the East by remaining portion of 
the same land, on the South by Lot Y and on the West by Lot 
X in Plan No. 11164 made by M. D. J. V. Perera L. S. and 
containing in extent within these boundaries Four decimal 
Three Five Perches (0A., 0R., 4.35P.) and registered under L 
129/109 at the Gampaha Land Registry.

By order of Board,

Theja Silva,
Company Secretary.

242, Union Place,
Colombo 02.

12-44/1

nations Trust bank plc

Notice of Resolution passed by the Directors of 
Nations Trust Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 4 of 1990

Ananda Constructions (Private) Limited.

in terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed 
by the Board of Directors of Nations Trust Bank PLC on 
26.10.2022.
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Whereas by Mortgage Bond bearing No. 799 dated 23rd 
June, 2017 attested by R. M. Nadeeka Shamalee Kumari 
Rajapaksha, Notary Public of Colombo and Mortgage 
Bond bearing No. 801 dated 23rd June, 2017 attested by 
R. M. Nadeeka Shamalee Kumari Rajapaksha, Notary
Public of Colombo, Ananda Constructions (Private)
Limited as the Obligor and Thanippuli Appuhamilage
Don Anandasiri Jayasinghe and Mahamada Kalapuwage
Violet De Silva (Directors and Shareholders of Ananda
Constructions (Private) Limited) as the mortgagors
mortgaged and hypothecated the rights, property and
premises morefully described in the First Schedule and
Mahamada Kalapuwage Violet De Silva (Director and
Shareholder of Ananda Constructions (Private) Limited)
as the mortgagor mortgaged and hypothecated the rights,
property and premises morefully described in the Second
Schedule hereto in favour of Nations Trust Bank PLC, of
No. 242, Union Place, Colombo 02 as a security for the due
repayment of the financial facilities obtained by the said
Ananda Constructions (Private) Limited.

And whereas the said Ananda Constructions (Private) 
Limited has made default in the payment due on the facilities 
secured by the said Bonds.

It is hereby resolved under the powers vested by Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
that the rights property and premises morefully described 
in the First Schedule and Second Schedule hereto be sold 
by Public Auction by Mr. L. B. Senanayake, Licensed 
Auctioneer of No. 200, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12, for 
the recovery of;

1. A sum of Rupees Twenty-three Million Four
Hundred and Four Thousand Four Hundred and
Forty-eight and cents Eighty-six (Rs. 23,404,448.86)
with further interest from 09.09.2022 as agreed on a
sum of Rupees Twenty Million Four Hundred and
Ninety-nine Thousand Four Hundred and Forty-six
and cents Ninety-six (Rs. 20,499,446.96) being the
capital outstanding on the Short Term Loan Facility
as at 08.09.2022.

2. A sum of Rupees Twelve Million Four Hundred
and Forty-five Thousand Three Hundred and Sixty
and cents Ninety-four (Rs. 12,445,360.94) with
further interest from 09.09.2022 as agreed on a
sum of Rupees Eleven Million Five Hundred and
Forty-seven Thousand Seven Hundred and Ninety
and cents Fourteen (Rs. 11,547,790.14) being the
capital outstanding on the Term Loan Facilities as at
08.09.2022.

together with attendant cost, statutory levies, costs of 
advertising and any other charges incurred less payments (if 
any) since received.

The frist Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
B2A3 depicted in Plan No. 1023 dated 07.07.1994 made by 
H. A. D. Premaratne, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Delgahawatta and Alubogahawatta together with the trees, 
plantation and everything else standing thereon, situated 
at Boralesgamuwa within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Boralesgamuwa East B - 533D in Pradeshiya Sabha Limits 
of Boralesgamuwa and in the Divisional Secretariat Division 
of Kesbewa in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of 
Colombo in Western Province and which said Lot B2A3 is 
bounded on the North by Lot B2A2, on the East by land 
claimed by A. D. Sarana Pala (Lot B3 in Plan No. 669), on 
the South by Lot B2A6 and on the West by Lot B2A7 (12 feet 
wide road) and Containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 
10P.) according to the said Plan No. 1023 and registered under  
C 47/130 at Delkanda - Nugegoda Land Registry.

Together with the Right of way and other rights in over 
and along reservation for road morefully described below:-

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot B2A7 depicted in Plan No. 1023 dated 07.07.1994 
made by H. A. D. Premaratne, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called Delgahawatta and Alubogahawatta situated at 
Boralesgamuwa and which said Lot B2A7 is bounded on 
the North by Lots B2A1 and B2A2, on the East by Lots 
B2A2, B2A3 & B2A6, on the South by Lots B4, B1B 
& B2B and road 20 feet wide and on the West by Lots 
B2A5, B2A4 and B2A1 and Containing in extent Four 
decimal Six Five Perches (0A., 0R., 4.65P.) according to 
the said Plan No. 1023 and registered under M 2994/11 at  
Delkanda - Nugegoda Land Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot B4 (reservation for road) depicted in Plan No. 669 dated 
07.08.1993 and 28.09.1993 made by H. A. D. Premaratne, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Delgahawatta and 
Alubogahawatta situated at Boralesgamuwa and which said 
Lot B4 is bounded on the North by Lots B1 and B2, on the 
East by Lot B3, on the South by Lot G1 and on the West by 
Lot B2 (Lot G in Plan No. 396) and Containing in extent Ten 
decimal Four One Perches (0A., 0R., 10.41P.) according to 
the said Plan No. 669 and registered under M 2616/248 at 
Delkanda - Nugegda Land Registry.

3. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot B1B (reservation for road) depicted in Plan No. 669 dated 
07.08.1993 and 28.09.1993 made by H. A. D. Premaratne, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Delgahawatta and 
Alubogahawatta situated at Boralesgamuwa and which 
said Lot B1B is bounded on the North by Lots B1A and B1 

Ananda Constructions (Private) Limited.
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and Lot B2A and B2 hereof, on the East by Lot B2B, on 
the South by Lot B4 and on the West by Land claimed by  
A. D. Nandawathie and others and Containing in extent Four
Perches (0A., 0R., 4P.) according to the said Plan No. 669
and registered M 2616/249 at Delkanda - Nugegda Land
Registry.

4. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot B2B (reservation for road) depicted in Plan No. 669 dated 
07.08.1993 and 28.09.1993 made by H. A. D. Premaratne, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Delgahawatta and 
Alubogahawatta situated at Boralesgamuwa and which 
said Lot B2B is bounded on the North by Lots B2A and 
B2, on the East by Lot B3, on the South by Lot B4 and 
on the West by Lot B1B and Containing in extent Two 
decimal Three Eight Perches (0A., 0R., 2.38P.) according to 
the said Plan No. 669 and registered under M 2616/262 at  
Delkanda - Nugegda Land Registry.

The  second  Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot X depicted in Plan No. 6671 dated 15th November, 
2010 made by B. S. Alahakone, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called Delgahawatta and Alubogahawatta together with 
the trees, plantation and everything else standing thereon, 
situated at Boralesgamuwa within the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Boralesgamuwa East B - 533D in Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Boralesgamuwa and in the Divisional 
Secretariat Division of Kesbewa in Palle Pattu of Salpiti 
Korale in the District of Colombo in Western Province and 
which said Lot X is bounded on the North by Land claimed 
by G. Wimalasiri Perera and others, on the East by Land 
claimed by A. D. Saranapala, on the South by Lots Y and 
Z in Plan No. 6671 and on the West by Lot B2A1 in Plan  
No. 1023 and Containing in extent Seven Perches  
(0A., 0R., 7P.) according to the said Plan No. 6671 and 
registered under C 786/52 at the Delkanda - Nugegoda Land 
Registry.

l. All that divided and defined allotment of land
marked Lot B2A7 depicted in Plan No. 1023 dated

07.07.1994 made by H. A. D. Premaratne, Licensed 
Surveyor of the land called Delgahawatta and 
Alubogahawatta situated at Boralesgamuwa and 
which said Lot B2A7 is bounded on the North by 
Lots B2A1 and B2A2, on the East by Lots B2A2, 
B2A3 and B2A6, on the South by Lots B4, B1B & 
B2B and road 20 feet wide and on the West by Lots 
B2A5, B2A4 and B2A1 and Containing in extent 
Four Decimal Six Five Perches (0A., 0R., 4.65P.) 
according to the said Plan No. 1023 and registered 
under M 2994/11 at Delkanda - Nugegoda Land 
Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked
Lot B1B (reservation for road) depicted in Plan
No. 669 dated 07.08.1993 and 28.09.1993 made by
H. A. D. Premaratne, Licensed Surveyor of the land
called Delgahawatta and Alubogahawatta situated at
Boralesgamuwa and which said Lot B1B is bounded
on the North by Lots B1A and B1 and Lot B2A and
B2 hereof, on the East by Lot B2B, on the South
by Lot B4 and on the West by Land claimed by
A. D. Nandawathie and others and Containing in
extent Four Perches (0A., 0R., 4P.) according to the
said Plan No. 669 and registered under M 2616/249
at Delkanda - Nugegoda Land Registry.

Together with the common right of way in over and along 
reservation for road Lot Z in Plan No. 6671 dated 15.11.2010 
made by B. S. Alahakone, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of Board,

Theja Silva,
Company Secretary.

242, Union Place,
Colombo 02.

12-44/2
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IMPORTANT  NOTICE   REGARDING   PUBLICATION   OF  GAZETTE

THE Weekly issue of the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka is normally published on 
Fridays. If a Friday happens to be a Public Holiday the Gazette is published on the working day immediately 
preceding the Friday. Thus the last date specified for the receipt of notices for publication in the Gazette also 
varies depending on the incidence of public holidays in the week concerned.

The Schedule below shows the date of publication and the latest time by which notices should be 
received for publication in the respective weekly Gazette. All notices received out of times specified below 
will not be published. Such notices will be returned to the sender by post for necessary amendment and return 
if publication is desired in a subsequent issue of the Gazette. It will be in the interest of all concerned if those 
desirous of ensuring the timely publication of notices in the Gazette  make it a point to see that sufficient time is 
allowed for postal  transmission of  notices to the Government Press.

The Government Printer accept payments of subscription for the Government Gazette.               

Note.—Payments for inserting Notices in the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka 
will be received by the Government Printer. 

The Schedule

Month	 Date of Publication	 Last Date and Time of
Acceptance of Notices for
Publication in the Gazette

2022

december	 02.12.2022	F riday	 —	 18.11.2022	F riday	 12 noon
09.12.2022	F riday	 ––	 25.11.2022	F riday	 12 noon
16.12.2022	F riday	 ––	 02.12.2022	F riday	 12 noon
23.12.2022	F riday	 ––	 09.12.2022	F riday	 12 noon
30.12.2022	F riday	 ––	 16.12.2022	F riday	 12 noon

2023

january	 05.01.2023	T hursday	 —	 23.12.2022	F riday	 12 noon
13.01.2023	F riday	 ––	 30.12.2022	F riday	 12 noon
20.01.2023	F riday	 ––	 05.01.2023	T hursday	 12 noon
27.01.2023	F riday	 ––	 13.01.2023	F riday	 12 noon

february	 03.02.2023	F riday	 —	 20.01.2023	F riday	 12 noon
10.02.2023	F riday	 ––	 27.01.2023	F riday	 12 noon
17.02.2023	F riday	 ––	 03.02.2023	F riday	 12 noon
24.02.2023	F riday	 ––	 10.02.2023	F riday	 12 noon

Gangani Liyanage,
Government Printer. 

Department of Government Printing,
Colombo 08, 	
01st January, 2022.

Printed  at  the  Department  of  Government  Printing,  Sri  Lanka.




